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SRV completed Flamingo in autumn 2008, two months ahead of schedule. This recreational centre in Vantaa features a hotel, water park, cinema, retail space and restaurants.



About srv srv in brief key figures
yeAr in brief ceo's review strAtegy  
outlook for construction srv  
ApproAch And project development  
glossAry business AreAs corporAte 
responsi bility corporAte governAnce

1



SRV in bRief

SRV is an innovative construction com-
pany that provides end-to-end solutions 
and assumes customer-focused respon-

sibility for the development, construction and 
commercialisation of projects. Its operations 
are divided into three business areas: Business 
Premises, Housing and International. In addi- 
tion, SRV has a Project Development unit 
that undertakes new projects for the business 
areas. Business Premises carries out office, 
commercial, logistics and rock construction 
projects. The Housing business area imple-

ments apartment house projects in city centres 
and low-rise residential area projects as well 
as regional operations in Finland. International 
operations include commercial, office, logistics 
and hotel projects. 

SRV’s main business territories are the 
Helsinki Metropolitan Area, St Petersburg and 
its environs and the major centres of the Baltic 
countries. 

SRV’s brand promise delivers a message of 
special expertise. SRV is Constructively Dif-
ferent.  

The company’s vision is built on four corner-
stones. First, SRV is a pioneer in the construc-
tion business, breaking new ground with its 
SRV Approach. Second, the company is the 
leading builder of business premises in Finland, 
the Baltic countries and selected areas of Rus-
sia. The third cornerstone is being a pacesetter 
in customer-focused residential construction 
in Finland. The fourth is the outcome of the 
other three – SRV’s growth and profitability 
outpace the industry average by a good margin.    

The construction of the Music Centre was started up in the centre of Helsinki in the autumn.
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SRV Approach

The SRV Approach gives a competitive edge. 
The core of the approach is superior project 
development and project management imple-
mentation.   

Superior project development arises from 
understanding the business of its customers, 
innovative fl air in setting up projects to sat-
isfy customer needs, and wide-ranging exper-
tise in customer and stakeholder networks.

In project management, superiority comes 
from forging a shared vision of project out-
comes, professionalism, end-to-end respon-
sibility for project implementation and close 
co-operation with the stakeholder network.

SRV provides compe-
titive advantages to its 
customers 

f overall economy and faster imple-
mentation
In all its projects, SRV seeks a well-function-
ing overall solution that takes account of the 
location, users, spaces, fi nancing and struc-
tures. The implementation time is shortened 
by means of unifi ed project management and 
by fl exibly overlapping the design and con-
struction phases. 

f Better in line with the needs of the 
customers
Projects always spring from customers’ 
needs. Customers are involved in guiding the 
project from an early stage.  

2008 IFRS 2007 IFRS 2006 IFRS 2005 IFRS 2004 FAS

Revenue, EUR million 537 561.4 479.5 422.0 403.2

Operating profit, EUR million 32.9 15.1 24.6 21.8 17.2

Operating profit, % of revenue 6.1 2.7 5.1 5.2 4.3

Return on equity, % 9.4 6.9 27.3 34.0 35.3

Return on investment, % 12.9 9.7 15.9 19.1 26.2

Equity ratio, % 41.3 55.4 31.7 19.8 22.6

Order backlog, EUR million 455.3 528.7 453.7 251.8 345.9

Personnel on average 871 761 688 671 603

key figureS

PerSonnel
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january
espoo City Board accepted SRV’s planning 
reservation application for residential towers 
to be built atop karhusaarentie road. The plan 
includes four 27–28-storey buildings and an 
underground carpark.  

SRV and kiinteistöosakeyhtiö Helsingin 
Musiikkitalo signed an agreement to carry out 
a study concerning the planning solutions and 
diff erences between the cost estimates of the 
Helsinki Music Centre.

YeAR 
in bRief

”SRV comes out on top 
in competitive bidding”
–kauppalehti business newspaper, 

9 Jan 2009 

feBruary
executive Vice President Veli-Matti kullas, who 
is in charge of SRV’s operations in Russia, was 
appointed as a member of SRV’s Corporate 
executive Team. 

SRV’s brand and brand promise were re-
newed. The new brand promise is “Construc-
tively Diff erent” – the key points are that SRV 
is dynamic, reliable, service-minded and a 
pacesetter.

SRV Russia acquired a stake in a Russian 
enterprise that bought a plot of 24.9 hectares 
north of St Petersburg, in the close vicinity of 
the Ring Road. Over 100,000 square metres of 
logistics facilities will be built at the site.

neste Oil Corporation’s new headquarters 
in the keilaniemi district of espoo were com-
pleted. 

SRV was selected as the building contractor 
for the extension and rebuilding project at the 
Jyväskylä ice stadium. 

SRV and kiinteistö Oy lahden Trio signed 
a contract agreement for the second phase of 
the refurbishing of the Trio shopping centre. 

march
As part of SRV’s renewed brand, the company 
renamed its subsidiaries. SRV Viitoset, which 
specialises in business premises solutions, 
was renamed SRV Business Premises ltd as 
of 1 March. SRV westerlund, which operates in 
residential construction, became SRV Housing 
ltd. SRV International ltd was not renamed.

SRV Pohjois-Suomi started its operations 
in Oulu.  

SRV sold the keravanportti property to the 
real-estate investment trust ReFF I ky, which is 
managed by Pohjola Property Management ltd. 

aPril
SRV concluded a contract with the Internation-
al Banking Institute (IBI), St Petersburg, and 
a local partner concerning the development of 
an area of land measuring about 8.5 hectares 
in the centre of St Petersburg. The plans for 
the area include the construction of offi  ce and 
retail space as well as hotel, restaurant and 
entertainment premises. 

Sgn group, Tapiola Real estate ltd and 
SRV signed an agreement to build the Sgn 
group’s new headquarters and logistics centre 
in the koivuhaka district of Vantaa. 

Senate Properties and SRV signed a con-
tract agreement for the construction of a new 
building for Swedish School of Social Science 
and the renovation of its adjacent building in 
kruununhaka. 

SRV handed over 700 renovated hotel 
rooms in Park Inn Hotel Pribaltiskaya to the 
client.

may
Valtteri Palin was appointed senior vice presi-
dent, Financial Administration, and member of 
the Corporate executive Team.

The property services department of the 
university of Helsinki selected SRV as its 
contractor for the repair works on the second 
phase of the Metsätalo Building.

Ridalinranta, nummela HTC keilaniemi, espoo
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june 
katri Innanen was appointed as SRV's chief 
legal counsel and member of the Corporate 
executive Team.

SRV signed a contract agreement for the 
construction of the Helsinki Music Centre. 

SRV signed an agreement with Park Inn 
Hotel Pulkovskaya for the refurbishment 
of 190 hotel rooms and with Park Inn Hotel 
Pribaltiskaya for the refurbishment of public 
premises. Both hotels are located in St Peters-
burg.  

new agreements were made for the con-
struction of new business premises for Codel 
International in the koivuhaka district of Van-
taa and a new car dealership for Autosalpa Oy 
in lahti.

july
SRV sold the shares in ZAO nordrus Hotel to 
the norwegian company wenaas. ZAO nord-
rus Hotel owns this 160-room hotel, which is 
located in ekaterinburg, Russia. The hotel is 
run under the Park Inn brand. The transaction 
required the consent of the Russian competi-
tion authorities, which was received in Sep-
tember.  

auguST
SRV handed over the Flamingo recreational 
centre in Vantaa two months ahead of schedule. 

Construction of nokia’s kara Mid Point was 
completed. kara Mid Point is an ensemble of 
three offi  ce and R&D buildings. 

SePTemBer
SRV reorganised its international operations. 
The executive vice president in charge of Rus-
sian operations, Veli-Matti kullas, reports 
directly to eero Heliövaara, president and CeO. 
The SRV Baltic country managers report to the 
head of Business Premises, Juha Pekka Ojala. 

SRV Housing signed an agreement with 
VAV Asunnot Oy for the construction of a new 
fi ve-storey apartment house in the Tammisto 
district of Vantaa. The apartments are intend-
ed for lease.  

A retail building for furniture and interior 
decoration – featuring both Vepsäläinen and 
koti-Idea stores – was completed in the cen-
tral quarter of king’s gate in Porvoo. In addi-
tion, topping out ceremonies were held for two 
other properties in king’s gate.

ocToBer
Stockmann and SRV agreed that SRV would 
take over the project management and imple-
mentation of the extension and alteration 
works of Stockmann’s Helsinki department 
store.

novemBer
Juha Pekka Ojala, who heads up SRV Business 
Premises, was honoured as the RIA Person of 
2008 by the Association of Finnish Construc-
tion engineers and Architects RIA.  

SRV kaakkois-Suomi won silver in an oc-
cupational safety competition in southeast 
Finland. 

An agreement was made with HOAS for 
the construction of four fi ve-storey apartment 
buildings in Viikki, Helsinki. 

SRV and neste Oil agreed on the construc-
tion of a new building measuring about 6,000 
square metres for the central laboratory of the 
Porvoo refi nery. 

The construction of the kaarle shopping 
centre began in Vaasa on the former factory 
area of Suomen Rehu. In the fi rst phase, a 
k-Rauta hardware store will be built for Rau-
takesko. 

The renovation of an offi  ce building for the 
Finnish national Board of education was com-
pleted in the Hakaniemi district of Helsinki. 

decemBer
SRV kaakkois-Suomi ltd, SRV keski-Suomi 
ltd and SRV lounais-Suomi ltd were merged 
into SRV Housing ltd. 

The dealership and service centre of Inch-
cape Motors estonia was handed over to the 
client in Tallinn. 

SRV and Suomi Mutual life Assurance 
Company signed a project agreement concern-
ing STC Meiramitie, a logistics project that will 
be implemented in the koivuhaka district of 
Vantaa. 

Senate Properties selected SRV as the con-
tractor of its new air raid shelter and carpark 
in Viikki. 

An agreement package for the kerca plots 
was signed with the City of kerava. 

A preliminary contract was made for the 
Holiday Club Saimaa spa hotel.

Hakaniemenranta 6, Helsinki Department store Stockmann, Helsinki Helsinki City service tunnel, Helsinki
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THe CeO On HIS wAy TO ST PeTeRSBuRg/HelSInkI CenTRAl RAIlwAy STATIOn 

the srv ApproAch –  
competitiveness  
in All business cycles



ceo'S ReView

The financial crisis that began in 2007 
turned into a crisis of the real economy 
in late 2008. The exceptionally long 

boom in construction in Finland also came to 
an end. The turmoil in the financial markets 
has especially hurt the availability of financ-
ing. The number of real-estate transactions 
declined towards the end of the year. In the 
latter half of the year, weak consumer con-
fidence brought sales of new housing to a 
virtual standstill. 

In spite of the economic recession, the 
construction of business premises remained 
brisk in 2008. The order backlog was still at 
a high level in the autumn, but the number of 
new project start-ups declined. Housing sales 
slackened rapidly and residential construction 
was thus downscaled at an unprecedented 
speed in the latter half of the year. 

Our order backlog remained robust at the 
end of 2008. SRV holds a very large share of 
the projects that were started up in the second 
half of the year.

Although the cyclical outlook took a turn for 
the worse, SRV has no need to revise its key 
long-term strategic policies. The company is 
renowned for its SRV Approach – it combines 
the development of construction projects with 
top-notch, customer-focused project man-
agement implementation. The SRV Approach 
has proven its mettle during both the ups and 
downs of the business cycle. In 2008, the 
company completed all of its business premis-
es projects on schedule, and most of them 
yielded additional financial benefits for both 
the client and SRV.

In a world where the costs are declining, the 
SRV Approach is even more competitive. It 
yields cost-savings for the client through effi-
cient implementation and competitive tenders 
from an extensive network of subcontractors. 
For SRV, well-oiled subcontracting means 

scaling resources flexibly in line with the com-
pany’s current projects. This operating method 
also gives SRV the latitude to transfer capacity 
to locations such as St Petersburg.

BuSineSS PremiSeS rackS uP record 
earningS, houSing SaleS SlumP
Business Premises posted its highest earn-
ings of all time in 2008. The business area 
performed well thanks to its good reputation 
for carrying through challenging projects, the 
higher share of operations accounted for by 
developer contracting projects and its deep 
knowledge of its customers’ operations.  

The Housing business area is facing the 
toughest hurdles. SRV put on the brakes in its 
housing production in early 2008. Residential 
start-ups were dropped to 110 units, as com-
pared with 363 in the previous year. Housing 
production will be kickstarted by the rental 
market. lower interest rates and the worsen-
ing housing shortage in the Helsinki Metro-
politan Area maintain brisk momentum in the 
rental market. Housing is increasingly attrac-
tive to investors.

 
ruSSia wenT down faST, 
and will riSe for Sure
The Russian construction market remains 
highly interesting. The economy is on the 
wane, the financial market is drying up, and 
the rouble has been devalueated – all of which 
open up a great deal of opportunities for finan-
cially sound players. SRV has invested about 
euR 50 million in an area of land measuring 
8.5 hectares in the centre of St Petersburg. 
The project is in the development phase. The 
construction of the first phase will only be 
kicked off when the project has been commer-
cialised and sufficient financing and occupancy 
rate have been ensured. It is obvious that we 
will seek to bring other investors on board 

before moving into the implementation phase. 
The amount of capital tied up in SRV’s projects 
during the implementation phase is limited.

keePing BalTic oPeraTionS 
on a low flame
The Baltic countries were the first of our ter-
ritories to be hit by economic difficulties. we 
have significantly cut costs in our organisa-
tions in estonia and latvia, but are pressing 
ahead with several projects for our customers. 
we will only undertake development projects 
once the economy begins to grow again.

focuSing on caPiTaliSaTion, 
financing and coST-effecTiveneSS
SRV’s equity ratio stood at 41 per cent at the 
turn of the year. This is satisfactory or bet-
ter. The company's financial position is good 
and it has undrawn credit limits and financ-
ing commitments of more than euR 160 mil-
lion. SRV is in good shape to weather crises. 
SRV’s absolute goal is to ensure that, even if 
the recession becomes severe, we can make 
it through without need for new capital. we 
are well poised to do so. The matter is in our 
hands. Competitiveness is a matter of honour 
to us and cost-effectiveness is one of our key 
objectives. Due to the declining construction 
volumes, SRV will also have to take a proactive 
approach to managing costs. unfortunately, 
we will not be able to avoid personnel adjust-
ments. we firmly believe that SRV will main-
tain its competitiveness in the ups and downs 
of the business cycle.

eero Heliövaara
President and CeO

ceo'S ReView   SRV AnnuAl RepoRt 2008
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in its strategy, SRV has 
three operational goals:

f To improve profitability  
Business profitability is improved by 
increasing the share of development 
projects, boosting the efficiency of opera-
tions and customer relationship manage-
ment as well as developing SRV opera-
tionally as a single entity and brand.

f To safeguard growth  
Growth is safeguarded by pursuing busi-
ness in Russia, especially, and regional 
operations in Finland. Growth is boosted 
also by prudently increasing the use of the 
company’s own balance sheet in business 
dealings and making the company into an 
increasingly desirable employer.

f To boost competitiveness 
Competitiveness is boosted by developing 
knowledge of the businesses of its main 
customer groups and working out con-
cepts for innovative total service solutions 
that can be offered to customers.

StRAtegY

Srv aPProach enSureS good end reSulT
SRV uses its SRV Approach to carry out both 
development projects and customer-developed 
projects.

Development projects are launched either 
on a developer contracting basis or together 
with a selected partner, sharing the risks. Open 
partnership projects are carried out under 
project management contracts. Fixed-price, 
tender-based contracting is employed in se-
lected projects only. 

whenever possible, SRV seeks to use de-
velopment agreements to secure the plots 
it needs in its operations. within Business 
Premises, SRV may purchase plots of land to 
ensure the successful start-up of development 
projects. In Housing, SRV purchases unzoned 
land and zoned plots in order to implement its 
chief concepts. In Russia, land is purchased to 
secure business premise projects. Baltic opera-
tions follow the Finnish model.

SRV exits from its developer contracting 
projects as early as possible to accelerate capi-
tal turnover. In Russia, the company may hold 
on to projects for a short time until it has been 
ensured they have been successfully commer-
cialised.

Srv’S STraTegy iS BaSed on well-
defined oPeraTional Thinking. 
develoPmenT iS inTegraTed inTo 
oPeraTional BuSineSS. wiTh iTS 
comPeTiTive Srv aPProach, The 
grouP aimS To imProve ProfiTaBiliTy, 
Safeguard growTh and add comPeT-
iTive edge.

BUSINESS PREMISES

HOUSING INTERNATIONAL

OPERATIONS

FINLAND

RUSSIA

BALTIC

COUNTRIES

8
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outlook foR 
conStRuction

The uncerTain SiTuaTion in The 
gloBal economy in 2008 alSo hiT The 
conSTrucTion induSTry. ThiS can Be 
Seen in The Slowdown of The growTh 
of The conSTrucTion of BuSineSS 
PremiSeS and SlumP in houSing 
conSTrucTion. The BalTic counTrieS 
are in receSSion, Too. however, ruSSia 
PreSenTS many oPPorTuniTieS in The 
long Term.

The financial crisis stemming from the 
united States penetrated the global 
economy last autumn, pushing economic 

trends downwards more than expected, includ-
ing in Finland. Rapid economic growth gave 
way to uncertainty and a lack of confidence, 
making forecasting very difficult. The uS and 
the euro area passed their economic peaks and 
the world economy is currently preparing for a 
period of slower growth.

last year, the Finnish economy grew at an 
estimated annual rate of 1.5 per cent. For 2009, 
it is predicted that economic growth will almost 
come to a halt and even to turn negative. The 
construction business already peaked in 2007, 
when the growth rate in construction volumes 
attained a 7.1 per cent high. In 2009 construc-
tion and the property market are expected to 
see a marked decline from their peak periods.

The long, powerful economic boom re-
sulted in record figures for the investment 
and construction markets, while construction 
costs kept rising and the availability of materi-
als dwindled. However, the forthcoming pe-
riod of slower growth will bring construction 
costs down, encouraging the initiation of new 
projects. The supply of construction materials 
and labour is expected to improve further.

BuSineSS PremiSeS
In 2008, construction of office premises 
remained strong and, since a record number 
of new premises will be completed in 2009, 
vacancy rates will also rise. Office and business 
construction is expected to reduce in 2009, but 
not to dip below the average level prevailing 
prior to the economic peak.

Prudence and delayed decision-making in-
creased in the property market towards the end 
of 2008. Rents are expected to decrease, par-
ticularly outside the Helsinki Metropolitan Area.

last year logistics construction was lively 
in ports and alongside new routes, but near-
future economic uncertainties are delaying new 
projects.

houSing
In 2008, consumer confidence in house-
hold economies declined and the financial 
crisis pushed interest rates upwards, cool-
ing the housing market rapidly. The number 
of completed but unsold residential units 

has increased and selling times have become 
longer. Construction of new residential units 
reduced throughout the financial year, and 
this decline is expected to continue in 2009. 
Demand for one-family houses and terraced 
houses, in particular, has decreased. Fur-
thermore, the rise in housing prices, which 
had been continuing for years, slowed down 
towards the end of 2008. Demand for hous-
ing is, however, being maintained by internal 
migration and the concentration of the popula-
tion in growth centres and their neighbouring 
municipalities. Also the rapid decrease in inter-
est rates, which started towards the end of 
2008, perks up the residential market.

BalTic counTrieS
The Baltic economies weakened rapidly due to 
the financial crisis, and the high growth trends 
of recent years are being replaced by those 
of reducing gDPs. It is estimated that esto-
nian gDP fell by 2.2 per cent in 2008 and it is 
expected to decline further in 2009. 

The prices of properties and housing in the 
Baltic countries fell last year. economic growth 
saw just as abrupt a halt in latvia as in estonia. 
The country’s gDP is predicted to decrease no-
tably in 2009. Once the Baltic economy begins 
to recover, new construction and the property 
market are also expected to pick up.

ruSSia
Russian gDP is estimated to have grown by 
six per cent in 2008. It is forecast that in 2009 
growth will slow down to slightly under or over 
zero per cent. The financial crisis hit Russia 
hard during the third quarter of 2008, hinder-
ing credit granting and markedly decelerating 
economic growth. The Russian economy will 
be highly dependent on oil market prices, since 
65–70 per cent of the nation’s export revenues 
derive from energy, chiefly oil. Construction 
grew by about 13 percent in 2008, even though 
it lost almost all of its momentum in the third 
quarter. The Russian middle class continued to 
became wealthier, and the growth in retail trade 
boosted the construction of new shopping 
centres and logistics premises. while in the 
near-future Russia will see disrupted markets, 
in the long term the country will present plenty 
of interesting opportunities for the property 
business.

develoPmenT of finniSh gdP  
and conSTrucTion volume, %

Change in GDP 

Change in construc tion volume

ProducTion demand for aParTmenTS   
and new aParTmenT STarT-uPS, PcS

Produc tion demand ( V T T )

Star t-ups for new apar tment s
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in 2008, ProjecT develoPmenT waS 
exPanded To Serve The enTire grouP. 
SmooTh ProjecT ProgreSS iS enSured 
By SoluTionS BaSed on roBuST 
knowledge of cuSTomerS, exTenSive 
co-oPeraTion neTworkS, effecTive 
concePTS and agiliTy in reacTing To 
markeT changeS.

The core concept behind the SRV Ap-
proach is the controlled, end-to-end 
implementation of construction projects, 

all the way from project development, design 
and construction to the use of the completed 
properties. Project Development anticipates 
the needs of property users and develops 
optimal solutions for them. The strengths 
of SRV’s Project Development are its deep 
knowledge of its customers’ business and its 
extensive stakeholder network, comprising 
land and property owners, providers of finance 
and the authorities. In addition, the Project 
Development unit’s professionals are well 
versed in land acquisition, zoning and financing 
opportunities. The operational business areas 
attend to the development and construction of 
individual projects. Designer and subcontractor 
networks are an important component of the 
SRV Approach.

Project Development’s 
strength is its extensive  

stakeholder network
At the end of 2008, Project Development 

had about 120 candidate projects under prepa-
ration. SRV’s goal is that, on average, half of 
the group’s annual order backlog represents 
development or developer contracting projects. 
That said, in the prevailing market conditions 
it is likely that the share of contract sites in 
SRV’s order backlog will be higher than in an 
ordinary business climate. Project development 
prioritises sites that can be started up quickly, 
while SRV also proactively develops long-term 
projects that can be kicked off immediately 
upon the threshold of an upswing. One of the 
major projects under development comprises 
residential towers atop karhusaarentie road 
in the keilaniemi district of espoo. In addition, 
SRV is developing the Toppila area in Oulu. 
The related zoning plan will be completed in 
2009. 

imProving our knowledge 
of cuSTomerS 
In 2008, Project Development was expanded to 
cover SRV International and regional operations 
in line with the company’s strategy. Project 

SRV  
APPRoAcH 
AnD PRoJect 
DeVeloPMent

Development now serves the entire group.
As the order backlog grew, SRV hired more 

experts in trade and logistics to serve its differ-
ent user groups. Although SRV has bolstered 
its in-house expertise, it is forging ahead with 
networking on a large scale and tapping the 
best resources in different fields.

Dialogue with the  
public sector 

In the current market situation, ensuring 
that the customers' investment precondi-
tions are met is a challenge. nevertheless, 
construction costs have declined, fostering a 
willingness to start up projects. In the global 
economy, customers have increased their reac-
tion times, and projects may even be started 
on a rapid schedule. 

As the recession deepens, the pressure to 
start up public projects has mounted. Dialogue 
between the public and private sectors has 
gained a foothold in numerous municipalities. 
SRV has long experience of co-operation with 
municipalities that has yielded good results. 
Projects with many municipalities are in the 
pipeline.

well-oiled concePTS
HTCs (High Tech Center) are office buildings 
in prestigious locations close to the city cen-
tre that provide work communities, business 
premises and services in support of the opera-
tions of companies. SRV has implemented a 
total of four HTCs. The most recent of these 
ensembles is HTC keilaniemi, completed main-
ly during 2008. The latest centre under devel-
opment is HTC Vermo in leppävaara.  HTC 
Vantaankoski is being planned in the immedi-
ate vicinity of Ring Road III and the Hämeen-
linna highway. 

The STC – Smart Tech Center – concept has 
been specially developed for SMes. STCs offer 
tailor-made premises packages with excellent 
logistics. An STC is a multipurpose concept 
whose cornerstone is well-oiled logistics. The 
premises can include office, warehouse and 
production space, tailored to the company’s 
business needs. Smart Tech Centers are lo-
cated in places that are easy to get to and 
feature excellent connections for goods traffic. 

10
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Authorities

We design and build complete re-gional centres with municipalities. When necessary, we coordinate the zoning process and attend to ad-ministrative permits. SRV never compromises its social obligations.

Investors

SRV aims to guarantee return on in-

vestment over the long term.

The company takes a proac-

tive approach to development with 

a view to increasing the value of 

properties. 

Users

Projects always spring from cus-
tomers’ needs. SRV fosters open 
cooperation. The eventual users of 
the premises come on board the 
construction project right from the 
start. 

Designers

Optimal overlapping of design and construction shortens the total du-ration of projects. SRV attaches the best designers in their fields to each project.

Subcontractors

SRV taps into a construction net-

work of 4,000 contractors repre-

senting different fields. Subcon-

tractors are committed to on-site 

quality, cost and scheduling targets 

and comply with joint safety objec-

tives and obligations.

Specialists 

SRV’s way of operating rises to the 
challenge of demanding projects. 
The professional skills of experts 
in numerous fields are required in 
complex projects and solutions.

Construction 

SRV carries out construction under 

project management contract, as-

suming the responsibilities of main 

contractor. It is a matter of pride for 

SRV that work is completed on time 

and at the agreed costs and quality. 

Occupational safety is a priority.

Design 

SRV is responsible for the end-to-
end management of the design 
process, steering it in line with the 
needs of the client and the condi-
tions set with the designers. 

Project development  

SRV’s Project Development unit iden-

tifies opportunities in the market and 

develops them into new projects. The 

unit also provides effective land acqui-

sition, financing and investment solu-

tions. 

SRV aPPROach

SRV APPROACH AND PROJECT DEVELOPMENT   SRV ANNuAL REPORT 2008
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from ProjecT develoPmenT 
To imPlemenTaTion
In 2008, the construction of king’s gate – a 
project development site – continued in Por-
voo. The kerca logistics area project com-
menced, entering the preconstruction phase. 
This project is being implemented in associa-
tion with the City of kerava. At the end of the 
year, a framework agreement and property 
deal package for kerca were signed with the 
City of kerava. A project agreement under 
which Anttila Oy’s logistics centre will be locat-
ed in kerca was inked at the turn of the year. 

The construction of the kaarle shopping 
centre was started up in Vaasa in november. 
It will be located in Suomen Rehu’s former 
factory area. The fi rst phase comprises the 
construction of a k-Rauta hardware store for 
Rautakesko. 

SRV also ensures that suffi  cient parking can 
be built at the site. 

STC Meiramitie, an ensemble of four logis-
tics facilities with a total fl oor area of some 
10,700 square metres, was started up in the 
koivuhaka district of Vantaa in 2008. In addi-
tion, STC kuninkaanportti is under construc-
tion in Porvoo. SRV has previously implement-
ed STC projects in espoo and the nummela 
district of Vihti.

The gCC concept (grand Cargo Centre) is 
primarily designed for logistics service provid-
ers and wholesale companies. gCC kerca will be 
built on a plot acquired from the City of kerava. 
Plans call for the construction of two logistics 
facilities measuring some 10,000 square me-
tres, with construction due to begin in spring 
2009. In addition, gCC projects are planned at 
locations such as Tahkotie in Vantaa. 

project development a long 
process for Htc keilaniemi

In the 1990s, SRV developed the HTC (High 
Tech Centre) concept to respond to high-tech 
companies’ and universities’ demand for 
premises. The fi rst HTCs were built in Ruo-
holahti, Helsinki.

In 2000, SRV made its initial proposal to 
the City of Espoo concerning a set of six offi  ce 
buildings on the Keilaniemi shore. The under-
lying idea was that the area needed headquar-
ters-level Business Park premises which could 
also host smaller companies. A key element 
in the HTC concept was the proximity of the 
University of Technology.

The City of Espoo embraced this idea and 
authorised SRV to plan a project in support of 
the City’s business and industrial policy.

 In 2002, zoning of the area began with the 
City. Even the zoning appeals submitted did 
not manage to discourage the parties, and the 
fi nal zoning plan was approved in 2005. SRV 
Project Development was responsible for the 
area’s early rough planning. 

In co-operation with Business Premises, 
Project Development ensured the implemen-
tation of the initial work in order to obtain 
fi nancing and involve investors in the project. 
Project Development was also responsible 
for concluding the project’s sales contracts 
with Neste Oil Pension Fund and the German 
company MEAG.

In 2006, Project Development concluded 
a contract with the anchor tenant, Neste 
Oil, and purchased the land from the City of 
Espoo. In the summer of the same year, HTC 
Keilaniemi progressed to Business Premises’ 
construction stage.

The HTC concept was created through innovative project development. 

12
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gloSSARY

traditional competitive contracting  
The customer commissions the project design 
and then selects the building contractor on the 
basis of tenders received.

Developer contracting 
The construction company acquires the plot 
and independently designs, builds and markets 
the site.

project management contracting
The project management contractor has prin-
cipal responsibility for the site. The construc-
tion is mainly subcontracted, and oft en the 
design and building work overlap.

partnership construction 
A method by which the site is designed and 
the building work executed continuously in line 
with the customer’s requirements and in co-
operation with the customer.

Development projects
The construction company develops the
project from the beginning and executes it in 
accordance with the customer’s requirements.

tR measurement and tR value
Safety measurement and measurement index 
applied in building construction (max. 100%).

SRV

ABC

gloSSARY   SRV AnnuAl RepoRt 2008
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The renovation of the public premises of Hotel Pulkovskaya was seen to completion in St Petersburg in May 2008.
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SRV’s Business Premises engages in re-
tail, office, logistics and rock construction 
operations, property development as well 

as the lease and sale of developer contracting 
projects. Following the reorganisation of SRV 
International in autumn 2008, the Baltic func-
tions report to the executive vice president in 
charge of Business Premises.

Business Premises enjoyed a successful 
2008, racking up record earnings. Excellent 
site implementation was not the only factor 
behind its good performance – development 
and developer contracting projects accounted 
for a higher share of its operations and the 
trend in its margin was favourable. Although 
the market became muted, the business area 
forged new agreements, thanks to which its 
order backlog at year’s end was almost on a 
par with the turn of last year. This good result 
is the outcome of years of systematic work. 

RobuSt expeRtiSe
The year 2008 showed that the SRV 
Approach is effective during a boom as well. 
Many clients have stated that price is not the 
only consideration when they choose a part-
ner to carry out their project; their decision 
often hinges on occupational safety and the 
implementing organisation. Business Premises 
has attracted good new projects thanks to its 
skilled employees and the long-term relation-
ships that its production directors enjoy with 
clients. SRV has delivered on its promise of 
taking an open and reliable approach to the 
job. The company has also proven its mettle 
in project management contracting – and SRV 
has been invited on board projects in a tight 
spot to help ensure their successful implemen-
tation. SRV is in demand for the implementa-
tion of projects and subcontractors want to 
work on SRV sites.

SRV bolstered its organisation in 2008 with 
experts who are well versed in its customers’ 
business operations. The Group hired retail 
and logistics specialists. On this basis, SRV 
has deep knowledge of the trends and mega-
trends in different industries. SRV matches its 
construction expertise with commercial savvy, 
giving it an unsurpassed competitive edge.

BUSINESS 
PREMISES

”An organisation thrives 
when it generates 
added value for its 
customers by providing 
innovative solutions 
and understanding their 
business.”

SRV’S buSineSS pRemiSeS bRoke 
itS eaRningS RecoRdS in 2008. the 
buSineSS aRea peRfoRmed well 
thankS to itS good Reputation foR 
caRRying thRough challenging 
pRojectS, the higheR ShaRe of opeRa-
tionS accounted foR by deVelopeR 
contRacting pRojectS and itS dRiVe 
to deepen itS knowledge of itS 
cuStomeRS’ buSineSS.

Juha Pekka Ojala 
Executive Vice President
Business Premises

Flamingo

lOcatiOn

year OF cOmPletiOn

cOnstructiOn PeriOd

m2, tOtal

hOtel rOOms

water Park

nightcluB

shOPPing centre

 Vantaa

2008

2006–2008

87,000

309

yes

yes

yes

Retail pRemiSeS and officeS
Towards the end of the year, the market for the 
construction of business premises also slack-
ened somewhat. That said, the prospects for 
the construction of business premises remain 
good.

The most notable new agreements made in 
2008 were for the construction of the Helsinki 
Music Centre, signed in June, and the transfer 
of the project management of Stockmann’s 
extension and alteration works to SRV in the 
autumn. 

 Construction of business 
premises remains brisk

Several major projects were completed in 
2008. SRV handed over the Flamingo recrea-
tional centre in Vantaa to the client in Sep-
tember, two months ahead of schedule. Two 
headquarters buildings were completed for 
Neste Oil in the Keilaniemi district of Espoo in 
February, followed by three HTC buildings in 
the spring and autumn.

16

SRV AnnuAl RepoRt 2008   BuSineSS pRemiSeS



HTC keilaniemi is both impressive and effi  cient.

construction of Htc keila-
niemi a large jigsaw puzzle 

In the summer 2006, HTC Keilaniemi entered 
the construction phase, involving the con-
struction of some 77,500 gross square 
metres in six buildings. Its basements include 
one thousand parking spaces for cars, and 
other fi gures concerning the worksite are also 
large. The completed installations total six 
kilometres of round concrete posts, 60,000 
square metres of hollow-core and tin-shell 
slabs and twelve kilometres of prestressed 
concrete beams. A total of 35,000 cubic 
metres were dredged from the sea bed of the 
Keilaranta sea bay and 65,000 cubic metres 
of rock material was excavated from the 
worksite ground.

A detailed risk assessment showed that 
the greatest risk is posed by the water: pres-
surised sea water penetrating the base fl oor 
and wind blowing rainwater into the enclos-
ing structures. Together with the designers 
and the contractor supplying the facade and 
roof covering, detailed solutions for this were 
developed. Based on these, the contractors 
granted a longer watertightness guarantee for 
the facades and wet seals than usual.

Contractors and suppliers working at the 
worksite totalled some 150 companies, and 
nearly 500 negotiations for contracts were 
held. The highest number of people work-
ing simultaneously on the worksite was 400. 
Some 2,300 access passes to the worksite 
were issued.

Finally, three contracts were awarded, to 
three constructor organisations, of which one 
was German. 

The experienced project organisation man-
aged the jigsaw puzzle, with each building 
being completed slightly ahead of schedule. 
The yard work will be fi nished during sum-
mer 2009.

major ProjecTS in 2008

Project Type Location Completion

HTC Keilaniemi Espoo 2008–2009

Shopping Centre TRIO, phases 1 and 2 Lahti 2008

King's Gate Porvoo 2008–2009

Tuupakka logistics centre Vantaa 2008

Nokia Kara Mid Point Espoo 2008

Flamingo Vantaa 2008

Hakaniemenranta 6* Helsinki 2008

Helsinki Music Centre Helsinki 2011

Stockmann, extension and alteration work* Helsinki 2010

Neste Oil, central laboratory Porvoo 2010

Kamppiparkki, car park and City service tunnel Helsinki 2009

Kerca Kerava 2009–

  Of fice     Commercial     Logistics     Hotel and spa     Cultural building     

  Laboratory     Rock construction     *renovation

buSineSS pReMiSeS   SRV AnnuAl RepoRt 2008
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long-term co-operation with clients con-
tinued. The second phase of Biomedicum was 
completed in the Meilahti district in Helsinki. 
For the university of Helsinki, SRV started up 
works on the second stage of renovations on 
the Metsätalo Building, the construction and 
renovation of Swedish School of Social Science 
and the renovation of the Institute of Dentistry. 
The second phase of the Trio shopping centre 
modernisation project was completed in 2008 
in lahti. 

The refurbishing of offices and the con-
struction of a new laboratory were started up 
for neste Oil at its Porvoo refinery.

In June, SRV and Autosalpa Oy signed their 
third contract agreement for the construction 
of a car dealership, this time in lahti. new 
projects were also initiated with Plantagen and 
Itella.

Kerca is kicked off  
with Anttila’s central  

warehouse
Construction of king’s gate in Porvoo con-

tinued, and etra Megacenter was completed 
for the etola group in early 2008. Retail 
premises for Plantagen will be completed in 
early 2009, along with a commercial building 
commissioned by Sjaelso Finland Oy. Stores in 
a commercial building shared by Vepsäläinen 
and koti-Idea opened their doors to customers 
at the beginning of October 2008. 

The construction of a commercial building  
in the northern wing of king’s gate began 
under SRV’s lead in April, to be completed in 
spring 2009. Most of the king’s gate premis-
es have been leased. SRV and retail players 
have now turned their attention to new plots. 
SRV is also focusing on STC king’s gate, 
which is being implemented in the king’s gate 
business park.

In hotel construction, SRV made a prelimi-
nary contract for the Holiday Club Saimaa spa 
hotel towards the end of the year.

 
logiSTicS ProjecTS
logistics projects comprise a significant 
share of SRV Business Premises’ operations. 
Preconstruction of the kerca logistics centre 
was started up in kerava at the beginning of 
the year. At the turn of 2008–2009, it was 

announced that Anttila will locate a central 
warehouse in kerca. Thanks to this, construc-
tion can begin. 

In December, SRV and Suomi Mutual life 
Assurance Company signed a project agree-
ment concerning STC Meiramitie, a logistics 
project to be implemented in the koivuhaka 
district of Vantaa. The project comprises an 
ensemble of four logistics facilities with a total 
floor area of some 10,700 square metres. They 
will be built on a plot acquired from the City of 
Vantaa. SRV’s STC – Smart Tech Center – con-
cept has been specially developed for SMes. 
STC users can efficiently integrate the high-
quality warehouse, production and office space 
they need for their business, all under one roof. 
STC Meiramitie is SRV’s fifth project in this 
district over the last few years.  

rock conSTrucTion
SRV’s rock construction operations remained 
brisk in 2008. Ongoing projects included the 
construction of the Helsinki City service tunnel 
and the enlargement of the kamppiparkki car 
park, which is SRV’s own project. The exten-
sive underground sections and new car park of 
Stockmann’s extension and alteration works 
dovetail well with SRV’s ongoing projects in 
the area. The etelä-Hermanni parking facil-
ity was completed towards the end of the 
year. Furthermore, a car park for 150 cars was 
started up in Viikki as a new project. The facil-
ity doubles as an air raid shelter for 3,100. SRV 
upgraded its rock construction equipment by 
acquiring a new drilling jumbo in the autumn. 
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SRV’s Housing business area focuses on 
the implementation of apartment houses 
in city centres and low-rise residential 

area projects in the Helsinki Metropolitan Area. 
In  Finland’s other major growth centres the 
regional units also build business premises. 
SRV’s regional companies operate in Tampere, 
Turku, Jyväskylä, lappeenranta and Joensuu. 
SRV Pohjois-Suomi went into business in 
March in Oulu. kimmo Hummasti was ap-
pointed as regional manager.

SRV Housing has 285 professionals in its 
employ.

As part of SRV’s renewal of its brand in 
spring 2008, SRV westerlund ltd was re-
named SRV Housing ltd and the names of the 
regional companies were standardised by pre-
fi xing them with SRV. At the end of the year, 
SRV kaakkois-Suomi ltd, SRV keski-Suomi 
ltd and SRV lounais-Suomi ltd were merged 
into SRV Housing ltd. The aim was to stream-
line the corporate structure and enable the 
fi nancing and implementation of large-scale 
projects. Rakennusliike Purmonen in Joensuu 
and Pirkanmaan Projektitoimi in Tampere re-
tained their old names. The arrangement was 
geared towards standardising systems and 
deploying the concepts developed throughout 
the company.

cuSTomer Service wiTh 
a PerSonal Touch
Customer service was the theme of the year 
in the Housing business area. SRV seeks to 
stand out from other contractors by providing 
service with a personal touch. The company 
invites its customers to take part in the proc-
ess at the earliest possible stage. SRV wants 
to make it easier for customers to have a say 
in both how alteration works are carried out 
and the choice of materials. During the con-
struction phase, the sites are included in the 
company’s co-operation with residents. Cus-
tomers have taken a great interest in this and 
have visited the worksites frequently, especial-
ly in the case of the more expensive projects.

SRV continued to develop tools to enable 
customers to infl uence the process. For in-
stance, customers can choose interior décor 
from a range of packaged options. The pilot 
site was Oscar, under construction in the lep-
päsuo district in the Helsinki city centre. 

HouSing

concePT develoPmenT
SRV has developed its own concepts also for 
residential construction, in order to ensure 
lower-cost design and top-notch implemen-
tation. The concepts involved defi ning struc-
tural solutions for diff erent types of housing 
projects.

energy-saving apartment houses will be 
launched under the apartment house concept. 
Heat recovery from utility water, for example, 
is being considered. energy consumption can 
also be reduced through ventilation solutions. 

Vallikallion Helmi: 
the quietest apartment 
house in espoo?

In Vallikallio, Espoo, near Ring Road I, SRV 
is currently constructing an apartment house 
whose wall is covered by a giant advertise-
ment stating that it is “The quietest house 
in Espoo”. Although this slogan was com-
posed by SRV’s housing sales, the construc-
tion permit already set certain restrictions 
on the building’s soundproofi ng. The house 
is located by the temporary interchange to 
Ringroad I. Some 66,000 vehicles drive by 
the house every day. However, once the road-
works are completed, all traffi  c and the relat-
ed noise will be transferred to a tunnel.

Design solutions aim to ensure that the 
required soundproofi ng levels are met. While 
standard solutions were found for windows, 
other structures are being developed by SRV 
in co-operation with designers and material 
suppliers.

Due to the heavy traffi  c, the building’s 
foundation is exceptionally strong on the 
bypass side and dimensioned to withstand a 
car colliding with the wall.

Such solutions can also be used in new 
projects. Traffi  c noise is no longer necessarily 
an obstacle to construction.

”In a challenging market 
situation, customers also 
benefi t from consistent 
ways of working and 
concepts.”

The houSing BuSineSS area waS 
STreamlined and unified when The 
comPany overhauled iTS Brand 
in 2008. The markeT had changed 
raPidly and The new Srv houSing 
adjuSTed iTS BuSineSS and ShifTed 
The focuS of iTS oPeraTionS 
from reSidenTial conSTrucTion 
To conTracTing and To BuSineSS 
PremiSeS and reBuilding in regional 
oPeraTionS. during The rePorT 
year, Srv houSing forged ahead 
wiTh honing iTS cuSTomer Service 
and concePTS, and SucceSSfully 
STePPed uP iTS regional oPeraTionS.

Juha-Veikko Nikulainen 
Executive Vice President
Housing

HouSing   SRV AnnuAl RepoRt 2008

19



Situational awaReneSS and 
gRowth in changing maRketS
When the housing market slackened, opera-
tions at certain worksites had to be slowed 
down at the end of the year. Nevertheless, 
construction at these sites will continue until a 
certain degree of completion is reached. This 
will enable the rapid start-up of these projects 
when the markets recover.

Sales of large family residences in particu-
lar were hit by the slowdown. Finnish family 
sizes have become smaller. This has increased 
demand for two-room apartments. However, 
zoning and parking regulations do not favour 
small apartments. Plans have been altered and 
large apartments subdivided into smaller ones 
at sites where this is possible. 

To reduce the impact of the subdued hous-
ing market, SRV has also rented out its unsold 
residences. Some twenty units were rented 
out during the report year, mainly large family 
apartments in terraced houses. Furthermore, 
sales of residences have been facilitated by 
putting the old apartments of homebuyers up 
for sale through Huoneistokeskus at no cost to 
the home owner. 

After the slackening off in residential con-
struction, operations have been shifted to 
other projects. SRV Housing has participated 
more actively in competitive bidding. SRV has 
also tendered to build homes for the elderly, 
fire stations and daycare centres during the 
report year.

In the near future, SRV will invest in rebuild-
ing and renovation. The main focus is on the 
renovation of housing. Municipalities are in a 

hurry to renovate schools and daycare centres 
before the next upswing begins.

SRV’s regional operations have seen sub-
stantial growth. In 2008, regional operations 
generated more revenue than residential con-
struction in the Helsinki Metropolitan Area. 
The results have shown that SRV has selected 
the right cities as its strategic focuses in re-
gional operations. This could enable SRV’s 
regional offices to rise into the ranks of the top 
five local players. In regional operations the 
main focus shifted during the report year from 
housing production to the construction of 
business premises and competitive contracting 
projects.

 
adjuSting opeRationS 
Due to plummeting demand in the housing 
market, SRV Housing considered cutting per-
sonnel in the Helsinki Metropolitan Area for 
reasons of economy and production. Codeter-
mination negotiations were initiated in Novem-
ber and concluded at the beginning of Decem-
ber. During the negotiations, an SRV Employee 
Databank was developed in co-operation with 
Business Premises. This operating model aims 
to enable the Group’s other companies to use 
SRV Housing Ltd’s idle construction work-
ers and carpenters in lieu of leased labour. 
The negotiations resulted in the transfer of 
employees to Business Premises and pension 
arrangements, but layoffs and redundancies 
could not be entirely avoided. The arrange-
ments yielded cost savings equivalent to 
20–30 full-time posts.
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majoR pRojectS in 2008

Project Type Location Completion

Vallikallion Helmi in Espoo Espoo 2009

Oscar in Helsinki Helsinki 2009

VAV Rosendalinrinki Vantaa 2010

HOAS Pasteurinkatu 1 Helsinki 2010

Nilsiä Holiday Houses holiday village Nilsiä 2008

Valio, enlargement of chilled warehouse Jy väsk ylä 2009

Sports facilities Joutseno 2008

As. Oy Turun Perennakatu Turku 2009

Tietotie Upper Secondary School Valkeakoski 2009

As. Oy Villa Koskipuisto Oulu 2009

As. Oy Ylöjärven Sara and Santeri Ylöjärvi 2009

  Apartment house     Leisure home     Industrial     Sports facilities     Teaching facilities  

ShaRe of gRoup ReVenue

24%

33%
ShaRe of gRoup peRSonnel 31 dec

Personnel

2007: 257

2008: 285
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Asunto Oy Helsingin Töölön Oscar will be completed in autumn 2009. 
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INTER
NATIONAL

”Thanks to its construction 
experience in Russia 
and successful property 
development in Finland and 
the Baltic countries,  
SRV is well-poised to  
invest in Russia.”

SRV’S StRengthS in itS inteR-
national opeRationS aRe long 
expeRience and itS honed buSineSS 
conceptS, extenSiVe local 
netwoRkS and the willingneSS to 
inVeSt in pRopeRty pRojectS. SRV’S 
laRgeSt inVeStment in 2008 waS foR 
a multifunction aRea in centRal St 
peteRSbuRg.  

SRV International specialises in four 
sectors: commercial and multifunction 
premises, offices, hotels and logistics 

facilities. Russia is the geographical focus of 
operations. SRV International was reorganised 
in autumn 2008. The head of Russian opera-
tions reports directly to the Group’s president 
and CEO. The Baltic functions report to the 
head of SRV Business Premises. SRV Interna-
tional has 191 employees.

Construction in the Baltic countries has 
slowed down. However, SRV has a good stock 
of plots in that market and is preparing and 
developing projects for the next upswing. SRV 
takes a prudent approach to the start-up of 
new projects.

SRV’s business concept planning is highly 
evolved – indeed, this constitutes its key as-
set and competitive advantage in international 
projects. Through concept planning, SRV en-
sures that the project has sound commercial 
prospects, secures good tenants or end users, 
and guarantees good returns for investors.

inVeStoRS Reap long-teRm benefitS
SRV seeks to ensure that the final long-term 
owner of the property can count on it to gener-
ate the steadiest returns possible.  

Many of SRV’s western competitors are 
unwilling to invest in property development 
projects. By investing capital in a project, SRV 
firmly commits to it and the development of 
the attendant concept. In Russia, other west-
ern construction companies have mainly in-
vested in residential construction.

SRV has proven itself in large-scale shop-
ping centre and hotel projects in which, in its 
role as investor, it has also arranged financ-
ing. Thanks to these projects, SRV has forged 
good relationships with western investors that 
can be leveraged in Russian projects.

good local netwoRk
SRV always has a local partner on board all of 
its Russian projects to ensure that permit pro-
cesses and other official matters run smoothly. 
Although Russian legislation has been west-
ernised, the Russian way of dealing with the 
authorities can be extremely difficult for west-
erners, both in theory and practice. With local 
partners on board, it is easier to take care of the 
red tape – and to do so legally, as SRV requires. 

As in Finland, contracts for international 
projects are subject to absolute transparency. 
In Russia, especially, the history and back-
ground of the project are investigated prior to 
start-up. This bolsters international investors’ 
interest in the project.

Concept planning is entirely in SRV’s hands 
in all projects. Both the planning of project 
implementation and construction are carried 
out by local resources under SRV’s supervi-
sion. Implementation planning is carried out in 
compliance with international norms, adapt-
ing them to local practices. Energy and envi-
ronmental issues and a lifecycle perspective 
are prioritised. Compliance with international 
norms also ensures that international inves-
tors will be interested in projects over the long 
term.

SRV seeks to use as much local labour 
as possible. That said, every project is under 
Finnish management. SRV has been success-
ful in training and orienting Russian personnel 
to adopt the SRV Approach. Our goal is for 
Russian employees to whole-heartedly em-
brace SRV’s way of working, which puts the 
accent on independence and responsibility.

lOcatiOn

Phases OF renOVatiOn wOrk

renOVatiOn PeriOd

renOVated PuBlic Premises

hOtel rOOms tO Be renOVated 

mOre cOnFerence rOOms

restaurants

m2 tO Be renOVated

st PetersBurg

2

2007–2009

yes

190

yes

yes

10,500

hotel Pulkovskaya

Veli-matti kullas 
Executive Vice President
russia
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Septem City is a large-scale SRV development project in central St Petersburg. 
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etmia II will be completed in early 2009 in Moscow. 

22%
Share of grouP PerSonnel 31 dec

Personnel

2007: 114

2008: 191

major ProjecTS in 2008

Project Type Location 

Etmia II Moscow

Park Inn Pribaltiskaya* St Petersburg

Park Inn Pulkovskaya* St Petersburg

My tischi My tischi, Moscow district

Eurograd St Petersburg

Papulanniemi Vyborg

Septem City St Petersburg

  Of fice     Hotel     Commercial     Logistics     Residential     Teaching facilities     *renovation
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SRV’s operations in Russia focus on Mos-
cow, St Petersburg and ekaterinburg. 
The company keeps its eye on other 

regional centres, particularly for hotel con-
struction opportunities. The Russian economy 
has surged throughout the 2000s, even as the 
western economies have run into diffi  culties. 
Russia remains a growing market thanks to 
good domestic demand, although its property 
and construction markets have slackened on 
the heels of the global fi nancial crisis. Con-
struction volume decreased towards the end 
of the year. Construction costs have begun to 
decline and good resources are available.

At present, international investors are 
mainly interested in the Moscow and St Pe-
tersburg areas. High-quality offi  ces are still in 
short supply, but offi  ce prices have levelled out 
due to the fi nancial situation.

In Russia, SRV concentrates on developer 
contracting projects. Traditional invitations to 
tender are not sought actively. SRV mainly 
makes project management off ers to selected 
existing customers and parties for which it has 
carried out projects in Finland. 

Thanks to its long-term eff orts, SRV has 
an extensive subcontractor network in St Pe-
tersburg and Moscow. However, the size of the 
subcontracts into which projects are divided in 
Russia is usually not as small as in Finland.

The problem in Russia is that currency is 
escaping to the west, raising the price of mon-
ey in the country. On the upside, this improves 
the business potential of western companies 
in Russia. It is slightly easier to secure fi nanc-
ing from the west, where the interest rates are 
lower. 

SRV has 85 employees in St Petersburg 
and 40 in Moscow. 

The fi rst investments in SRV’s largest-ever 
project – Septem City in central St Peters-
burg – were made in December 2007. Further 
investments followed in 2008. SRV has in-
vested a total of euR 50 million in existing 
properties, which are leased out. According to 
the plans, the project will be implemented in 
no less than fi ve phases over a period of sev-
eral years. The planning of the fi rst phase will 
be started up once the zoning plan has been 
approved and the legal administrative arrange-
ments are in order. The project organisation 
was set up in 2008. 

In Mytischi in the Moscow region, the plans 
of the multifunction shopping centre have 
been revised and the project has been divided 
into two implementation phases due to the 
fi nancial situation. In 2008, the availability of 
infrastructure was ensured and the transfer 
of on-site municipal engineering was started 
up. negotiations with tenants are under way. 
numerous similar projects have been halted in 
Moscow, making it easier to attract good ten-
ants to Mytischi. 

The Shell & Core phase of the etmia offi  ce 
and carpark project in the centre of Moscow 
will be completed in early 2009. The expected 
move-in date for the fi rst tenants is in the 
spring. SRV aims to sell the property when it 
has been leased out and the registration proc-
ess has been completed. It is expected that 
this will be accomplished by the end of 2009.

SRV is developing over 100,000 square 
metres of Class A terminal and warehouse 
space on a 24.9-hectare plot north of the St 
Petersburg Ring Road.  SRV acquired agricul-
tural land in February 2008 and it has now 
been zoned for logistics facilities. The planning 
of the fi rst phase and negotiations are cur-
rently ongoing with numerous users.

In the summer, the 160-room Park Inn ho-
tel in ekaterinburg was sold to wenaas Hotel 
Russia A/S, which is part of the norwegian 
wenaas group. 

The fi rst phases of the renovation works at 
the Pulkovskaya and Pribaltiskaya Hotels op-
erated by the Rezidor group in St Petersburg 
were completed in April. In June, SRV signed 
agreements for further renovation works at 
the hotels.  

The fi rst apartment house in SRV’s only 
residential project – Papulanniemi, under con-
struction in Vyborg – was completed at the 
end of the year. The building was sold almost 
in its entirety to a norwegian company for use 
as apartments for employees of the Port of 
Vyborg. A decision will be made in 2009 on 
whether to start the second apartment house, 
depending on the market situation. 

when in Russia

The offi  ce and car park building Etmia II, 
whose construction in the centre of Moscow 
began in spring 2007, will be completed in 
early 2009. The business centre will host A+ 
offi  ces, retail premises and a multi-storey 
parking building for 165 cars. On the adjacent 
plot stands the Etmia I building, constructed 
by SRV in 2002.

In Russia, a construction project advances 
slowly through the various stages of bureauc-
racy. To obtain a construction permit for 
Etmia, a total of 248 stamps and signatures 
were required. Russian projects are generally 
composed of fewer but larger elements than 
Finnish ones. In the case of Etmia, all con-
tractors and materials were local or, at least, 
obtained through locals. These days, you 
can no longer see columns of Finnish trucks 
entering Russian construction sites. During 
the project, problems occurred in the supply 
of some materials and once in a while we saw 
stupendous price rises.

A frequent challenge when working with 
Russian contractors lies in the manageability 
of the schedule. Not everyone respects set 
schedules all of the time: if deadlines are not 
observed, a new schedule is simply drawn 
up. At the turn of the year 2009, the project 
is undergoing the approval process. This will 
also take time and will require a huge amount 
of red tape.

Share of grouP revenue

11%

inteRnAtionAl   SRV AnnuAl RepoRt 2008
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The construction of the kerca logistics area will begin with Anttila’s central warehouse. kerca is a joint project of SRV and the City of kerava. 
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About srv business AreAs corporAte 
responsibility personnel corporAte 
sAfety environment responsibility 
corporAte governAnce
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persoNNeL

”A wide range of 
challenging tasks for 
professionals.”

srV is an expert organisation staff ed by 
specialists in various construction trades, 
from project developers to project direc-

tors. srV had 870 people on its payroll at the 
end of 2008. srV seeks to hone the skills of 
its employees through training and spurs them 
to pull together, one for all.

orientation helps Unite srV
srV enlarged its business operations and per-
sonnel strength in 2008, which increased the 
need for orientation and training. Job orienta-
tion is one of the core tasks of srV’s human 
resources function. srV considers it especially 
important to provide orientation on actual job 
tasks. The work communities are in charge of 
such orientation. in 2008, srV overhauled its 
orientation programme and sought to bolster 
its image as a unifi ed company. 

Orientation that encompasses srV’s ser-
vice range from end to end has been shown to 
increase personnel commitment and aware-
ness of in-house job opportunities. 

in 2008, international operations were 
also included in the scope of orientation. Two 
training events were held in Finland for srV’s 
foreign employees. Personal training was ar-
ranged for executives. a great deal of positive 
feedback was received on joint orientation and 
training events that gave an overview of the 
whole group. People from both russia and es-
tonia visited srV to acquaint themselves with 
its operations and worksites in 2008.

in other personnel training activities, srV 
continued to develop core skills. For instance, 
language lessons, training in contract law, and 
occupational safety training, including fi rst aid 
and occupational safety card courses, were 
organised for hundreds of people in diff erent 
business areas. 

as in earlier years, srV co-operated in 
vocational training with rateko, the Training 
Centre of the Construction industry. 

FroM a trainee to a proFessional
in 2008, srV engaged in diverse co-operation 
with vocational polytechnics and universities 
to ensure the future availability of labour. The 
company participated in recruitment events 
at trade fairs and vocational education insti-
tutions, and supported student associations 
and guilds. srV off ered students a variety of 

job tasks and opportunities for completing a 
diploma or thesis. srV’s in-house experts lec-
tured at universities, presenting the company’s 
operations.

srV is well-known among students. in 
spring 2008, srV received more than 600 
summer job applications. seven per cent more 
summer trainees were hired than in the previ-
ous year. 

srV wants to provide continuity to the best 
students in the fi eld. Future experts oft en start 
their careers in a hard hat, serving as trainees 
at construction sites. aft er completing their 
theses, they join srV as permanent employ-
ees. srV seeks to retain good employees. The 
company has been very successful in this ef-
fort. a growing number of students either stay 
on with the company or join its payroll later, 
such as aft er completing a trainee period.

Being proaCtiVe to iMproVe 
oCCUpational wellBeing
srV’s occupational healthcare services took a 
proactive stance in 2008. For instance, occu-
pational healthcare staff  made frequent visits 
to workplaces and the safety and health com-
mittees convened many times. regular occu-
pational health inspections served as the basis 

srV's eMploYees are aMong the Best 
in the BUsiness. in 2008, srV FoCUsed 
on proViding JoB orientation and 
BreaKing down Barriers Between 
BUsiness areas. open Co-operation 
inCreased personnel CoMMitMent and 
MoBilitY within the groUp.

SRV’s values

  Responsibility
  Open co-operation
  Bold in development
  Enthusiasm for doing

Pirjo Ahanen 
Senior Vice President, HR
SRV

28

srV AnnuAl report 2008   personnel



for occupational fitness index measurements. 
The results were excellent. 

in 2008, srV developed an occupational 
healthcare model that improves its ability to 
respond to changes in the life circumstances 
of employees, such as illness. in the new 
model, an occupational healthcare representa-
tive, the employee and his or her supervisor 
jointly think about ways of reorganising the 
employee’s duties on the basis of his or her 
initiative. This practice aims at openness and is 
based on mutual trust. it encourages everyone 
to proactively seek solutions for maintaining 

occupational fitness.
in order to foster occupational wellbeing 

and health, srV has developed a new early-
intervention model that spurs employees to 
be proactive. The model encourages personnel 
to bring problems – such as intoxicant abuse 
– to the company’s attention so that help can 
be provided at the earliest stage possible. The 
feedback has been good.   

srV handed out a record number of fit-
ness vouchers to its personnel in 2008. The 
aslak rehabilitation programme, which sup-
ports occupational fitness, also yielded excel-

lent results. The company organised a post-
rehabilitation follow-up event. The participants 
met with their supervisors to discuss means of 
developing their work communities. 

Challenging and rewarding 
international operations
srV international’s growth posed many new 
challenges to human resources. in the past, 
srV engaged in project exports that were 
short in duration and carried out by Finnish 
personnel. The company now has long-term 
worksites employing both Finns and locals. 

personnel   srV AnnuAl report 2008
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employment contracts and terms always com-
ply with local laws and regulations. 

The need for local and permanent employ-
ment agreements has increased in step with 
the growth in construction operations. In 
2008, SRV made more agreements to post 
employees abroad than earlier.  

SRV pondered the effects of different work 
cultures and management practices on the 
group’s business. Co-operation was stepped 
up to lower the barriers between subsidiaries 
and to unite personnel under the SRV brand. 
The comparison and evaluation of Finnish and 
foreign management practices as well as work 
and personnel processes got off to a good 
start.  

SRV organised a Russia Day at its head-
quarters in espoo in September 2008. At 
the event, the company’s local management 
shared its experiences of Russian sites and for-
eign posting practices. The briefing aimed to 
present international work opportunities and 
promote personnel mobility within the group. 
Over the next few years, experts will more 
frequently be sent abroad under permanent 
contracts rather than to work on fixed-term 
projects.

a flaT organiSaTion 
ProvideS oPPorTuniTieS
SRV’s flat organisation enables it to maintain 
its flexibility in a variety of circumstances, but 
requires personnel to take personal respon-
sibility and have trust in each other and the 
company. Decision-making is fast because 
there are few steps in between. Personnel are 
widely aware of the company’s shared goals 
and information is disseminated effectively, 
both in internal and external communications. 
Massive subcontractor networks are involved 
in large-scale projects, which sets great 
demands on project management. Operational 
flexibility is even more important in a challeng-
ing market situation. 

The construction industry was not spared 
from the impacts of the rapid weakening of the 
global economy in 2008. Consequently, SRV 
Housing initiated codetermination negotiations 
at the end of the year. SRV was able to trans-
fer many employees to positions in other busi-
ness functions, but layoffs and redundancies 
could not be entirely avoided.  

maTrix organiSaTion increaSeS 
oPenneSS and efficiency
In 2008, SRV adopted a matrix organisation 
and concept teams in both Finland and inter-
national operations. This overhaul seeks to 
eliminate barriers to co-operation and promote 
openness between the business areas.  

As a matrix organisation, SRV draws on the 
group’s pool of human resources, primarily in 
production, cost accounting and procurements. 
A variety of working groups evaluate how per-
sonnel can best be utilised in different market 
situations to ensure that everyone benefits. 

with its motivated employees, SRV deliv-
ers on its customer and brand promise – Con-
structively Different. SRV is an expert organi-
sation whose success is based on strategic 
specialist expertise that sets it apart from its 
competitors. 

hr policy puts the accent on development and 
self-improvement: 

 f active participation improves occupational 
well-being

 f from project exports to international 
operations

 f new matrix organisation ensures that 
resources are used effectively

 f flat organisation encourages personnel to 
take responsibility

Key figures 2008 2007 change, % 

Average number of employees 871 761 14

Employees at 31 December 870 752 16

Permanently employed 787 686 15

Women, % 20 19

Number of employees by business area 
31 December 2008 2007 change, % 

Business Premises 296 295 0

Housing 285 257 11

International 191 114 67

Other 98 86 14

Total      870 752 16

Salaried employees: 600

Workers: 270

Total: 870

Salaried emPloyeeS/workerS

Business Premises: 34 

Housing: 33

International: 22

O ther: 11

PerSonnel By BuSineSS area, %
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coRPoRAte 
SAfetY

The aim of Srv’S SafeTy and SecuriTy 
acTiviTieS iS To imProve Produc-
TiviTy and enSure comPeTiTiveneSS. 
key meaSureS in 2008 included 
The creaTion of an elecTronic Srv 
neTwork regiSTer and inveSTing in 
on-SiTe fall PrevenTion.

The success of safety and security ac-
tivities requires the commitment of our 
own personnel, subcontractors and the 

future users of premises to the safety and 
security practices in force and their system-
atic development. Compliance with rules and 
regulations is monitored relentlessly on our 
worksites. Furthermore, co-operation with 
various authorities and the use of technical 
tools and monitoring devices contribute to the 
prevention of accidents and theft .

SRV’s corporate safety and security activi-
ties establish the foundation for safeguard-
ing disturbance-free operations. The purpose 
of safety and security activities is to protect 
personnel, data, assets, the environment and 
the reputation of SRV and its contractors and 
customers against accidents and criminal ac-
tivities. Corporate safety and security is organ-
ised as part of SRV’s risk management activi-
ties, which are headed by the Senior executive 
Vice President. The continuous development 
of safety and security are the responsibility of 
the Safety Manager, to whom the persons in 
charge of safety measures in the various busi-
ness areas report.

On SRV’s worksites, particular attention 
is paid to safety and tidiness, since this is a 
way of promoting safety, quality and prof-
its. TR-measurements indicating the level of 
occupational safety in construction are con-
ducted regularly on SRV’s worksites: a total of 
2,593 such measurements were conducted in 
2008. At group level, the TR-measurement 
results averaged 94.8 (the maximum being 
100), rising slightly on the previous year. Dur-
ing 2008, a total of 20 accidents occurred on 
SRV worksites, of which 13 concerned sub-
contractors’ personnel. However, no fatal in-
juries occurred on SRV’s worksites, and cases 
requiring offi  cial investigation numbered four. 
SRV has redoubled its eff orts to promote the 
self-assessment of risks with regard to each 
subcontract.

All measurement results (TR-measure-
ments for construction, MVR-measurements 
for civil engineering), accidents and distur-
bances such as burglaries, theft s and envi-
ronmental complaints are recorded in the SRV 
Safety surveillance system. Surveillance aims 
to prevent risks and further improve the devel-
opment of occupational safety.

Personal protective equipment is continu-
ously developing. nowadays, it is easy to use, 
its use is carefully monitored and there is a low 
threshold to intervening in problem cases.

Furthermore, SRV organises safety train-
ing for subcontractors’ personnel. As a result 
of this training, the number of accidents has 
continuously decreased.

SRV and its construction clients operate a 
joint Safety Support group, in order to proac-
tively monitor and support the management 
and identifi cation of safety risks on all major 
worksites. Safety and security is also being 
intensively developed in SRV’s international 
operations. SRV participates actively in the 
work of organisations in its own industry and 
in the security fi eld, notably the Confederation 
of Finnish Industries ek/Board of Corporate 
Security, the Confederation of Finnish Con-
struction Industries RT/Safety experts, on the 
Management group of the RaTuke project, in 
FinnSecurity ry and in ASIS Finland.

The largest project in 2008 was the devel-
opment of the electronic SRV network Reg-
ister. The register helps to track the subcon-
tractors' backgrounds and to improve SRV's 
processes. The register gives better tools to 
fulfi l the requirements set by the Act on the 
Contractor’s Obligations and liability when 
work is contracted out on SRV's sites. This 
effi  cient register benefi ts everyone; SRV, cli-
ents and government. Orientation and contrac-
tor data are entered, and offi  cial documents 
are scanned, into SRV’s system. The network 
register is linked to SRV’s subcontractor regis-
ter. Furthermore, SRV aims at more open and 
proactive co-operation with the authorities. 
Reports required for taxation, for instance, are 
obtained directly from the system. The net-
work register is in use on the Helsinki Music 
Centre and Stockmann worksites and in other 
new projects.

In 2008, a special focus was placed on 
fall-prevention equipment and the prevention 
of falling injuries, since falls are still the most 
frequent type of accident in the construction 
industry. Together, SRV and protective equip-
ment suppliers have developed equipment and 
devices used in fall prevention. new guards, in-
cluding a skirting board, are easy to install and 
prevent both objects and people from falling.

REMEMBER

HARD HATTHE
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enViRonMent

in 2008, Srv PuBliShed a new 
environmenTal Policy for The 
whole grouP. ThiS Policy commiTS 
Srv To SuSTainaBle develoPmenT 
and rePorTing on The environ-
menTal imPacT of iTS oPeraTionS. 

in 2008, SRV confi rmed environmental 
targets for its operations by adopting a new 
environmental policy. The policy aims to 

improve competitiveness through the devel-
opment of the company’s operations and by 
anticipating new environmental regulations 
and the demands of the industry. 

SRV’s environmental responsibility ex-
tends beyond its own operations to those of 
its subcontractors. Major direct environmental 
impacts are due to construction wastes and 
the eff ects of worksites on their surrounding 
environment. Such eff ects include dust, noise 
and vibration. SRV seeks to reduce the amount 
of mixed construction waste generated at 
worksites in particular, and to recycle it more 
effi  ciently. waste management was upgraded 
in 2008 alongside environmental mainte-
nance company lassila & Tikanoja, which also 
trained SRV employees on how to sort and 
process waste at worksites. 

SRV also seeks to reduce environmental 
impacts through logistics solutions. Hitch-free 
goods deliveries cut down on material wastage 
and transport emissions.

The environmental manager is responsible 
for the environmental policy at group level. 
within the subsidiaries, environmental offi  -
cers assume responsibility in the project de-
sign and implementation phases. In addition, 
SRV appoints an on-site environmental offi  cer 
for each project. 

more from leSS
SRV gets to grips with material effi  ciency at 
an early stage in order to minimise material 
wastage. Material effi  ciency plays a key role in 
project design and procurements. 

In 2008, SRV launched an overhaul of its 
procurement documentation in order to ensure 
the achievement of the objectives set for pro-
curements in the environmental policy. Tenders 
and agreements include obligations concern-
ing both the standard of the subcontractor’s 
environmental activities and the materials and 
products to be used. 

At the beginning of 2009, the group will 
launch an extensive research project to im-
prove the eco-effi  ciency of SRV’s products. 
The preliminary project study, 'The major im-
pacts of climate and energy issues on SRV’s 
operations', was draft ed in 2008. 

lifecycle PerSPecTive reduceS 
environmenTal imPacTS
SRV employs an environmental reporting sys-
tem to track the amounts of waste generated 
on sites. Contractors feed data on matters 
such as waste amounts, their recycling rate 
and waste transport distances into the report-
ing system. energy and water consumption 
data is managed with the same system. This 
data is fed in by the on-site environmental 
offi  cer. The system was overhauled in 2008, 
making it easier to track environmental per-
formance indicators. 

At the end of the year, 65 per cent of SRV’s 
sites in Finland reported the amount of waste 
generated on site. The amount totalled 7,041 
tonnes. The recycling rate was 84 per cent (81 
per cent in 2007).

SRV’s environmental responsibility is also 
refl ected in the quality of construction and 
the company’s lifecycle perspective. The com-
pany reduces the environmental burden by, 
for instance, ensuring that its projects are in 
locations with good access to public transport 
and that they promote closer-knit community 
structures, can be modifi ed, are energy ef-
fi cient and have a long service life. Building in 
city centres reduces the burden on the environ-
ment: in close-knit communities, housing and 
services are close to each other and people 
do not need to drive as much, reducing traffi  c 
emissions.

MORE

!RECYCLING

Reclaimed: 84%

L andf ill: 16%

reclaiming of waSTe
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ReSPonSi-
bilitY

Srv’S oPeraTional model foSTerS 
oPenneSS and BoldneSS. Shared 
valueS, high-caliBre ProfeSSion-
aliSm and roBuST exPerTiSe enSure 
ThaT everyone aT Srv PlayS By The 
Same ruleS.

SRV’s goals for responsibility are based 
on the company’s values, professional 
skills and long-term expertise. SRV is a 

forerunner in bearing responsibility not only 
for its own personnel, but also for investors, 
end clients, partners, subcontractors and 
owners.  SRV always seeks to comply with 
sound ethical guidelines and to shoulder its 
responsibilities towards all its stakeholders. In 
the construction business, SRV is renowned 
for its progressive approach to occupational 
safety and the transparency of its operations. 
SRV has won the worksite of the year award 
numerous times.

a healThy and Safe 
working environmenT
SRV takes care of its personnel through well-
run work communities, safe worksites and the 
development of both interaction and person-
nel expertise. Particular attention is paid to 
good supervisory practices. The company has 
a zero-tolerance policy towards harassment, 
discrimination and bullying in the workplace. 

Management and personnel pull together to 
ensure occupational well-being. This fosters a 
balanced and safe working environment where 
personnel thrive and enjoy their work. Person-
nel must feel at ease in the working communi-
ty. Tasks should be commensurate to the skills 
of each employee, both in terms of workload 
and demands.

cuSTomer SaTiSfacTion iS our goal
SRV’s projects are always planned and pre-
pared by the best professionals. This ensures 
that the invested capital is employed responsi-
bly and eff ectively from the viewpoint of both 
the investors and users. All contract and pro-
curement agreements are draft ed in accor-
dance with joint agreement models. The 
group’s internal control is eff ective. This is 
vital for the transparency and reliability of 
operations. 

Seeking joinT BenefiTS
SRV is a major employer in its industry and 
thus a signifi cant player in society. SRV sub-
divides projects into small sections, providing 
work for many construction fi rms and small 
entrepreneurs. SRV obligates all of its subcon-
tractors to commit to the company’s values 

and to operate under its supervision. Through 
its transparent operations, SRV plays its part 
in taking care of its social responsibilities, such 
as thwarting the grey economy. 

SRV’s operations hinge on a well-oiled 
network of subcontractors and partners. The 
company off ers continuity and deeper co-
operation to professional, cost-eff ective and 
fl exible fi rms. Aft er a long development proc-
ess, SRV has completed an electronic network 
register for recording data on the company’s 
own processes and its subcontractors and 
partners. This register also serves to upgrade 
operational effi  ciency. 

SRV aims to take care of the environment 
by minimising environmental impacts, both 
those of its own operations and over the entire 
lifecycle of its construction projects. The com-
pany makes a concerted eff ort to develop new 
methods that impose a smaller burden on the 
environment. To reduce the environmental im-
pacts of traffi  c, SRV develops and builds effi  -
cient logistics facilities. In its housing projects, 
SRV ensures that the buildings are located 
close to good traffi  c connections.

Solvency reflecTS The comPany’S 
financial reSPonSiBiliTy 
SRV safeguards the continuity of its opera-
tions by ensuring that it remains solvent and 
in good fi nancial shape. The group has a lean 
organisation, enabling it to react and change 
its operations rapidly in step with the demands 
of the market. 

responsibility benefi ts everyone:

 f exemplary construction safety
 f The best experts and experience guaran-

tee financial success
 f Transparent practices to benefit society as 

a whole

Ethical guidelines

Key to success
Be frank and professional. 
Share your expertise with others. 
Be open.

Key to continuity
Be reliable and fair. 
Respect and value your colleagues. 
Be trustworthy.

Key to responsibility
Comply with offi cial regulations. 
Be honest and set an example.
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coRPoRAte 
goVeRnAnce SRV group Plc’s corporate governance 

system is based on Finnish legislation 
and the company’s Articles of Associa-

tion. SRV group Plc’s shares are listed on the 
Helsinki Stock exchange and the company 
observes the rules and regulations concerning 
listed companies that have been issued by the 
exchange. In addition, the company’s Board of 
Directors has ratified SRV group’s Corporate 
governance guidelines, which comply with the 
Finnish Corporate governance Code for listed 
companies which entered into force on 1 Janu-
ary 2009.  

adminiSTraTive BodieS
The administration, management and supervi-
sion of SRV group Plc are divided between the 
general Meeting of Shareholders, the Board 
of Directors and the president. The company’s 
senior management is responsible for the 
internal audit, while the external audit is car-
ried out by auditors. The president attends 
to line operations, with the assistance of the 
Corporate executive Team.

general meeTing
The general Meeting of Shareholders is SRV 
group Plc’s highest decision-making body. 
each SRV share confers its holder with the 
right to one vote at a general Meeting.

general Meetings are convened by the 
Board of Directors. A notice of a general Meet-
ing is published in one nationwide newspaper 
no earlier than three months and no later 
than 17 days before the meeting. The notice 
is also published on the company’s Internet 
site. Shareholders who are registered in the 
company’s shareholder list ten days before the 
general Meeting have the right to participate. 
In order to participate in a general Meeting, a 
shareholder must notify the company of his 
or her intention to attend no later than the 
date mentioned in the notice, which may be no 
earlier than 10 days before the meeting. An ex-
traordinary general Meeting shall be held when 
the Board of Directors deems it necessary or 
when required by law.  

Meetings shall deal with the matters speci-
fied in the Articles of Association as being the 
business of Annual general Meetings. These 
matters include taking decisions on issues 
such as the election of Board members, the 

chairman of the Board, the auditor and deputy 
auditor, their remuneration, the adoption of 
the financial statements and consolidated 
financial statements, release of the Board 
members and president from liability and the 
disposal of profits shown in the balance sheet. 
The general Meeting may also deal with other 
matters specified in the Companies Act as 
being the business of general Meetings, such 
as increases or decreases in the share capital, 
the issuance of new shares, buyback of shares, 
and amendments to the Articles of Associa-
tion. In addition, the general Meeting will deal 
with matters included on the agenda by share-
holders, as set out in the Companies Act. 

The president, the chairman of the Board 
and a sufficient number of Board members 
shall attend general Meetings in order to 
ensure that the shareholders and the admin-
istrative bodies of the company can interact 
and shareholders can exercise their right to 
ask questions. A person who is proposed as 
a Board member for the first time shall par-
ticipate in the general Meeting deciding on his 
or her membership, unless there are weighty 
reasons for his or her absence.

Board of direcTorS
SRV group Plc’s Board of Directors comprises 
five to eight members who are elected by the 
general Meeting. The general Meeting elects 
one member of the Board as the chairman 
of the Board. The Board of Directors elects 
the vice chairman from amongst its number. 
The term of office of a Board member begins 
at the general Meeting at which he or she 
was elected and ends at the close of the next 
Annual general Meeting. The Board of Direc-
tors evaluates the independence of its mem-
bers and announces which of the members of 
the Board have been deemed independent of 
the company and its major shareholders. 

The general Meeting of 14 April 2008 
elected five members to the Board of Direc-
tors. Personal information on Board members 
is presented on page 41 and their holdings are 
disclosed on page 39. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for 
the administration of the company and the due 
organisation of its operations. In addition to 
the tasks set forth in the Companies Act, the 
Board of Directors approves the company’s 
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vision, mission and values as well as ratifying 
the strategies, budgets and business plans 
set to achieve them. Furthermore, the Board 
of Directors appoints the president and both 
directs and oversees his work. The Board of 
Directors ensures the functionality of the com-
pany’s management system and approves its 
principles of risk management and internal 
control. The Board of Directors also decides 
on matters that have a significant bearing on 
operations, such as key investments and com-
mitments, acquisitions of companies and busi-
ness functions as well as the compensation of, 
and incentive schemes for, line management 
and personnel.

The Board of Directors has prepared writ-
ten standing orders for itself, specifying the 
key tasks and operating principles of the Board 
and its chairman. The chairman of the Board 
ensures and supervises that the Board dis-
charges the tasks set for it under legislation 
and the Articles of Association.  

The Board of Directors meets regularly as 
determined in the meeting schedule, which is 
confirmed in advance, and also when neces-
sary. The Board of Directors has a quorum 
when more than half of its members are 
present and one of them is the chairman or 
the vice chairman. 

The Board of Directors conducts an annual 
assessment of its activities and working pro-
cedures. 

The Board of Directors convened 16 times in 
2008. On average, 92.2% of the Board mem-
bers attended meetings of the Board.  

Board commiTTeeS
The Board of Directors has decided to estab-
lish two committees: an Audit Committee and 
a nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
The committees function in accordance with 
the rules of procedure confirmed by the Board 
of Directors and they report on their work to 
the Board. The committees do not have inde-
pendent decision-making power. Their task 
is to prepare matters for consideration by the 
Board of Directors and the general Meeting.

audiT commiTTee
The Audit Committee deals with matters con-
cerning the company’s financial reporting and 
monitoring. It assists the company’s Board of 

Directors by monitoring and overseeing the 
company’s financial situation and reporting as 
well as by ensuring that the monitoring of the 
company’s accounting and handling of funds, 
internal control, risk management, audit and 
the company’s operations have been arranged 
in compliance with the legislation and regula-
tions in force and the decisions of the compa-
ny’s Board of Directors. In addition, the Audit 
Committee prepares the election of the auditor 
for presentation to the general Meeting.
    The Audit Committee comprises members 
whom the Board of Directors elects from 
amongst its number. Due to the structure and 
small size of the company’s Board of Direc-
tors, there are two members on the Audit 
Committee, one of whom might be considered 
non-independent of the company, contrary to 
Sections 25 and 26 of the Corporate gover-
nance Code for listed companies (number and 
independence of Audit Committee members). 
Taking into account the education, experience 
and other expertise of this elected member, he 
can be considered suitable for the task in hand 
and there is no reason to question his ability to 
carry out his duties appropriately.  

In 2008, the Audit Committee was chaired 
by Matti Mustaniemi, and Markku Sarkamies 
was a member. Of the members, Matti Mus-
taniemi is independent of the company and its 
major shareholders. The Audit Committee met 
four times during 2008. Attendance of meet-
ings was 100%.

nominaTion and remuneraTion 
commiTTee
The nomination and Remuneration Commit-
tee prepares matters concerning the election 
and remuneration of members of the Board 
of Directors and its chairman, for presenta-
tion to the general Meeting. In addition, the 
committee considers matters relating to the 
nomination and compensation of management 
as well as the remuneration and incentives of 
personnel.

The nomination and Remuneration Com-
mittee comprises members elected by the 
Board of Directors from amongst their 
number. The Committee’s chairman in 2008 
was Ilpo kokkila and the members were Jukka 
Hienonen and lasse kurkilahti. Of the mem-
bers, Jukka Hienonen and lasse kurkilahti 

are independent of the company and its major 
shareholders.

The nomination and Remuneration Com-
mittee met four times during 2008. Attend-
ance of meetings was 100%.

Board of direcTorS’ remuneraTion
The general Meeting confirms the remunera-
tion of members of the Board of Directors 
annually. The Annual general Meeting held 
on 14 April 2008 decided on the following 
monthly fees: euR 5,000 for the chairman of 
the Board, euR 4,000 for the vice chairman 
and euR 3,000 for other Board members. In 
addition, it was decided that members would 
be paid euR 500 for meetings of the Board of 
Directors and the committees.

 
The total remuneration of the Board members 
for 2008 amounted to:

 
Member of Board EUR
Ilpo Kokkila, Chairman of the Board 70,500 

Lasse Kurkilahti, Vice Chairman of the Board  58,000 

Jukka Hienonen 46,500

Matti Mustaniemi 44,500

Markku Sarkamies 44,000

Total      263,500         

PreSidenT
The president is in charge of the company’s 
line operations and day-to-day administration. 
He is accountable to the Board of Directors for 
the achievement of the goals, plans, policies 
and objectives set by the Board of Directors. 
The president ensures that the company's 
book-keeping complies with the applicable law 
and that the management of funds is handled 
in a reliable manner. He prepares matters for 
consideration by the Board of Directors and 
carries out the decisions of the Board. The 
president also serves as the chairman of the 
Corporate executive Team. The Board of Direc-
tors appoints and dismisses the president and 
the executive vice presidents.

The president of SRV group Plc is eero 
Heliövaara, M.Sc. (eng., econ.). The senior 
executive vice presidents of SRV group Plc are 
Timo nieminen, M.Sc. (eng.), and Hannu lin-
noinen, M.Sc. (econ., ll M). The president’s 
deputy is Timo nieminen. Personal informa-
tion on the president and senior executive vice 
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presidents is presented on page 42 and their 
holdings are disclosed on page 39. 

 
corPoraTe execuTive Team
The Corporate executive Team assists the 
president in planning operations and in line 
management as well as preparing matters for 
consideration by the parent company’s Board 
of Directors. 

The Corporate executive Team comprises 
the group’s president as chairman, the presi-
dent’s deputy (vice chairman), the senior ex-
ecutive vice president, CFO, the executive vice 
presidents in charge of Business Premises, 
Housing and SRV International, the chief le-
gal counsel, and the senior vice presidents in 
charge of Financial Administration, HR, and 
Communications and Marketing. The vice 
president in charge of Development Affairs 
acts as the secretary of the Corporate execu-
tive Team.  

Personal information on the Corporate ex-
ecutive Team members is presented on pages 
42 and 43 and their holdings are disclosed on 
page 39.

managemenT comPenSaTion and 
TermS of The PreSidenT'S conTracT 
The company’s Board of Directors decides on 
the terms of employment of the president and 
members of the Corporate executive Team and 
their other compensation. 

The president's contractual period of notice 
is six months. If SRV group Plc dismisses the 
president, he is entitled to receive termination 
compensation amounting to six months’ to-
tal pay (excluding possible bonuses) over and 
above his salary for the period of notice. If the 
president is dismissed before 1 January 2010, 
an additional amount equal to six month’s pay 
must also be paid as termination compensa-
tion. If the company dismisses the president 
due to a change of ownership, the president is 
entitled to receive termination compensation 
amounting to 12 months’ pay over and above 
his salary for the period of notice. The presi-
dent’s retirement age and pension are set in 
accordance with the legislation in force.

President eero Heliövaara owns 1,909,483 
SRV group Plc shares, of which he has the 
right to sell 438,154 shares as from 1 January 
2008 and the remaining 1,471,329 shares as 
from 1 January 2010. In addition, if the com-
pany dismisses the president before 1 January 
2010, he shall have the right to sell the shares 
he owns immediately.

Performance BonuS SchemeS
The company's management is covered by 
the group's bonus scheme, which is decided 
on annually. The amount of the performance 

bonuses paid depends on the group's result, 
the result of the business area and personal 
performance. The Board of Directors approves 
the principles of the performance bonus 
scheme and the bonuses to be paid for one 
year at a time. The bonus that is paid may not 
exceed three months' salary. 

SRV group Plc’s Board of Directors has rati-
fied the principles of the equity bonus scheme 
for key employees in 2008–2010. The Board 
of Directors approves the criteria and targets 
of the bonus scheme annually. equity bonuses 
may not exceed 12 months' salary. Shares 
received under the scheme are subject to a 
lockup agreement that is in effect until the end 
of the calendar year in which two years have 
elapsed since the shares were earned. The 
equity bonus targets set by the Board of Direc-
tors for 2008 were not achieved and no equity 
bonuses were paid for the year.

In addition, one of the business area ex-
ecutive vice presidents has an agreement 
concerning the share incentive in accordance 
with which he has the right to an equity bonus 
based on the trend in the value of the compa-
ny’s share during 2006–2013. The maximum 
total bonus for 2010–2013 is 100,000 shares, 
of which 25,000 shares per year, at the most. 
The company’s Board of Directors decides 
whether the equity bonus will be paid in shares 
or as an equivalent cash payment.

SalarieS and comPenSaTion Paid 
By Srv To The PreSidenT and The 
corPoraTe execuTive Team 

2008 EUR

Regular salary including fringe benefits 

President and CEO 279,749

Other Corporate Executive Team members 1,168,321

Bonuses paid 

President and CEO 62,618

Other Corporate Executive Team members 200,241

Total

President and CEO 342,367

Other Corporate Executive Team 1,368,562

Share ownerShiP of The PerSonnel
In autumn 2005, SRV Henkilöstö ltd, a per-
sonnel fund, directed a share issue at the per-
sonnel and members of the Board of Directors 
of SRV group with the purpose of building the 
personnel’s commitment to the company’s 
long-term objectives. In connection with the 
listing of SRV group Plc in 2007, SRV Hen-
kilöstö ltd merged into SRV group Plc and 
its shareholders received new SRV group Plc 
shares as a merger consideration. The merger 
consideration was determined on the basis 
of the listing price such that for each SRV 
Henkilöstö ltd. share owned, the shareholder 

received about 16.33 SRV group Plc shares.  
According to the merger plan, ownership 

of SRV group Plc shares received as a merger 
consideration has been tied to the continuation 
of the employment relationship, and transfer 
of the shares has been limited such that the 
shareholder has the right to sell 20 per cent of 
his or her shares as from 1 January 2008,  
20 per cent as from 1 January 2010, 20 per 
cent as from 1 January 2011, 20 per cent as 
from 1 January 2012 and 20 per cent as from 
1 January 2013. Insofar as a person’s employ-
ment relationship ceases otherwise than as a 
result of death or retirement, the person is ob-
ligated to hand over, upon the severance date, 
the shares that are subject to lockup terms to 
the company or to a party designated by it.  

Shares subscribed for in the employee share 
offering are subject to a lockup agreement ac-
cording to which the shares may not be trans-
ferred before 1 January 2008. 

inSiderS
The insiders of SRV group Plc consist of the 
insiders with a duty to declare in accordance 
with the Finnish Securities Markets Act, per-
manent company-specific insiders as well as 
project-specific insiders. The insiders with a 
duty to declare are, on the basis of their posi-
tion, the members of the Board of Directors, 
the president, the senior executive vice presi-
dents, the members of the Boards of Directors 
of the major subsidiaries and their presidents, 
the members of the group’s Corporate execu-
tive Team, the auditor and the principal auditor 
appointed by the firm serving as the deputy 
auditor. Permanent company-specific insid-
ers are the persons separately defined in the 
Insider guidelines.  

SRV group Plc complies with the Insider 
guidelines issued by the Helsinki Stock exchange, 
in accordance with which the Board of Directors of 
SRV group Plc has confirmed the company’s In-
sider guidelines. In accordance with these guide-
lines, it is recommended that a permanent insider 
time his or her trading in the company’s shares to 
coincide with times when the markets have the 
fullest possible information on matters affect-
ing the value of the share. Accordingly, persons 
entered in SRV group Plc’s Permanent Insider 
Register must not trade in securities issued by the 
company for 14 days prior to the publication of a 
financial statement bulletin and interim report.

SRV group Plc’s insider registers are main-
tained by the group’s legal Affairs unit, which up-
dates information concerning insiders with a duty 
to declare. This information is to be entered in the 
public register of insiders in the netSire service 
maintained by Finnish Central Securities Deposi-
tory ltd, and can be viewed on the Internet. 
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inTernal conTrol  
The objective of internal control is to ensure 
that the group’s operations are efficient and 
productive, the management of business risks 
is adequate and appropriate and that the infor-
mation produced is reliable. A further function 
of the control system is to oversee that the 
defined operating principles and instructions 
which have been issued are observed. The 
Board of Directors’ Audit Committee oversees 
that internal control functions effectively.  

The company has an Internal Audit that is 
independent of line management. The Internal 
Audit operates under the Board of Directors 
of the group’s parent company. Internal audits 
are carried out by the designated Internal Au-
dit team of an outside service provider. Admin-
istratively, this audit team reports to the senior 
executive vice president in charge of financial 
administration and financing. Individual audits 
are based on the Audit Plan, which is approved 
annually by the Audit Committee. written 
reports on the audits carried out are submitted 
not only to management, but also to the Au-
dit Committee and annually to the company’s 
Board of Directors. 

audiT
The consolidated financial statements are pre-
pared in compliance with IFRS.  

The company has one principal auditor and 
one deputy auditor. Both auditors must be 
persons or independent public accountants 
who have been approved by the Finnish Central 
Chamber of Commerce.

The auditors are elected at the Annual gen-
eral Meeting for a term of office that ends at 
the close of the next Annual general Meeting 
following their election. 

The Annual general Meeting held on 14 
April 2008 elected Jarmo lohi, Authorised 
Public Accountant, as principal auditor and 
ernst & young Oy as the deputy auditor, with 
Mikko Rytilahti, Authorised Public Accountant, 
acting as principal auditor.

Share ownerShiP on 31 january 2009

Members of Board Shares

Ilpo Kokkila 13,552,000

Ownership of companies under his control 5,178,129

In addition SRV Group Plc, which is under Ilpo Kokkila's control, owns its own shares 571,064

Jukka Hienonen 20,000

Ownership of companies under his control -

Lasse Kurkilahti 2,200

Ownership of companies under his control -

Matti Mustaniemi 65,322

Ownership of companies under his control -

Markku Sarkamies 53,000

Ownership of companies under his control -

President and his deputy Shares

Eero Heliövaara 1,909,483

Ownership of companies under his control -

Timo Nieminen 418,266

Ownership of companies under his control -

Other corporate executive team Shares

Pirjo Ahanen 1,700

Katri Innanen -

Veli-Matti Kullas 103,984

Hannu Linnoinen 615,566

Juha-Veikko Nikulainen 2,000

Juha Pekka Ojala 99,984

Jussi Ollila 1,000

Valtteri Palin 35,861

coRpoRAte goVeRnAnce   SRV AnnuAl RepoRt 2008

39



RiSk  
MAnAgeMent

thereby also on its financial position and result 
of operations.

Construction operations hinge on companies’ 
confidence in the general trend in the economy 
and consumers’ confidence in their own fi-
nances. when the cyclical outlook weakens 
significantly, demand for housing and business 
premises declines. The prices and rents of busi-
ness premises and the prices of housing might 
go into decline. The construction volume de-
creases and competition for projects heats up, 
increasing risks in the construction business.

Moreover, changes in the terms of financ-
ing have a direct impact on the property and 
housing market. when the market is poor, it is 
difficult to secure financing and its cost soars, 
especially in the case of higher-risk sites.  

Central elements in managing cyclical risks 
at SRV are continuous anticipation of changes 
in the environment and market situation, sys-
tematic operational planning and monitoring, 
management of the priorities of various busi-
ness areas and project models, prudent use of 
capital, a flexible organisation model and the 
ability to respond swiftly.

profitability
SRV improves operational profitability by 
stepping up the design and implementation 
of development projects that interest inves-
tors. Risk management is based on the careful 
analysis of projects, both in their development 
stage and when taking decisions on construc-
tion start-ups. The aim in allocating capital is to 
undertake short-term commitments as well as 
to line up users and owners before starting con-
struction. The company maintains and hones 
its cost-effectiveness continuously. Operations 
are planned and scaled in line with the prevailing 
market conditions.  

growth
SRV seeks long-term growth from emerging 
markets close to Finland. Operations are also 
expanded in Finland’s growth centres. At the 
same time, the operations of the company’s 
business areas are balanced out, which also 
serves to improve risk management. 

The management of growth-related risks is 
constantly upgraded by deepening the compa-
ny’s expertise in the operations of its main cus-
tomer groups, enlarging its reliable networks of 

local partners and standardising the supervision 
and reporting of operations. In addition, SRV is 
making a concerted effort to upgrade the exper-
tise of its personnel, develop matrix functions 
and transfer expertise to new and growing busi-
ness areas.

oPeraTional riSkS
Resource management
Among the group’s central competitive advan-
tages are the long experience and solid exper-
tise of its management and entire personnel. 
The most significant risks for the company’s 
own organisation relate to retaining its present 
staff and obtaining new, skilled employees. The 
group-wide achievement of these aims is pro-
moted through a sound human resources policy 
that emphasises systematic training and a good 
working environment, active co-operation with 
schools and educational institutions as well as a 
positive and competitive employer image.

Other important resources for the company’s 
operations include the special experts, design-
ers, subcontractors and material suppliers in the 
co-operation network that implements projects. 
SRV is always on the lookout for new reliable 
and skilled partners for its network. The com-
pany develops the network constantly.

project management
Projects often involve major technical and 
operational risks. These risks are managed 
with project plans, steering of the design and 
planning process, project-specific quality assur-
ance plans and tracking implementation. SRV’s 
subcontracting and implementation process 
is a smoothly functioning mechanism that 
includes a number of controls to ensure proc-
ess and product quality. In the management of 
subcontractor processes, SRV carries out close 
co-operation with the authorities. The company 
is, and seeks to remain, a forerunner in matters 
such as the management of occupational safety 
on worksites and the fight against the grey 
economy. SRV’s proactive efforts to develop its 
operations – which are co-ordinated in all of the 
group’s business areas – also play a key role in 
risk management.

For more information on SRV’s risk management, see 
pages 31 and 33.

SRV engages in systematic risk manage-
ment in order to leverage new opportu-
nities and protect itself against factors 

that might hinder its business operations. The 
company improves the stability of its operations 
by identifying and reacting to strategic and 
operational risks in time. Risk management is 
part of SRV’s management system. It supports 
the company’s values, vision, strategy and the 
achievement of its earnings objectives.

Risk management strategy
The objective of risk management is to ensure 
that controllable risks do not jeopardise SRV’s 
operations. To this end, SRV ensures that it has 
a systematic and end-to-end approach to iden-
tifying and assessing risks as well as to carrying 
out the necessary risk management measures 
and reporting on operations.

Risk management responsibilities
Overall responsibility for risk management rests 
with the company’s Board of Directors and 
president and CeO. The company’s Board of 
Directors approves the risk management strat-
egy and policy, and assesses the framework for 
risk management covering the entire company. 
line management is in charge of carrying out 
day-to-day risk management as well as for its 
management and supervision. The group’s risk 
management function supports the application 
of risk management principles and develops 
group-wide ways of working.

Main risks
SRV’s operations involve both strategic and 
operational risks. The main risks are discussed 
below: 

STraTegic riSkS
Macroeconomy
Changes in the economic cycle or in the operat-
ing environment of the group’s customers can 
have a material impact on SRV’s operations and 
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Board of  
directors

Ilpo Kokkila Born 1947, M.sC. (enG.) 
Chairman of the board of Directors and founding member 
as from 1987. 
prIMArY WorKInG eXperIenCe:  
Perusyhtymä Oy, Director (1974–1987).  
prIMArY posItIons oF trust:  
kesko Oyj, Member of the board of Directors; JTO school 
of Management and JTO-Palvelut Oy, Chairman of the 
board of Directors; Pontos ltd, Chairman of the board 
of Directors; the Finnish-russian Chamber of Commerce 
association sVkk, Member of the board of Directors.

lasse Kurkilahti Born 1948, M.sC. (eCon.) 
Member of the board and Vice Chairman as from 13 June 
2007. 
prIMArY WorKInG eXperIenCe:  
kemira Oyj, President and CeO (2004–2007); elcoteq  
network Oyj, President and CeO (2001–2004); The raisio 
group, CeO (2000–2001); nokian Tyres Plc, CeO 
(1988–2000), and are ltd, CeO (1985–1988).
prIMArY posItIons oF trust:   
lassila & Tikanoja Plc, Member of the board of Directors;  
FiM asset Management ltd, Member of the board of 
Directors.

From left: ilpo kokkila, lasse kurkilahti, Jukka hienonen, Markku sarkamies and Matti Mustaniemi.

Jukka Hienonen Born 1961, M.sC. (eCon.) 
Member of the board as from 13 June 2007. 
prIMArY WorKInG eXperIenCe:  
Finnair Plc, President and CeO (2006–); stockman Plc, 
executive Vice President with responsibility for the Depart-
ment store Division (2000–2005), Director international 
Operations (1995–2000).
prIMArY posItIons oF trust: 
Finnair aircraft Finance ltd, Chairman of the board;  
Finnair Catering ltd, Chairman of the board; ilmarinen 
Mutual Pension insurance Company, Member of the board 
of Directors; The helsinki region Chamber of Commerce, 
Member of the Delegation.

Matti Mustaniemi Born 1952, M.sC. (eCon.) 
Member of the board as from 24 October 2005.
prIMArY WorKInG eXperIenCe:  
halti ltd, Managing Director (2008–); Tempo CsF ltd, 
Partner (2006–); wihuri ltd, President (2004–2005),  
Vice President (1999–2003), CFO (1994–1999); amer 
group, management positions in financial administration 
(1990–1994). 
prIMArY posItIons oF trust: 
Tempo CsF ltd, Chairman of the board of Directors;
Tempo group ltd, Member of the board of Directors;  

Petromaa Oy, Chairman of the board of Directors;  
Comptel Plc, Member of the board of Directors; astrum 
invest, Managing Director and Member of the board of 
Directors; isamot Capital Oy, Deputy Managing Director 
and Deputy board Member.

Markku sarkamies Born 1946, M.sC. (enG. AnD eCon.) 
Member of the board as from 24 October 2005. 
prIMArY WorKInG eXperIenCe:  
srV group Plc and Pontos ltd, adviser to the board  
of Directors and head of project financing (1998–2005);  
Polar construction companies, various management  
positions in financial administration and financing and 
board membership (1971–1992). 
prIMArY posItIons oF trust:  
Oy sanil europe ltd, Member of the board of Directors; 
MsC Consulting ltd, Member of the board of Directors; 
TM Management Oy, Managing Director and Deputy  
Member of the board of Directors.
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corporate 
executive 
team

timo nieminen Born 1958, M.sC. (enG.)
senior executive Vice President, Deputy CeO,
as from 2002. Joined the group in 1987.

COrPOraTe exeCuTiVe TeaM MeeTing

From left: Timo nieminen, eero heliövaara and hannu linnoinen.

eero Heliövaara Born 1956, M.sC. (enG. AnD eCon.)
President and CeO as from 2006. Joined the group 
in 2006.

Hannu linnoinen Born 1957, ll.M., M.sC. (eCon.)
senior executive Vice President, CFO, as from 2006. 
Joined the group in 2006.
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Juha-Veikko nikulainen Born 1961, M.sC. (enG.)
executive Vice President, housing, as from 2007.  
Joined the group in 2007.

Juha pekka ojala Born 1963, M. (enG.)
executive Vice President, business Premises,  
as from 2002. Joined the group in 1997.

Veli-Matti Kullas Born 1956, M.sC. (enG.)
executive Vice President, russia, as from 2004.  
Joined the group in 2004.

From left: Juha-Veikko nikulainen, Juha Pekka Ojala and Veli-Matti kullas.

From left: Jussi Ollila, Pirjo ahanen, Valtteri Palin and katri innanen.

read more about the Corporate executive Team at www.srv.fi/executiveteam

Jussi ollila Born 1967, M.soC.sC.
senior Vice President, Communications and Marketing, 
as from 2007. Joined the group in 2007.

pirjo Ahanen Born 1958, M.sC. (eCon.)
senior Vice President, hr, as from 2006. Joined the group 
in 2006.

Valtteri palin Born 1973, M.sC. (eCon.)
senior Vice President, Financial administration, as from 
august 2008. Joined the group in 2005.

Katri Innanen Born 1960, ll.M.
senior Vice President, Chief legal Counsel, as from 
september 2008. Joined the group in 2008. 
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infoRMAtion 
foR SHARe-
HolDeRS

BaSic informaTion on The Share
SRV group Plc’s shares are quoted on nASDAQ OMx Helsinki 
ltd. Trading commenced on the Prelist on 12 June 2007 and 
on the Main list on 15 June 2007. The shares are listed on the 
nASDAQ OMx Helsinki under the industry heading Industrial 
Products and Services in the mid-cap group. The share’s trading 
code is SRV1V. The ISIn code of the share is FI0009015309.

ShareholderS’ changeS of addreSS
Shareholders are requested to make notification of changes in 
name and address to the branch office of the bank or securities 
broker where the shareholder’s book-entry account is handled.

financial informaTion in 2009
The Annual general Meeting will be held on 24 March 2009
Interim Report January–March: 13 May 2009 at 8.30 a.m.
Interim Report January–June: 12 August 2009 at 8.30 a.m.
Interim Report January–September: 11 november 2009 at 8.30 a.m.

QuieT PeriodS
The SRV group does not provide guidance on the company’s 
financial trend and does not meet with capital market repre-
sentatives during the two weeks prior to publication of its annual 
earnings statement or interim reports.

inveSTor relaTionS conTacT PerSonS

Senior executive Vice president
Hannu linnoinen
tel. + 358 201 455 990
e-mail: hannu.linnoinen@srv.fi

Senior Vice president, communications  
and Marketing
Jussi Ollila
tel. + 358 201 455 275
e-mail: jussi.ollila@srv.fi

ordering PuBlicaTionS
SRV’s annual reports and other financial bulletins can be ordered 
from group Communications. 
SRV group Plc/group Communications
P.O. 500
FI-02201 espoo
Finland
tel. + 358 201 455 200
Internet: www.srv.fi /order_publications
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

More information

This report describes the SRV Group's 

 nancial performance in 2008. SRV 

Group Plc's full  nancial statements 

for the  nancial year 1 January–31 

December 2008 are included in the 

company's of  cial  nancial statement 

documents, which are available on 

the company's website at www.srv.  .
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REPORT OF THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS

SRV’s revenue was EUR 537.0 million (EUR 561.4 million 1–12/2007) 

Operating profi t grew to EUR 32.9 million (EUR 15.1 million) 

Profi t before taxes grew to EUR 23.7  million (EUR 11.5 million) 

The order backlog at the close of the fi nancial year was EUR 455.3 million (EUR 528.7 million) 

The equity ratio was 41.3 per cent (55.4%) 

Earnings per share were EUR 0.43 (EUR 0.22) 

The proposed dividend EUR 0.12 (EUR  0.12) per share 

1 JANUARY–31 DECEMBER 2008

Operating profi t in the International business area was EUR 9.2 million (operating 
loss of EUR 10.2 million). Operating profi t in the Housing business area declined 
to EUR 0.7 million (EUR 10.7 Million).

The Group’s profi t before taxes for the fi nancial year was EUR 23.7 million 
(EUR 11.5 million). The profi t for the fi nancial year was EUR 15.3 million 
(EUR 7.6 million). Earnings per share were EUR 0.43 (EUR 0.22). The increase in 
the number of shares is due to the share issues and structural changes in 2007. 
Return on equity was 9.4 per cent (6.9 %) and return on investment 12.9 per cent 
(9.7 %).

The Order backlog on 31 December 2008 was EUR  455.3 million (EUR  

528.7 on 31 December 2007).

EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Revenue 537.0 561.4 -24.5 -4.4

Operating profit 32.9 15.1 17.9 118.6

Financial income and expenses, total -9.2 -3.5 -5.7 161.3

Profit before taxes 23.7 11.5 12.2 105.5

Net profit for the financial year 15.3 7.6 7.6 99.6

Order backlog 455.3 528.7 -73.3 -13.9

Operating profit, % 6.1 2.7

Net profit, % 2.8 1.4

Equity ratio, % 41.3 55.4

Net interest bearing debt 169.4 43.2

Gearing, % 85.1 27.3

Return on investment, % 12.9 9.7

Return on equity, % 9.4 6.9

Earnings per share, EUR 1) 0.43 0.22 95.5

Equity per share, EUR 1) 4.54 4.22 7.6

Weighted average number of 

shares outstanding, million pcs 36.5 32.7 11.7

1)  Key fi gures per share have been adjusted to refl ect the increase in the number of shares, which 
came into eff ect on 11 April 2007 (split), the rights issue on 11 June 2007 and the rights issue 
and cancellation of treasury shares in connection with the merger of SRV Henkilöstö Ltd on 
28 September 2007 and purchases of own shares.

KEY FIGURES FOR THE SEGMENTS

EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Business Premises 349.1 345.4 3.7 1.1

Housing 127.9 163.1 -35.2 -21.6

International 60.1 53.2 6.9 12.9

Other Operations 11.5 11.2 0.3 2.6

Eliminations -11.6 -11.4 -0.1

Group, total 537.0 561.4 -24.5 -4.4

Revenue

EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Business Premises 27.8 18.0 9.8 54.2

Housing 0.7 10.7 -10.0 -93.4

International 9.2 -10.2 19.5

Other Operations -4.9 -3.1 -1.9

Eliminations 0.1 -0.4 0.4

Group, total 32.9 15.1 17.9 118.6

Operating profi tIn the fi nancial year, consolidated revenue was EUR 537.0 million (EUR 561,4 
million 1–12/2007). The share of revenue generated in Finland was 89 per cent 
(91 %), whereas 11 per cent (9 %) came from Russia and the Baltic countries. 
Revenue in the Business Premises business area was EUR 349.1 million (EUR 
345.4 million). Revenue in the Housing business area declined to EUR 127.9 mil-
lion (EUR 163.1 million). Revenue in the International business area was  EUR 
60.1 million (EUR 53.2 million).

The Group’s operating profi t for the fi nancial year was EUR 32.9 million (EUR 
15.1 million 1–12/2007). Its operating profi t margin was 6.1 per cent (2.7 %). Oper-
ating profi t in Business Premises grew to EUR 27.8 million (EUR 18.0 million). 

GROUP KEY FIGURES
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EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Business Premises 265.7 302.8 -37.0 -12.2

Housing 154.0 174.6 -20.6 -11.8

International 35.6 51.3 -15.7 -30.6

Group, total 455.3 528.7 -73.3 -13.9

%

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007

Business Premises 8.0 5.2

Housing 0.6 6.5

International 15.4 -19.2

Group, total 6.1 2.7

Operating profi t

Order backlog

EARNINGS TRENDS OF THE SEGMENTS

The Business Premises business area comprises SRV Toimitilat Oy’s com-
mercial, business, logistics and rock construction operations and project devel-
opment.

Revenue in the Business Premises business area grew by 1.1 per cent dur-
ing the fi nancial year, totalling EUR 349.1 million (EUR 345.4 million). Operat-
ing profi t was EUR 27.8 million (EUR 18.0). The positive trend in the operating 
profi t was mostly a result of successful implementation of development projects.
  The order backlog was EUR 265.7 million (EUR 302.8 million). Profi t margin of 
the order backlog has stayed on a good level.

Among the projects completed during the fi nancial year were the Tuupakka 
logistics centre in Vantaa, offi  ce buildings implemented under the HTC concept 
and new headquarters for Neste Oil in the Keilaniemi district of Espoo, the Bio-
medicum II project in Helsinki for the Hospital District of Helsinki and Uusimaa, 
a logistics centre for Itella in the Voutila district in Vantaa, the Kara Mid Point 
research and development and offi  ce building for Nokia in the Karaportti district 
in Espoo as well as numerous rock construction projects. The King’s Gate busi-
ness district in Porvoo was complemented in September with the completion of 
commercial buildings for Vepsäläinen and Koti-Idea.

The second phase of the Trio shopping centre in the heart of Lahti was 
handed over to the client, Citycon, in November. This second phase was a direct 
follow-up to the fi rst phase, which was also constructed by SRV.

SRV handed over the Flamingo recreational centre in Vantaa to the client, 
Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company, in August, two months ahead of the 
original schedule. 

During the fi nancial year, construction commenced on the Plantagen garden 
store and the retail centre of the northern wing in King’s Gate, Porvoo. Construc-
tion work on STC King’s Gate, the offi  ce premises in the King’s Gate area, was 
also started. The pre-construction of L&T Kerca in Kerava and the construction of 
a car dealership for Autosalpa in Lahti and a logistics warehouse for Codel in Van-
taa also began. Repair works on the second stage of the University of Helsinki’s 
Metsätalo Building in Helsinki were started, and an agreement was reached with 
the university’s Property Services Department for a renovation project that is to 
be carried out in stages at the Institute of Dentistry building in the Ruskeasuo dis-
trict of Helsinki. In addition, the construction work on the new central laboratory 
at Neste Oil’s Kilpilahti refi nery in Porvoo was started in November. Senate Prop-
erties selected SRV as the main contractor for the new civil defence shelter in the 

Viikki district of Helsinki and as the project management contractor for the new 
construction and renovation work on the University of Helsinki’s Swedish School 
of Social Science.

SRV and Kiinteistöosakeyhtiö Helsingin Musiikkitalo signed a contract for the 
construction of the Helsinki Music Centre. Construction began in September. 
SRV’s main contract is valued at EUR 90.5 million. The total cost of the Helsinki 
Music Centre is estimated at EUR 140 million, and it is scheduled for completion 
at the end of April 2011.

In March 2008, the Keravanportti property was sold to the real-estate invest-
ment trust REFF I Ky, which is managed by Pohjola Property Management Ltd, a 
property investment company. SRV constructed two retail buildings in Keravan-
portti.

In October, Stockmann and SRV agreed that the project management and 
implementation of the extension and alteration works of Stockmann's Helsinki 
department store will be transferred to SRV. The agreement covers both the 
works now in progress and the completion of the entire extension project. SRV's 
share of the project is estimated at EUR 80 million. The works will be completed 
by the end of 2010.

In December, SRV and Suomi Mutual Life Assurance Company signed an 
agreement for STC Meiramitie, a logistics project, to be carried out in the district 
of Koivuhaka in Vantaa. The project encompasses the construction of a complex 
of four logistics properties with a total of about 10,700 square metres of fl oor 
area. SRV’s STC (Smart Tech Center) concept has been developed specifi cally to 
enable small and medium-sized companies to utilise their warehouse, production 
and offi  ce premises effi  ciently.

On 6 March 2008, the Helsinki Court of Appeal announced its decision on the 
dispute between SRV Business Premises Ltd and F-Secure Corporation. The dis-
pute was about interior works done during the construction and whether they are 
covered by the original rental agreement. The Court of Appeal did not revise the 
decision of the Helsinki District Court, which stated that the construction work 
is not covered by the original rental agreement. According to the Court’s deci-
sion, F-Secure must pay the additional work costs, and the costs of the trial plus 
interest. The fi nancial impact pursuant to the decision on SRV’s operating profi t 
was about EUR 0.7 million and about EUR 1.2 million on profi t before taxes. The 
Supreme Court did not grant leave to appeal for F-Secure.

EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Revenue 349.1 345.4 3.7 1.1

Operating profit 27.8 18.0 9.8 54.2

Order backlog 265.7 302.8 -37.0 -12.2

Business Premises

The Housing business area comprises housing construction in the Helsinki 
Metropolitan Area and the neighbouring municipalities as well as the operations 
of the regional subsidiaries. The regional subsidiaries are engaged in housing, 
commercial, business premises and logistics construction projects.

Revenue in the Housing business area amounted to EUR 127.9 million (EUR 
163.1 million) in the fi nancial year and operating profi t was EUR 0.7 million (EUR 
10.7 million). The decline in both revenue and operating profi t was attributable to 
the sharp slowdown in housing sales. The order backlog was EUR 154.0 million 
(EUR 174.6 million).

Besides housing production, resources were allocated to contracting and during 
the fi nancial year contracts worth EUR 76.9 million were concluded with exter-
nal clients. Of these, the most important in the Helsinki metropolitan area were 
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EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Revenue 127.9 163.1 -35.2 -21.6

Operating profit 0.7 10.7 -10.0 -93.4

Order backlog 154.0 174.6 -20.6 -11.8

1 Jan–31 Dec
2008

1 Jan–31 Dec
2007

change,
units

Start-ups 110 363 -253

Sold 141 288 -148

Completed 260 519 -259

Completed and unsold 1) 133 80 53

Under construction 1) 265 415 -150

1) at the end of the period

Housing

Developer contracting housing production in Finland

Major projects under construction included the Helsingin Oscar condominium, 
where 65 units will be completed, Vallikallion Helmi in Espoo (67 units) and Ulri-
kanhuippu in Vantaa (46 units), which will be realised jointly with Asuntosäätiö 
(Housing Foundation).

Codetermination negotiations were started and completed in the Greater Hel-
sinki area during the fi nancial year. The codetermination negotiations led to the 
termination of the contracts of four salaried employees, the laying-off  of fi ve sal-
aried employees and the conditional termination of the contracts of 10 employees 
for production and fi nancial reasons.

SRV continued its participation as the only construction company in the 24Liv-
ing development project, which is being partly funded by TEKES (the Finnish 
Funding Agency for Technology and Innovation). Begun in 2006, the 3-year 
project is headed by the University of Art and Design in Helsinki, in cooperation 

with Finpro, the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) and TEKES, with a 
number of Finnish companies also participating.

International Operations comprises the business activities of the SRV Inter-
national subgroup in Russia and the Baltic countries.

International Operations posted revenue of EUR 60.1 million (EUR 53.2 million). 
Operating profi t amounted to EUR 9.2 million (operating loss of EUR 10.2 mil-
lion). Revenue of EUR 14.2 million and operating profi t of EUR 13.5 million were 
recorded on the sale of the hotel in Ekaterinburg. The order backlog was EUR 
35.6 million (EUR 51.3 million).

Russia.  The renovation works of the Pulkovskaya and Pribaltiskaya hotels 
operated by the Rezidor Group in St Petersburg were completed in April. In 
June, SRV signed contracts valued at around EUR 15 million for further ren-
ovation works at the hotels. Ahlström’s glass fi bre plant in Tver was com-
pleted in March.

The construction of the Etmia II offi  ce and parking facility in the heart 
of Moscow continued. Acquisition of lessees for the site began during the 
autumn. The site will have shell & core readiness at the start of 2009, aft er 
which interior works will commence. SRV’s role in the project is to act as the 
project management contractor and as co-owner with a 50 per cent stake. 
SRV’s objective is to sell the project to investors aft er completion.

Construction of the Papula residential area in the city of Vyborg contin-
ued. In the fi rst phase, 38 units are to be built, and are slated for completion 
during the fi rst quarter of 2009. All of the fi rst-phase units have been sold. 
The sale of 30 units, valued at EUR 4.6 million, will be recognised aft er the 
buyer has fi nalised the fi nancing. 

The development of the Eurograd logistics area in St Petersburg con-
tinued during the review period. On 11 February 2008, SRV acquired a 32 
per cent share in the Russian enterprise OOO Olgino-4, which owns a plot 
of 24.9 hectares located north of St Petersburg, in the close vicinity of the 
Ring Road. SRV raised its ownership in the enterprise to 49 per cent during 
the review period and will acquire the majority stockholding the fi rst half of 
2009. Over 100,000 square metres of logistics facilities are planned for the 
site, in several stages during the next few years. The zoning of the area for 
logistics was completed in August and site planning has begun. 

In the fi nancial year, SRV continued the design, preparations for the con-
struction and the search for tenants of the Mytichi shopping centre project 
developed by SRV, to be realised in the Moscow area. The ensemble will 
have about 120,000 square metres of fl oor area. The majority owner of the 
project is the Finnish real estate investment company Vicus with a 75 per 
cent stake. Due to the global fi nancial crisis, the project will be split into two 
phases, to facilitate external fi nancing. The scope of construction works 
during the fi rst phase will be about 52,000 m2, including an underground 
car park and commercial premises. The fi nal investment decision will be 
made in 2009. In July, SRV signed a project management contract, valued 
at EUR 107 million, with the project company for the planning and construc-
tion of the project. The contract agreement will be amended in line with the 
new scope of the project. The project will not be included in the order back-
log until the fi nal investment decision is made. Preparations for construction 
and work for the transfer of the plot’s infrastructure have started in accord-
ance with the project management contract. Negotiations with the anchor 
tenants are underway. The aim is to fi nalise the negotiations by the end of 
the year. SRV owns 25 per cent of the project and has invested EUR 6.4 
million in it.

SRV concluded a contract with the International Banking Institute (IBI), 
St Petersburg, and a local partner concerning the development of an 8.5 
hectare land area in St Petersburg. SRV is developing zoning for the area. 
The plans include the construction of offi  ce and retail space, as well as 
hotel, restaurant and entertainment premises. Moreover, facilities will be 

a 58-unit apartment building for HOAS (Foundation for Student Housing in the 
Helsinki Region) in Viikki and the renovation of a 62-unit apartment building for 
KY Kiinteistö Oy in the Töölö district of Helsinki. The construction of a total of 
76 residential units was started up in Tampere for AVO-Asunnot Oy and AVO-
Asumisoikeus Oy. Other contracts that were concluded included the renovation 
of an ice stadium for the City of Jyväskylä, the construction of Tietotie upper sec-
ondary school for the City of Valkeakoski, the construction of a wind turbine pro-
duction plant for The Switch in Lappeenranta and the construction of a logistics 
centre and covering the  parking hall for Turku University Hospital.

During the fi nancial year, the construction of 110 (363) developer contracting 
housing units was started. SRV bought an area in the Saunalahti district of Espoo 
during the review period and will build more than 100 low-rise units there. The 
construction of the fi rst stage, comprising 16 units, commenced in late summer.

A total of 141 (288) developer contracting housing units were sold during the 
fi nancial year. Sales focused on units that were completed or close to completion. 
Although sales of residences picked up during the second quarter, they weak-
ened in the third and particularly in the fourth quarter. At the end of the fi nancial 
year, 265 (415) residential units were under construction, of which 226 units were 
unsold. There were 133 (80) completed but unsold residential units. Of the com-
pleted residential units, 20 had been leased out by the close of the period. A total 
of 260 (519) developer contracting residential units were completed during the 
review period. Start-ups of new developer contracting housing projects have been 
decreased further due to the market situation.
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built for the IBI university. SRV has made agreements with three interna-
tional architecture fi rms to develop the overall concept of the project on 
the basis of a pre-study carried out by the British fi rm Locum Consult-
ing. The aim is to conclude the development of the overall concept in 2009, 
which would enable starting up the construction of the fi rst phase during 
2010. SRV has established a development company named OOO IBI Invest 
to implement the project, and acquired a land area for said company. SRV 
had invested about EUR 50 million in land and properties as of 31 Decem-
ber 2008. Further investment in the project by SRV is estimated at EUR 
10 million. It is further estimated that SRV’s ownership will total 77.5 per 
cent of the project when IBI Invest has acquired all the land areas included in 
the cooperation contract. SRV’s partner and future minority shareholder in 
the joint venture is Mr. Boris Kholmyansky through the companies that he 
owns. Mr. Kholmyansky is the main owner and chairman of the board of the 
St Petersburg-based company NPO Znamia Truda.

During the period, SRV continued negotiations with a Russian bank-
ing partner with a view to developing property fund cooperation, which 
would focus on developing commercial and business premises projects and 
fi nancing construction in Russia. The investors would be SRV together with 
a group of international investors as well as a local partner, who would also 
administer the fund. Should the plan be carried out, SRV intends to make a 
fund investment of around EUR 20 million.

In July, SRV signed a contract for the sale of shares in ZAO Nord-
rus Hotel with Wenaas Hotel Russia A/S, which belongs to the Norwegian 
Wenaas Group. ZAO Nordrus Hotel owns the 160-room Park Inn hotel in 
Ekaterinburg, Russia. The selling price of the shares was EUR 22.5 million. 
The transaction was completed on 24 September 2008, when the Russian 
competition authorities had given their consent.

Baltic countries.  A partnership project with Facio Ehitus continued in 
Tartu, Estonia. SRV owns a plot for 7 high-rise apartment buildings. The 
construction of one of these buildings (42 units) was begun in the summer 
of 2007. The project was completed in October. No start-ups of new devel-
oper contracting projects are planned in the present market situation. 6 (17) 
residential units were sold during the period and, all in all, 41 (46), were up 
for sale at the end of the period, 41 (4) of which were in already-completed 
projects. The sale of the logistics centre leased to Oriola KD in Estonia was 
completed in January 2008. Revenue of EUR 5 million was recorded on the 
sale. The vehicle dealership for Inchcape Motors was handed over to the cli-
ent in November. Design work for the Mercantile logistics centre was com-
pleted but the construction start-up was put on hold.

The HRX logistics centre was handed over to the client in Latvia in March 
2008.

Other Operations comprise mainly the SRV Group Plc and SRV Kalusto 
Ltd businesses.

The revenue of Other Operations during the fi nancial year was EUR 11.5 
million (EUR 11.2 million) and operating loss EUR 4.9 million (loss of EUR 
3.1 million).Operating profi t was burdened with the increase of depreciation, 
fi xed costs and project development costs.

EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Revenue 60.1 53.2 6.9 12.9

Operating profit 9.2 -10.2 19.5

Order backlog 35.6 51.3 -15.7 -30.6

International Operations

EUR million

IFRS 
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2008

IFRS
 1 Jan–31 Dec 

2007
change, 

MEUR
change,

%

Revenue 11.5 11.2 0.3 2.6

Operating profit -4.9 -3.1 -1.9  

Other Operations

FINANCING AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s equity amounted to 166.6 million (EUR 158.3 million) and the 
group’s inventories were EUR 294.8 million (EUR 196.4 million), the share of 
land areas and plot-owning companies being EUR 142.1 million (EUR 64.3 mil-
lion). 

The Group’s invested capital amounted to EUR 339.4 million (EUR 222.9 mil-
lion). Investments in SRV’s developer contracting projects total around EUR 160 
million. Investments in unsold housing production in Finland amount to EUR 
89 million. The company estimates that completion of these projects demands 
another EUR 20 million, which is fi nanced mainly using the undrawn housing 
corporate loans totalling EUR 19 million. Investments in uncompleted developer 
contracting business premise projects in Finland amount to EUR 30 million. To 
complete the projects another EUR 10 million is estimated to be invested. Invest-
ments in international developer contracting projects amount to EUR 38 million, 
of which EUR 3.3 million is in unsold residential projects in Estonia, EUR 3.4 mil-
lion in housing project under construction in Vyborg and around EUR 31 million in 
Etmia II offi  ce and Mytischi shopping centre projects under construction. 

The Group’s net interest-bearing liabilities were EUR 169.4 million on 31 Decem-
ber 2008 (EUR 43,2 million). Net fi nancial expenses totalled EUR 9.2 mil-
lion (EUR 3.5 million). The Group’s cash assets at the end of the fi nancial year 
amounted to EUR 3.4 million (EUR 21.4 million). Cash assets in the reference 
period were increased through the share issue in June 2007. At the change of 
the year, share of the Group’s undrawn fi nancing reserves was EUR 107.0 million 
(EUR 130.0 million). Undrawn project specifi c loans amounted to EUR 25 million 
and fi nancing commitments amounted to EUR 10 million. 

The return on investment was 12.9 per cent (9.7 %) and the return on equity 
9.4 per cent (6.9 %). The equity ratio was 41.3 per cent (55,4 %). The change in 
the equity ratio was impacted by land investments and other increase in inven-
tories.

INVESTMENTS

The Group’s investments totalled EUR 16.8 million (EUR 5,4 million), of which 
EUR 10 million were investments related to buildings in the IBI project.

UNBUILT LAND AREAS, LAND ACQUISITION COMMITMENTS 
AND LAND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS

In January, SRV signed a preliminary property purchase agreement for the old 
Government Building in Jyväskylä designed by Alvar Aalto, and the adjacent 
plot, on which a new building of 12,000 square metres of fl oor area is being 
developed. The listed Government Building will partly be returned to its original 
use. During the fi nancial year SRV bought 14,700 square metres of fl oor area 
in residential building rights in the Saunalahdenranta district of Espoo. Single-
family, terraced and semidetached houses will be built in the area. In the Aviap-
olis business district in the Viinikkala logistics area in Vantaa, SRV bought a 4.5 
hectare piece of land, where it plans to build logistics facilities measuring around 
26,000 square metres of fl oor area. 

In June, SRV concluded a preliminary property purchase agreement for the 
roughly 4.5 hectare land area in the Vantaankoski district of Vantaa. The land area 
borders the 6.3 hectare property SRV purchased earlier in the area. 

On 14 January 2008, Espoo City Board accepted SRV’s planning reservation 
application for housing towers above Karhusaarentie road. The plan includes four 
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27–28 storey buildings and an underground car park on four levels. According to 
initial plans, the area includes about 50,000 square metres of residential building 
volume, and the total number of apartments would be around 370. The project 
would be connected with the implementation of the Keilaniemi metro station. 
Plans include a deck that would span over Karhusaarentie road, connecting the 
residential site to Tapiola and thereby adding to its supply of high-quality housing.

CHANGES IN GROUP MANAGEMENT

Executive Vice President Veli-Matti Kullas, who is in charge of SRV’s opera-
tions in Russia, was nominated member of SRV’s Corporate Executive Team 
on 12 February 2008. Katri Innanen, LL.M, was appointed Chief Legal Counsel 
and member of the Corporate Executive Team of SRV Group, when the current 
Chief Legal Counsel, Marja Sarnela retires. Mrs Innanen started in her new posi-
tion on 29 September 2008. Valtteri Palin, M.Sc. (Econ.), was appointed Senior 
Vice President, Financial Administration, and member of the Corporate Execu-
tive Team of SRV Group Plc as from 1 August 2008 when his predecessor and 
Corporate Executive Team Member Anu Hämäläinen left  the company. 

SRV reorganised its international operations on 15 September 2008. The Exec-
utive Vice President in charge of Russian operations, Veli-Matti Kullas, now 
reports directly to President and CEO Eero Heliövaara and the Baltic country man-
agers to the Executive Vice President in charge of Business Premises, Juha Pekka 
Ojala. In connection with the organisational rearrangements, Ari Beilinson, Execu-
tive Vice President in charge of the SRV International business area and member 
of the Corporate Executive Team, left  the company.

PERSONNEL

SRV had an average payroll of 871 (761) employees, of whom 614 (537) were 
white-collar. The parent company had an average staff  of 66 (62) white-collar 
employees. At the close of the fi nancial year, the Group had 870 (752) employ-
ees, of whom 66 (59) were employed by the parent company. An average of 15 
per cent (9%) of the employees work at subsidiaries and representative offi  ces 
abroad.

SRV is developing its cooperation with universities and colleges as part of its 
eff ort to cover staffi  ng needs for recruitment and the holiday seasons. At the end 
of the fi nancial year, SRV had a total of 25 (27) trainees working in the Group’s 
operations in Finland (in summer jobs and in work training as well as students 
working on their thesis or diploma).

On 11 February 2008, the Board of Directors of SRV Group Plc approved a new 
share-based incentive plan for the Group’s key personnel. The Plan includes three 
earning periods – the calendar years 2008, 2009 and 2010. The potential reward 
from earning period 2008 will be paid in 2009, partly as shares in the company 
and partly as cash. The proportion to be paid in cash will cover taxes and tax-
related costs arising from the reward. The shares may not be transferred during 
the two-year restriction period. If a key person’s employment or service ends dur-
ing said restriction period, he/she must return the shares rewarded under the Plan 
to the company without compensation. The earnings target for the 2008 earning 
period was not met, and thus no rewards will be paid for 2008 under the system.

On 10 February 2009, SRV’s Board of Directors decided on the target group 
and performance targets for the 2009 earning period. The target group includes 
about 70 employees, and the reward is based mainly on consolidated and partly 
on business area performance. The rewards to be paid for earning period 2009 
correspond to the approximate value of a total maximum of 350,000 SRV Group 
Plc shares and equal amount of money, at the most, for taxes.

31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007

Share of Group 
personnel, 

31 Dec 2008, %

Business Premises 296 295 34.0

Housing 285 257 32.8

International 191 114 22.0

Other Operations 98 86 11.3

Group, total 870 752 100.0

Personnel by business area

Land reserve
31 Dec 2008

Business 
Operations Housing

Inter-
national 

Operations Total

Unbuilt land areas and land 

acquisition commitments

Building rights *), m2 238,000 268,000 859,000 1,365,000

Capital invested incl. commitments, 

EUR million 45 60 104 209

Land development agreements

Building rights *), m2 466,000 221,000 100,000 787,000

*) Building rights also include the estimated building rights/construction volume of unzoned land 
reserves and land areas covered by agreements in projects that are wholly or partly owned by SRV.

Unbuilt land areas, land acquisition commitments and land 
development agreements

NEW NAMES FOR SRV’S SUBSIDIARIES AS PART OF RENEWED BRAND

As part of SRV’s renewed brand the company renamed its subsidiaries. The 
name of SRV Viitoset, which specialises in business premises, was changed 
to SRV Business Premises Ltd as of 1 March 2008. The name of SRV West-
erlund, which operates in residential construction, was changed to SRV Hous-
ing Ltd. The renewed brand will bring the Group’s business areas more clearly 
under one SRV brand.

SRV’S GROUP STRUCTURE

SRV is Finland’s leading project management contractor. The Group builds and 
develops retail and commercial premises, residential units as well as infrastruc-
ture and logistics projects. Apart from Finland, the company operates in Russia 
and the Baltic countries. SRV Group Plc is the Group’s parent company, and it is 
responsible for the Group’s management, treasury, fi nance and administrative 
functions. The Project Development and Building Systems Engineering units 
support and serve all the Group’s business operations.

SRV’s business areas are Business Premises, Housing and International as well 
as Other Operations. The Business Premises business area comprises the oper-
ations of SRV Toimitilat Ltd. Housing comprises the operations of SRV Asun-
not Ltd and the regional subsidiaries. The SRV International subgroup carries out 
international operations in Russia and the Baltic countries. Other Operations con-
sist primarily of the SRV Group Plc and SRV Kalusto Ltd businesses.

CHANGES IN GROUP STRUCTURE 

SRV Group Plc acquired 100 per cent ownership of SRV Keski-Suomi Ltd in 
April 2008 and Rkl Erkki Huhdanpää Oy in June 2008. In order to strengthen 
the business structure and operations, SRV started the procedure to merge 
SRV Kaakkois-Suomi Ltd, SRV Keski-Suomi Ltd, SRV Lounais-Suomi Ltd and 
Rkl Erkki Huhdanpää Oy into SRV Housing Ltd at the end of June 2008. The 
companies were merged with SRV Housing Ltd on 31 December 2008 and 
continue their operations as SRV Housing Ltd’s regional businesses under the 
brands SRV Kaakkois-Suomi, SRV Keski-Suomi, SRV Lounais-Suomi and SRV 
Pirkanmaa.
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The fi nancial risks connected with SRV’s operations are interest rate, currency, 
liquidity and contractual party risks, which are discussed in more detail in the 
Notes to the 2008 Financial Statements. Currency risks are divided into transac-
tion risks and translation risks. Transaction risks are related to currency-denom-
inated business and fi nancing cash fl ows. Translation risks encompass invest-
ments made in foreign subsidiaries, the accounting eff ects of which are recorded 
in the translation diff erences of equity in the consolidated fi gures. 

Liquidity risks may have an eff ect on the Group’s earnings and cash fl ow if the 
Group is unable to ensure suffi  cient fi nancing for its operations. SRV maintains 
adequate liquidity by means of effi  cient management of cash fl ows and solu-
tions linked to it, such as binding lines of credit that are valid until further notice. 
The company has a long-term liquidity arrangement (EUR 100 million), which 
shall fall due in 2012. The company’s fi nancing agreements contain customary 
terms and conditions. The fi nancial terms and conditions of the agreements con-
cern the equity ratio.

The Group’s risk management is carried out in line with the Group’s operations 
system and control is exercised in accordance with the Group strategy approved 
by the Board of Directors of the Group’s parent company. SRV also makes every 
eff ort to cover operational risks by means of insurance and contractual terms. A 
more detailed account of SRV’s risks, risk management and corporate govern-
ance policies has been disclosed in the 2007 Annual Report and Financial State-
ments.

SRV estimates that no other essential changes have occurred in company’s 
risks in the fi nancial year.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

In its operations, the Group’s aim is to follow the principles of sustainable devel-
opment and to minimise harmful environmental eff ects related to the life cycle 
of buildings. The activities are focused on management of environmental mat-
ters during both the design and construction phases. The group employs a 
waste reporting system on Finnish construction sites. SRV has upgraded the 
resources in the management of environmental matters as of the beginning of 
2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RESOLUTIONS OF GENERAL MEETINGS

The Annual General Meeting was held on 14 April 2008. The AGM adopted the 
fi nancial statements for 2007 and granted release from liability to the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors and the president and CEO. A dividend of EUR 
0.12 per share was declared.

Mr Ilpo Kokkila was elected chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr Jukka 
Hienonen, Mr Lasse Kurkilahti, Mr Matti Mustaniemi and Mr Markku Sarkamies 
were elected to seats on the Board. In its organisational meeting on 14 April 2008 
the Board of Directors elected Lasse Kurkilahti vice chairman of the Board. Matti 
Mustaniemi was elected chairman and Markku Sarkamies member of the Audit 
Committee. Ilpo Kokkila was elected chairman and Jukka Hienonen and Lasse 
Kurkilahti members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

Mr Jarmo Lohi, Authorised Public Accountant, was elected as the company’s 
auditor, and the fi rm of public accountants Ernst & Young Oy was elected deputy 
auditor, with Mr Mikko Rytilahti, Authorised Public Accountant, acting as princi-
pal auditor. 

The Annual General Meeting authorised the Board of Directors to resolve on 
the acquisition of the company’s own shares (treasury shares). The authorisa-
tion is in force for 18 months from the decision of the Meeting. A maximum of 
3,676,846 own shares, or a lower amount that, in addition to the shares already 
owned by the company and its subsidiaries, is less than 10 per cent of all shares, 
may be acquired on the basis of the authorization. The Annual General Meet-
ing authorised the Board of Directors to resolve on the transfer of treasury shares 
against payment or without consideration. The authorisation is in force for 18 
months from the decision of the Meeting.

OUTLOOK FOR CONSTRUCTION

Due to the uncertainty in the global fi nancial markets, the world economy will 
continue to weaken. Growth in the Finnish economy has come to a halt, and 
growth in 2008 is estimated to have settled at around 2 per cent. Uncertain-
ties concerning the length and impacts of the fi nancial crisis are hampering the 
assessment of the construction market outlook. The business cycles of the real 
estate market and construction have weakened signifi cantly.

The total number of building permits has decreased across the board, except 
for public buildings. Aft er a prolonged rise, construction costs have begun to 
decrease. The availability of subcontracting and materials has developed favoura-
bly aft er the dip in the construction business cycle.

The housing market has taken a sharp turn for the worse due to slower eco-
nomic growth. The number of unsold residences has grown. The number of res-
idential start-ups has decreased, and due to the challenging situation, the lull in 
the housing market may continue into 2010.

In 2009, the construction of commercial premises and offi  ces is expected to 
decline. Vacancy rates in offi  ce premises will increase due to the completion of 
new premises in 2009. Warehouse construction volumes depend on decisions to 
implement projects to improve logistics.

Economic growth in the Baltic countries has deteriorated quickly. Estonia and 
Latvia are sliding towards recession. The housing market has clearly cooled down 
and private consumption is on the wane due to rapid infl ation. The short-term 
outlook for the Baltic economies is highly challenging.

Russian economic growth will decelerate rapidly. The fi nancial crisis has made it 
more diffi  cult to grant loans and construction volumes have dropped. 

RISKS, RISK MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

General economic trends and changes in customers’ operating environments 
have an immediate eff ect on the construction and property markets. A change 
in the general interest level has a direct impact on both SRV’s actual cash fl ow 
from operating activities and fi nancing costs. The general economic situation 
has deteriorated considerably. Interest rates fell sharply during the latter part of 
2008, but the availability of credit from banks has weakened, and loan margins 
have risen signifi cantly. The international fi nancial crisis will make it more dif-
fi cult also for SRV’s customers to obtain fi nancing and will hamper the func-
tioning of property markets. Property values face pressures and the number of 
property transactions in decreased due to diffi  culties in getting fi nancing. The 
fi nancial crisis adds SRV’s risk to be forced to tie up capital in projects longer 
than intended.

SRV’s revenue is generated by construction projects, and the company’s result 
depends on the profi tability of individual projects as well as their progress. The 
recognition date of the developer contracting projects also depends on the per-
centage of sold premises in projects. Postponed residential start-ups increase the 
amount of development expense, which are recorded as costs.  Housing sales 
have taken a steep fall in Finland, while in Estonia, in particular, they have come 
almost to a complete halt. The slowdown in housing sales will increase sales and 
marketing costs and interest expenses in developer contracting housing produc-
tion.

Construction is subject to signifi cant cost risks relating to subcontracting and 
deliveries, and their control underlines the need for long-term planning. SRV’s 
contracting model requires skilled and competent personnel. Warranty and liability 
obligations related to construction can span up to ten years. Currently the upward 
trend in construction costs has ceased and turned into a downward one.

Besides land acquisition risks, property projects face, among other things, risks 
relating to outcome of zoning, fi nancing, commercialisation of projects, geograph-
ical location and type of project. In accordance with its strategy, SRV focuses on 
developer contracting projects and has increased its land acquisition in Finland 
and in Russia, in particular. The crisis in the international fi nancial market has 
substantially weakened the availability of fi nancing in property projects for prop-
erty development and investments.  It has also put project start-ups on hold.
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(Grand Cargo Center) logistics building with about 20,000 square metres of fl oor 
space. Kerca occupies an area of 160 hectares on the Kerava-Vantaa border.

In January, SRV and Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company signed the 
project management contract concerning the Vierumäki Congress & Resort Hotel 
project.  SRV acts as main contractor with overall responsibility and is in charge 
of construction and planning. In addition to 191 hotel rooms, the four-storey hotel 
building includes meeting facilities, six restaurants, fi tness room, bowling alley 
with 10-lanes, and a wellness-area. The hotel will be opened in spring 2010.

OUTLOOK FOR 2008

The international fi nancial crisis has complicated the fi nancing of property 
investments and weakened the economic outlook. Start-up decisions and 
housing sales, in particular, face uncertainties. 

The trend in revenue, operating profi t and earnings in 2009 will be aff ected 
by the sales volume of developer contracting sites and the volume of new work 
orders. In order to improve profi tability, SRV aims to reduce the Group’s fi xed 
expenses by cutting costs.

Revenue and operating profi t in 2009 are expected to be below the previous 
year’s fi gures, but profi t before taxes is expected to be clearly positive.

The parent company’s distributable funds at 31 December 2008 are EUR 124,482,961.33

of which net profit for the financial year is EUR 3,007,280.62

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting that the dis-
tributable equity be allocated as follows:

A dividend of EUR 0.12 per share be paid to shareholders, thus EUR 4,412,216.16

The remainder be transferred to retained earnings EUR 120,070,745.17

SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

SRV Group Plc’s share capital is EUR 3,062,520. The share has no nominal 
value and the number of shares outstanding is 36,768,468. The company has 
one class of shares. SRV’s shares were admitted to public trading on the OMX 
Nordic Exchange Helsinki Pre List on 12 June 2007 and on the Main List on 15 
June 2007. SRV had a total of 5,764 shareholders at 31 December 2008. SRV 
did not receive any fl agging notifi cations during the fi nancial year. 

The closing rate at the end of the review period was EUR 3.47 (EUR 5.02 eur). 
The highest share price in the review period was EUR 6.60 and the lowest was 
EUR 2.82. The change in the all-share index of the Helsinki Stock Exchange 
(OMX Helsinki) during the same period was 53.4 per cent negative and the OMX 
Industrial and Services index 58.3 per cent negative.

At the end of the fi nancial year, the company had a market capitalisation of 
EUR 125.7 million, excluding the Group’s own shares. About 13.5 million shares 
were traded on the Helsinki Stock Exchange in the fi nancial year and the trade 
volume was EUR 69.0 million.

At the end of the fi nancial year, SRV Group Plc’s subsidiary SRV Kalusto Ltd 
had 150,241 of SRV Group Plc’s shares. The shares were acquired in accordance 
with the conditions of the merger plan of SRV Group Plc and SRV Henkilöstö Ltd. 
On 30 May 2008, SRV Group Plc’s Board of Directors decided to use the author-
isation to acquire the company’s own shares. Share acquisition started on 9 June 
2008. On 31 December 2008, SRV Group Plc and SRV Kalusto Ltd had a total of 
558,000 of SRV Group Plc’s shares, representing 1.5 per cent of the total number 
of the company’s shares and combined number of votes. On 10 February 2009, 
the Group had a total of 571,064 shares (1.6 per cent of the total number of the 
company’s shares and combined number of votes). 

FINANCIAL TARGETS

The Board of Directors has set the aim of SRV in the medium term to achieve 
annual average growth of approximately 15 per cent in Group revenue and 
annual average growth of 30 per cent in revenue in International Operations. 
SRV aims to increase the level of operating profi t and, in the medium to long 
term, to achieve an operating margin of 8 per cent. Also, the company aims to 
maintain an equity ratio of 30 per cent. 

The international economic and fi nancing crisis has hindered the growth out-
look for business operations.   The realisation of the sales of developer contract-
ing projects has an essential eff ect on the development of profi tability. The set 
fi nancial targets cannot be met during in the present economic situation. The 
company endeavours to maintain the profi tability by rationalising operations and 
cutting costs.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

SRV is preparing for a continued downturn in construction markets. Negotia-
tions were initiated in January 2009 within the Group companies for adapting 
its operations. The Group’s Finland-based companies will start codetermination 
negotiations concerning senior salaried employees and salaried employees. At 
the same time, SRV will start a similar process in the Group’s foreign units. The 
negotiations will deal with personnel layoff s, contract terminations and adap-
tation measures. The aim is to get the negotiations completed by mid March. 
The personnel reduction measures are estimated to aff ect about 130 employ-
ees. Diff erent needs and measures will be specifi ed more accurately during the 
course of the negotiations.

The construction of the Kerca logistics area in Kerava developed by SRV pro-
ceeded in January. Kesko started the plans to locate Anttila’s logistics center in 
the Kerca logistics area.. Anttila’s plans cover the construction of a warehouse of 
about 19,000 gross square metres. The construction project will carried out under 
project management contract. SRV and the city of Kerava agreed on a contract 
package concerning the development of the Kerca logistics area and concluded 
a contract for a real estate transaction of four hectares of land and a preliminary 
contract for an area of 22 hectares. On the fi rst plot, SRV plans to build a GCC 

PROPOSAL FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS

No material changes have taken place in the company’s fi nancial position aft er 
the close of the fi nancial year. The company’s liquidity is good and, in the view 
of the Board of Directors, the proposed dividend payout does not compromise 
the company’s solvency.

Espoo 10 February, 2009

SRV Group Plc
Board of Directors
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS FAS

Revenue EUR million 537.0 561.4 479.5 422.0 403.2

Operating profit EUR million 32.9 15.1 24.6 21.8 17.2

Operating profit, % of revenue % 6.1 2.7 5.1 5.2 4.3

Profit before extraordinary items EUR million 23.7 11.5 20.7 21.7 16.2

Profit before extraordinary items, % of revenue % 4.4 2.1 4.3 5.1 4.0

Profit before taxes EUR million 23.7 11.5 20.7 21.7 16.2

Profit before taxes, % of revenue % 4.4 2.1 4.3 5.1 4.0

Net profit for the financial year attributable

to equity holders of the parent company EUR million 15.7 7.2 14.5 12.6 11.6

Return on equity % 9.4 6.9 27.3 34.0 35.3

Return on investment % 12.9 9.7 15.9 19.1 26.2

Equity ratio % 41.3 55.4 31.7 19.8 22.6

Property, plant and equipment investments EUR million 24.8 5.4 3.3 2.7 2.0

Property, plant and equipment investments, % of revenue % 4.6 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.5

Order backlog EUR million 455.3 528.7 453.7 251.8 345.9

Personnel on average 871 761 668 671 603

Invested capital EUR million 339.4 222.9 141.7 182.5 81.9

Net interest-bearing debt EUR million 169.4 43.2 64.6 108.9 2.2

Gearing ratio % 85.1 27.3 103.9 218.7 43.5

Earnings per share, share issue adjusted *) EUR 0.43 0.22 0.56 0.48 0.44

Equity per share, share issue adjusted *) EUR 4.54 4.22 2.22 1.76 1.44

Dividend per share, share issue adjusted * *) EUR 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.08 0.04

Dividend payout ratio % 27.9 54.6 21.4 16.7 9.1

Dividend yield % 3.5 2.4 - - -

Price per earnings ratio 8.1 22.8 - - -

Share price development

Share price at the end of the period EUR 3.47 5.02 - - -

Average share price EUR 5.05 8.40 - - -

Lowest share price EUR 2.82 4.72 - - -

Highest share price EUR 6.60 10.79 - - -

Market capitalisation at the end of the period EUR million 125.7 184.6 - - -

Trading volume 1,000 units 13,543 22,514 - - -

Trading volume % 37.1 68.8 - - -

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,000 units 36,526 32,703 26,064 26,064 26,064

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period 1,000 units 36,210 36,768 26,064 26,064 26,064

*)  The Extraordinary General Meeting of SRV Group Plc decided on 2 April 2007 to increase the number of shares of SRV Group Plc twenty fold (split). Before the change in nominal value the number of 
shares was 1,303,200 and aft er the change the number of shares was 26,064,000. SRV Group Plc arranged Initial Public Off ering in June 2007. In the Off ering 13,000,000 shares were subscribed.
Aft er the Off ering the number of shares was 39,064,000. The plan to merge SRV Henkilöstö Ltd into SRV Group Plc was executed on 28 September 2007. At the same time 10,216,468 new shares 
of SRV Group Plc were issued without raising the share capital. In connection with the merger SRV Group Plc received the 12,512,000 shares held by SRV Henkilöstö Ltd. Aft er the merger the number 
of shares was 36,768,468.

**) The Board of Directors' dividend proposal for 2008.

Key fi nancial indicators
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Gearing ratio, %
Net interest-bearing debt

Total equity
x 100

Profi t before taxes - income taxes

Total equity, average
x 100Return on equity, %

Total assets - non-interest bearing debt - deferred tax liabilities - provisionsInvested capital

Interest bearing debt - cash and cash equivalentsNet interest bearing debt

Net profi t for the fi nancial year attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Earnings per share, share issue adjusted

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period, share issue adjusted
Equity per share, share issue adjusted

Share price at the end of the period

Earnings per share, share issue adjusted
Price per earnings ratio

Number of shares traded in euros during the period

Number of shares traded during the period
Average share price

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period x 
share price at the end of the period

Market capitalisation at the end of the period

Number of shares traded during the period and in relation to the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding

Trading volume

Return on investment, %
Profi t before taxes + interest and other fi nancial expenses

Invested capital, average
x 100

Equity ratio, %
Total equity

Total assets - advances received
x 100

Dividend payout ratio, %
Dividend per share, share issue adjusted

Earnings per share, share issue adjusted
x 100

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

Dividend yield, %
Dividend per share, share issue adjusted

Share price at the end of the period, share issue adjusted
x 100

Calculation of key fi gures
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Number of shares
Number of

shareholders
% of

shareholders
Number of

shares
% of

shares

1–100 476 8.3 32,721 0.1

101–500 3,669 63.7 783,169 2.1

501–1,000 652 11.3 530,555 1.4

1,001–5,000 704 12.2 1,652,534 4.5

5,001–10,000 98 1.7 682,658 1.9

10,001–50,000 124 2.2 2,436,343 6.6

50,001–100,000 14 0.2 1,069,100 2.9

100,001–500,000 20 0.3 5,291,748 14.4

over 500,000 7 0.1 24,289,640 66.1

Yhteensä 5,764 100.0 36,768,468 100.0

of which nominee 

registrations 10 0.2 596,363 1.6

Shares and shareholders

Shareholders on 31 December 2008 Breakdown of share ownership on 31 December 2008 
By number of shares owned

By shareholder category

SHARE PRICE TREND AND TRADING OF SHARES

The shares of SRV Group Plc are quoted on the OMX Nordic Exchange.
The trading with SRV Group Plc's shares (SRV1V) started on the Main list of 
OMX on 15 June 2007. During 2008 the highest price was EUR 6.60 and the 
lowest price EUR 2.82. The average share price for 2008 was EUR 5.05 and 
the closing price EUR 3.47 giving the company a market capitalisation of EUR 
125.7 million as of 31 December 2008. Some 13.5 million shares were traded in 
OMX which corresponds to 37.1 per cent of the weighted average number of 
SRV shares outstanding. The trading value of the shares was EUR 69.0 million.

THE AUTHORISATIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of SRV Group Plc does not have valid authorisations 
to raise the share capital, issue bonds with warrants or convertible bonds. The 
Board of Directors has valid authorisation to buy and sell own shares (Note 23).

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDING

The Members of the Board of SRV Group Plc as well as the President and CEO 
and the Deputy CEO owned directly a total of 16,020,271 shares on 31 Decem-
ber 2008 which corresponds to 43.6 per cent of SRV shares and voting rights. 
In addition to the direct ownership Ilpo Kokkila owned SRV shares also through 
Kolpi Investments Oy.

% of shares

Corporations 18.7

Financial and insurance institutions 9.0

Non-profit organisations 3.0

Public institutions 8.8

Households 60.1

Non-Finnish shareholders 0.4

100.0

Shareholder Number of shares
Holding and

voting rights, %

Kokkila Ilpo 13,552,000 36.9

Kolpi Investments Oy 5,178,129 14.1

Heliövaara Eero 1,909,483 5.2

Keskinäinen Työeläkevakuutusyhtiö Varma 1,430,000 3.9

Alfred Berg Finland Sijoitusrahasto 1,095,624 3.0

Linnoinen Hannu 615,566 1.7

Fondita Nordic Micro Cap 500,000 1.4

Valtion Eläkerahasto 470,000 1.3

Veritas Eläkevakuutusosakeyhtiö 437,000 1.2

Nieminen Timo 418,266 1.1

SRV Yhtiöt Oyj 407,759 1.1

Alfred Berg Optimal Sijoitusrahasto 380,681 1.0

Sundholm Göran 323,906 0.9

Alfred Berg Small Cap Finland 320,000 0.9

Stif telsen För Åbo Akademi 300,000 0.8

Suomen Itsenäisy yden Juhlarahasto 262,202 0.7

Keskinäinen Eläkevakuutusyhtiö Ilmarinen 225,000 0.6

Maa- ja Vesitekniikan Tuki Ry. 205,000 0.6

Laakkonen Mikko Kalervo 160,000 0.4

SRV Kalusto Ltd 150,241 0.4

20 largest shareholders 28,340,857 77.1

Nominee registration 596,363 1.6

Other 7,831,248 21.3

Total number of shares 36,768,468 100.0
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EUR 1,000 Note 2008 2007 2006

Revenue 536,964 561,425 479,490

Other operating income 5 1,371 1,111 3,664

Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 53,507 18,317 27,155

Use of materials and services -495,307 -509,734 -434,045

Employee benefit expenses 8 -46,323 -41,567 -36,814

Depreciation and impairments 7 -3,168 -1,917 -2,033

Other operating expenses 6 -14,126 -12,575 -12,800

Operating profit 32,917 15,059 24,617

Financial income 10 4,158 2,624 2,603

Financial expenses 10 -13,362 -6,146 -6,570

Financial income and expenses, total -9,204 -3,522 -3,967

Profit before taxes 23,712 11,537 20,650

Income taxes 11 -8,456 -3,894 -5,372

Net profit for the financial year 15,256 7,643 15,278

Attributable to

Equity holders of the parent company 15,702 7,185 14,470

Minority interest -446 458 808

Earnings per share calculated on the profi t attributable to equity holders of the parent company (undiluted and diluted) 12 0.43 0.22 0.56

Consolidated income statement
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EUR 1,000 Note 2008 2007

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 14 18,986 8,012

Goodwill 15 1,734 726

Other intangible assets 15 537 644

Other financial assets 16, 17 4,266 2,929

Receivables 16, 18 6,601 2,709

Deferred tax assets 19 1,698 1,121

Non-current assets, total 33,821 16,141

Current assets

Inventories 20 294,847 196,428

Trade and other receivables 16, 21 86,706 94,175

Current tax receivables 5,082 3,402

Cash and cash equivalents 22 3,372 21,407

Current assets, total 390,007 315,412

ASSETS TOTAL 423,829 331,554

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Share capital 23 3,063 3,063

Share premium reserve 23 0 0

Invested free equity fund 23 87,338 87,338

Translation dif ferences -86 22

Retained earnings 74,030 64,680

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company, total 164,345 155,103

Minority interest 2,264 3,236

Equity, total 166,609 158,339

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 19 272 142

Provisions 24 5,571 5,888

Interest-bearing liabilities 16, 25 69,358 37,677

Other liabilities 16, 26 390 414

Non-current liabilities, total 75,591 44,120

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16, 26 66,778 96,911

Current tax payable 7,990 1,600

Provisions 24 3,809 4,071

Interest-bearing liabilities 16, 25 103,052 26,511

Current liabilities, total 181,628 129,094

Liabilities, total 257,220 173,215

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES, TOTAL 423,829 331,554

Consolidated balance sheet
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EUR 1,000 Note 2008 2007 2006

Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit for the financial year 15,256 7,643 15,278

Adjustments:

Depreciation and impairments 3,168 1,917 2,033

Non-cash transac tions 30 -512 1,450 2,827

Financial income and expenses 9,204 3,522 3,966

Capital gains on sale of tangible and intangible assets -10 -148 -389

Income taxes 8,456 3,894 5,372

Adjustments, total 20,308 10,635 13,810

Changes in working capital:

Change in loan receivables -12,556 -2,701 31,472

Change in trade and other receivables 14,929 -22,951 18,408

Change in inventories -98,763 -62,844 -33,858

Change in trade and other payables -31,868 16,404 11,266

Changes in working capital, total -128,257 -72,092 27,287

Interest paid -12,973 -6,353 -8,204

Interest received 6,681 2,813 8,203

Dividends received 0 0 7

Income taxes paid -4,194 -6,295 -9,021

Net cash from operating activities -103,180 -63,650 47,359

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash -1,328 0 0

Property, plant and equipment -13,689 -4,215 -1,631

Intangible assets -258 -116 -625

Other financial assets -1,493 -1,023 -1,032

Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 85 740 2,343

Sale of financial assets 0 264 45

Net cash used in investing activities -16,683 -4,349 -899

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from share issue 0 113,430 0

Proceeds from loans 68,869 19,148 23,989

Repayments of loans -10,125 -13,536 -77,914

Change in loan receivables 0 176 1,470

Change in housing corporation loans 30,624 -21,829 -11,151

Change in credit limits 18,781 928 10,751

Purchase of treasury shares -1,918 -20,660 0

Dividends paid -4,404 -3,128 -2,215

Net cash from financing activities 101,828 74,530 -55,071

Net change in cash and cash equivalents -18,035 6,530 -8,611

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year 21,407 14,877 23,488

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 3,372 21,407 14,877

Consolidated cash fl ow statement
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EUR 1,000 Eguity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Share
capital

Share
premium

reserve

Invested
free equity

fund
Translation
dif ferences

Fair value 
reserve

Retained
earnings Total

Minority
interest

Equity
Total

Equity, total (IFRS), 1 Jan 2007 1,303 1,759 0 10 108 54,732 57,913 4,244 62,157

Translation dif ferences - - - 12 - - 12

Amount of available-for-sale financial assets removed 

from equity and recognised in the income statement - - - - -108 - -108

Other changes - - - - 60 60

Net income recognised directly in equity 0 0 0 12 -108 60 -36

Net profit for the financial year - - - - - 7,185 7,185

Total income and expenses for the financial year 0 0 0 0 0 7,185 7,185

Dividends paid - - - - - -3,128 -3,128

Transfer from share premium reserve to share capital 1,759 -1,759 - - - - 0

Share issue and employee of fering - - 116,602 - - 398 117,000

Share issue and employee of fering deduc tions - - - - -3,171 -3,171

Purchase and cancellation of treasury shares - - -29,263 - - 8,604 -20,660

Equity, total (IFRS), 31 Dec 2007 3,063 0 87,338 22 0 64,680 155,103 3,236 158,339

Equity, total (IFRS), 1 Jan 2008 3,063 0 87,338 22 0 64,680 155,103 3,236 158,339

Translation dif ferences - - - -108 - -108

Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets -75 -75

Other changes - - - - - 44 44

Net income recognised directly in equity 0 0 0 -108 -75 44 -139

Net profit for the financial year - - - - - 15,702 15,702

Total income and expenses for the financial year 0 0 0 0 0 15,702 15,702

Dividends paid - - - - - -4,403 -4,403

Purchase and cancellation of treasury shares - - - - - -1,918 -1,918

Equity, total (IFRS), 31 Dec 2008 3,063 0 87,338 -86 -75 74,104 164,345 2,264 166,609

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
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DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS

SRV Group Plc and its subsidiaries (the SRV Group) is a leading Finnish project 
management contractor that constructs and develops commercial and busi-
ness premises, residential housing as well as industrial and logistics facilities 
in Finland, Baltic countries and Russia. In line with the Group’s strategy, opera-
tions are organised into three business areas: Business Premises, Housing, and 
International. The main operational companies are SRV Toimitilat Ltd, which 
focuses on the construction of business and commercial premises as well as 
logistics facilities and infrastructure, SRV Asunnot Ltd, which carries out res-
idential construction in the Greater Helsinki area, and SRV International Ltd, 
which is responsible for operations abroad. The operations of the regional con-
struction companies outside the Greater Helsinki area consist primarily of res-
idential construction, and they are reported as part of the Housing segment. 
SRV Group Plc’s Project Development unit and Group Administration support 
and serve all the Group’s operations. 

The Group’s parent company, SRV Group Plc (the Company), is a Finnish public 
limited company which is domiciled in Espoo, Finland. The Company’s registered 
address is Niittytaival 13, 02200 Espoo.

Board of Directors has approved these consolidated fi nancial statements for 
issue on 10 February 2009.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared on 31 December 
2008 in accordance with IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards). 
International Financial Reporting Standards refer to the standards and their 
interpretations issued and approved for application within the EU in accordance 
with the procedure prescribed in EU regulation (EC) 1606/2002. The fi nancial 
statements are presented in thousands of euros unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared based on a histor-
ical cost basis, except for available-for-sale investments, fi nancial assets and lia-
bilities measured at fair value through income statement and derivative contracts 
measured at fair value as well as share-based payments which are measured at 
fair value.

Application of new standards, amendments and interpretations
The following standards, amendments and interpretations have been applied as 
from the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2008:

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Shares Transactions.  

This standard does not have an eff ect on the Group’s fi nancial position. It has 
eff ect on the notes of the consolidated fi nancial statements to some extent. 

The following standard has been has been early adopted.
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 

This standard do not have an eff ect on the Group’s fi nancial position. It has 
eff ect on the notes of the consolidated fi nancial statements to some extent.

The application of the following standards, amendments and interpretations 
is mandatory as from the accounting period beginning on or aft er 1 January 
2009: 

IAS 23 Borrowing costs (in force for the fi nancial year commencing 1 Janu- 

ary 2009). The Group will apply this standard as from 1 January 2009.
IAS 27 ja IAS 1 Cost of and Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled  

Entities or Associates (in force for the fi nancial year commencing 1 January 

2009 / EU has not approved). The Group will apply this standard as from 1 
January 2009.
IFRS 3 Business compinations and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate  

Financial Statements (in force for the fi nancial year commencing 1 January 
2010). The Group will apply this standard as from 1 January 2010.
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (in force for the  

fi nancial year commencing 1 January 2009 / EU has not approved). The 
Group will apply this standard as from 1 January 2010.

These standards, amendments and interpretations do have an eff ect on the 
Group’s fi nancial position. They have eff ect on the notes of the consolidated 
fi nancial statements to some extent.

2008 Annual Improvements to IFRS (in force for the fi nancial year com- 

mencing 1 January 2009). The Group will apply this standard as from 1 Jan-
uary 2009.
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements; Revised (in force for the fi nan- 

cial year commencing 1 January 2009). The Group will apply this standard 
as from 1 January 2009.
IAS 32 ja IAS 1 Financial Instruments Puttable Financial Instruments and  

Obligations Arising on Liquidation (in force for the fi nancial year commenc-
ing 1 January 2009). The Group will apply this standard as from 1 January 
2009.
IFRS 2 Vesting conditions and Cancellations (in force for the fi nancial year  

commencing 1 January 2009). The Group will apply this standard as from 1 
January 2009.
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (in force for  

the fi nancial year commencing 1 January 2009 / EU has not approved). The 
Group will apply this standard as from 1 January 2010.

These standards, amendments and interpretations do not have an eff ect on 
the Group’s fi nancial position. They have eff ect on the notes of the consolidated 
fi nancial statements to some extent.

Use of estimates
The preparation of fi nancial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the 
management to make certain estimates and to use the judgement in applying 
accounting policies. The estimates and assumptions have an eff ect on assets 
and liabilities as well as on revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Esti-
mates and assumptions have been used for example in the impairment testing 
of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, in the revenue 
recognition of construction contracts, in the measurement of current assets,  in 
the measurement of warranty and other provisions and in the recognition of 
income taxes. 

Revenues and expenses related to the construction contracts are recognised 
based on the percentage of completion method (in developer contracting projects 
on a combined percentage of completion method), when the outcome of the 
project can be estimated reliably. Revenue recognition according to the percentage 
of completion is dependent on estimates of the expected revenue and expenses 
from the project as well as on reliable measurement of the progress of the project. 
The estimate of the expected revenue from the project is aff ected by the esti-
mated amount of the rental liabilities. Should the estimates of the project’s out-
come change, the revenues and the profi t will be correspondingly changed during 
the fi nancial period that the change is discovered and can be estimated.

The Group carries out an annual impairment testing of goodwill and intangible 
assets having an indefi nite useful life. The recoverable amounts of cash-generat-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ing units have been defi ned on the basis of value in use calculations. The prepara-
tion of these calculations requires use of estimates. 

Warranty provisions and 10-year warranty provisions are recorded when the 
amount of the provision can be estimated reliably. The recorded amount is the 
best estimate of the expected cost that will be required to meet the claim as of 
the balance sheet date. The estimate concerning probability of costs is based on 
previous similar events and previous experience and it requires judgement from 
the Group management.

When preparing the fi nancial statements the Group estimates the net realisa-
ble value of current assets and the possible consequent need for write down. Esti-
mates of net realisable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at 
the time the estimates are made as to the amount the inventories are expected 
to realise.

When preparing the fi nancial statements the Group especially estimates if there 
is a need for recognition of deferred taxes. The Group prepares an estimate about 
the probability of the profi ts of subsidiaries against which the unused tax losses 
or unused tax credits can be used.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsidiaries
The consolidated fi nancial statements comprise the parent company SRV 
Group Plc and all the companies in which SRV Group Plc holds, directly or indi-
rectly, more than 50 per cent of the voting rights or otherwise exercises con-
trol. Control means the right to govern the fi nancial and operating policies of an 
entity to obtain the benefi ts from its activities. Balance sheets of developer con-
tracting projects are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements.

The fi nancial statements of the SRV Group have been consolidated using the 
purchase method. Acquisition cost is determined by taking into account funds 
given as consideration and measured at fair value, and liabilities assumed, as well 
as the direct costs of an acquisition. Acquired and identifyable assets and liabilities 
are measured at fair value at the acquisition date, irrespective of the size of any 
minority interest. The amount by which the cost exceeds the fair value of Group’s 
share of the net identifi able assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill 
is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually. If the acquisition cost is 
less than the fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s net assets, this diff erence is 
recorded directly to the income statement. When the group acquires minority 
interests the amount by which the cost exceeds the acquired equity is recognized 
as goodwill. 

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed as necessary to cor-
respond the Group’s accounting policies. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated starting from the date of acquisition, being the 
date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the 
date that such control ceases. 

Intra-group transactions, receivables and liabilities as well as unrealised gains on 
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the consolidated fi nancial statements. 
Unrealised losses are eliminated if the loss is not caused by an impairment. 

Minority interest has been presented separately aft er Net profi t for the period 
and in Total equity.

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are companies in which the Group exercises a shared controlling 
interest with other parties based on an agreement. The Group’s holding in joint 
ventures is consolidated proportionally on a line by line basis. The consolidated 
fi nancial statements consist of the Group’s share of joint ventures’ assets, lia-
bilities, income and expenses.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Functional and presentation currency
Items of each group company included in the consolidated fi nancial statements 
are measured using the currency that best refl ects the economic substance of 
the underlying events and circumstances relevant to group company (the func-

tional currency). The functional currency of a group company may therefore dif-
fer from the currency used in its country of location. The consolidated fi nan-
cial statements are presented in euros, which is the parent company's func-
tional currency.

Group companies
The income statements of those subsidiaries whose reporting currency is not 
Euro are translated into euros using the average rate for the fi nancial period. 
The balance sheets of subsidiaries are translated into euros using the rates at 
the balance sheet date. The translation diff erences arising from the use of dif-
ferent exchange rates are recorded in Translation diff erences under equity. 
In so far as the loans between the group companies are considered part of 
net investment in foreign subsidiaries, the currency exchange diff erences are 
recorded in Translation diff erences. When a foreign subsidiary is sold, the 
cumulative translation diff erences are recognised in the income statement as 
part of the capital gain or loss. 

Transactions and balance sheet items
Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded using the exchange 
rate on the date of the transaction. Monetary foreign currency items in the bal-
ance sheet are measured using the exchange rate at the closing date. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currency are measured using the 
exchange rate on date of the transaction. Exchange rate gains and losses on 
business operations are included in corresponding items above operating profi t. 
Exchange rate diff erences of fi nancing items are included in fi nancial income 
and expenses.

INCOME RECOGNITION

Construction contracts
Income and costs of construction contracts are recorded as revenue and 
expenses on the basis of the percentage of completion, when the outcome of 
the project can be estimated reliably. The percentage of completion is calculated 
on the basis of the estimated total cost of a contract and the cumulative costs 
at the balance sheet date. 

Income and costs from developer contracting projects are recognised as reve-
nue based on the combined percentage of completion which is calculated based 
on percentage of completion of the construction and the degree of sale. Cumu-
lative cost in excess of the combined percentage of completion is recognised in 
Work in progress in Inventories.

If it is probable that the total expenditure required to complete a contract will 
exceed the total income from the project, the expected loss is expensed immedi-
ately. Revenue from projects which comprise construction and rental liability are 
recognised as one construction contract. Gross profi t is recognised on projects 
containing a rental liability starting from the point when the total revenue from 
the fi xed construction contract and the rental agreements concluded exceeds 
the estimated total cost of the project. The recognition of revenues is deferred in 
respect of the estimated rental liability and this estimated deferral is recognised in 
Advance payments in Liabilities. The rental security deposits reduce the Advance 
payments of the project. Uncertainty associated with a lease agreements is taken 
into account in income recognition. 

If the costs and recorded profi ts of construction contracts exceed the amount 
of progress billings, the diff erence is disclosed in Trade and other receivables. If 
costs and recorded profi ts of construction contracts are less than the amount of 
progress billings, the diff erence is disclosed in Trade and other payables.

ORDER BACKLOG

A construction project is included in the order backlog when the construc-
tion contract of the project has been signed or the decision to start construc-
tion has been made in case of a developer contracting project. The order back-
log consists of the construction contracts not yet recognised as revenue (includ-
ing the plot).
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BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

SRV’s research and development expenditures are planning costs of developer 
contracting projects and development projects for which the decision to start 
has not yet been made. These costs are recorded as an expense in the income 
statement.

 
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is valued at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and possible accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost con-
sists of the costs directly related to acquiring the asset. 

Land and water areas are not amortised because the economic life of these 
assets cannot be determined. Depreciation on other tangible assets than land and 
water areas is calculated by using the reducing balance method or on a straight-
line basis by recording acquisition costs as expense over their estimated economic 
lives as follows:

Buildings and structures, reducing balance method 4–7% 

Machinery and equipment, reducing balance method 25% 

Other intangible assets, straight-line method 3–5 years 

The carrying amounts and economic lives of property, plant and equipment are 
estimated and values adjusted as needed. The Group estimates at every bal-
ance sheet date if there is a need for impairment. If the carrying amount of an 
asset item exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is 
lowered to correspond the recoverable amount. 

Capital gains and losses on property, plant and equipment are included in the 
income statement.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets which have a limited useful life are valued at historical cost 
and amortised over their estimated economic life (3–5 years).  Intangible assets 
which have an unlimited useful life are tested yearly for impairment.

Goodwill is the excess of the cost of the business combination over the fair 
value of the Group’s share of acquired net assets. Goodwill is subject to an annual 
impairment test. For this purpose, goodwill has been allocated to cash-generat-
ing units. Goodwill is measured at historical cost less impairment. Impairment is 
expensed directly to the income statement. 

Assets which are depreciated or amortised are always tested for impairment 
when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not 
be recovered. An impairment is recorded through profi t and loss to the extent 
that the carrying amount of the asset item exceeds the recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of the following: the fair value of the asset item 
less selling costs or its value in use.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group classifi es its fi nancial assets and liabilities into the following catego-
ries: fi nancial assets held for trading, loans and other receivables, available-for-
sale fi nancial assets,  fi nancial liabilities held for trading and fi nancial liabilities 
measured at amortised costs.

The classifi cation is made in accordance with the purpose for which the fi nan-
cial assets were initially acquired. The Group records fi nancial assets and liabilities 
in the balance sheet when it becomes a party to the contractual terms and con-
ditions of the instrument. Group management defi nes the classifi cation of fi nan-
cial assets and liabilities in the initial recognition. Purchases and sales of fi nan-
cial assets are recognised on the clearing day. Financial assets are derecognised 
from the balance sheet when the contractual right to the cash fl ows of the item 
included in fi nancial assets ceases or when the Group has transferred a signifi -

cant part of the risks and returns associated with the fi nancial assets. Financial 
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specifi ed in the contract has been 
fulfi lled, cancelled or the liability has ceased.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting
Derivative fi nancial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at 
cost which corresponds to their fair value on the transaction day and subse-
quently measured at their fair value on each balance sheet day. At the time of 
entering into derivative instrument the Group designates them as either cash 
fl ow hedges of business or fi nancing cash fl ows or as hedges of investments in 
foreign entities.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments qualifying for IAS 39 hedge 
accounting are recognised in equity under the Fair value reserve for their eff ective 
part. The cumulative gain or loss of derivatives is transferred into income state-
ment as revenue or expense for the same accounting period when the underly-
ing hedged item is recognised the income statement. The ineff ective part of the 
hedge is recognised directly in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments which do not qualify for IAS 
39 hedge accounting are recognised directly in the income statement.

Group’s Treasury unit is responsible for the hedge transactions according to the 
policy approved by the Board of Directors. Hedge accounting is applied for rel-
evant forecasted business or fi nancing cash fl ows. Hedge accounting is always 
applied for hedges of investments in foreign entities. 

During the fi scal year 2008 there were no hedges qualifying for IAS 39 hedge 
accounting.

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading 
The derivative instruments which do not meet the criteria for hedge account-
ing are classifi ed as fi nancial assets or liabilities held for trading. Derivatives are 
initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost, which corresponds to their fair 
value on the transaction day and thereaft er measured at fair value on each bal-
ance sheet date. Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement 
under Other fi nancial income and expense and in the balance sheet under short 
term fi nancial assets or liabilities. The fair values are based on quoted market 
prices and exchange rates on balance sheet date.

Loans and other receivables
Loans and other receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or 
defi nable payments. They are not quoted on the market and it is not a pri-
mary intention of the company to sell them in the short term. Loans and other 
receivables are included in non-current fi nancial assets, except for items whose 
maturity is shorter than twelve months. These items are classifi ed as current 
fi nancial assets. 

Loans and other receivables, including trade receivables, are recorded in the bal-
ance sheet at amortised cost. Interest is recognised in the income statement over 
the maturity of the loan using the eff ective interest method. Impairment loss is 
recognised if there is evidence that the Group will not recover the receivable in full 
or in part according to the original terms. Matters that constitute evidence of this 
kind can be a debtor’s serious fi nancial problems, the probability that a debtor will 
end up in bankruptcy or is subjected to other fi nancial arrangements as well as 
payment delinquency. The amount of the impairment is the diff erence between 
the receivable in the balance sheet and the present value of estimated future cash 
fl ows.

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are fi nancial assets that are either defi ned 
belonging to this category or which cannot be classifi ed in any other category. 
They are included in non-current fi nancial assets unless Group intents to sell 
the investment within twelve months of the balance sheet date. 
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Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are measured at fair value using quoted mar-
ket prices or applicable valuation models. Changes in the fair value are recognised 
directly in equity. When the asset is sold, the cumulative changes in fair value are 
recognised as a transfer from equity to income statement. 

Investments are derecognised when the rights to the cash fl ows from the 
investment cease to exist or they have been transferred and the Group has trans-
ferred the substantial risks and rewards of ownership. 

The Group estimates at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evi-
dence that a single asset or group of assets belonging to available-for-sale fi nan-
cial assets is impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, current bank deposits as well as 
other current liquid investments with a maturity not exceeding three months. 
Bank overdraft s are included in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction expenses 
have been included in the original carrying amount of fi nancial liabilities. Inter-
est is recognised in the income statement over the maturity of the loan using 
the eff ective interest method. Financial liabilities are recognised in the balance 
sheet under non-current and current liabilities and they can be interest-bearing 
or non-interest-bearing

An external loan from a fi nancial institution taken out by housing corporations 
in connection with developer contracting contracts is recognised as a liability to 
the extent it relates to the unsold shares of the housing corporation. The loan is 
derecognised when the purchaser assumes the liability.

LEASES

Operating leases
Lease agreements in which the risks and benefi ts are retained by the lessor are 
classifi ed as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are 
recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straightline basis over 
the lease term.

INVENTORIES

The costing of raw materials and consumables is measured using weighted 
average cost method.

The balance sheet item “Work in progress” comprises the cost of construc-
tion work and plot for uncompleted construction projects not yet expensed. The 
acquisition costs included in the Work in progress are raw materials, direct cost of 
labour, other direct costs as well as the indirect costs of purchase and construc-
tion.

The balance sheet item “Land areas and plot-owning companies” comprises 
costs of development stage projects. The costs that are considered to increase 
the value of land areas and plot-owning companies are capitalised. 

The balance sheet item “Shares in completed housing corporations and real-
estate companies” comprises unsold completed projects.

The balance sheet item “Advance payments” comprises advance payments in 
connection with the inventories.

The balance sheet item “Other inventories” comprises share capitals from 
projects of which the decision to start construction has not yet been made and 
the property bought for resale.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In ordinary 
business, net realisable value is the estimated selling price which is obtainable, 
less the estimated costs incurred in bringing the product to its present condition 
and selling expenses. 

INCOME TAXES

Tax expense in the income statement comprises current taxes and deferred 
taxes. Current tax is calculated based on the taxable income for the fi nancial 
period using the statutory tax rate that is force in each country at the balance 
sheet date (and local tax legislation). Taxes are adjusted for any taxes for previ-
ous periods. 

Deferred taxes are recognised on temporary diff erences. Deferred taxes are not 
recognised in connection with investments made in subsidiaries when the Group 
can control the timing of the reversal of the temporary diff erence, and the tempo-
rary diff erence will probably not be reverse in the foreseeable future. 

A tax asset is recognised to the extent when it is probable that the asset can be 
utilised against future taxable income.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension liabilities
Group companies have various pension plans in accordance with the local reg-
ulations and practices of each country of operation. Pension plans are funded 
through contributions paid to insurance companies based on paid salaries and 
wages. 

The Group has only defi ned contribution plans. The payments in connection 
with Group’s defi ned contribution plans are recognised in the income statement 
in the period which they relate to.

Share-based payment
The Group applies IFRS 2 Share-based Payment standard on its share-based 
incentive schemes. Share-based incentive scheme is valued at fair value by 
using the Black & Scholes pricing model in every interim and annual closing. 
The change in the incentive liability is recognised in the income statement. The 
share-based payments of the Group are cash settled transactions.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obli-
gation as a result of a past event, the payment obligation is probable and the 
amount of obligation can be reliably estimated. 

If compensation can be received from a third party for a part of the obliga-
tion, the compensation is recognised as a separate item when it is virtually certain 
that the compensation will be received. A provision is recognised for a loss-mak-
ing contract when the costs required to meet the obligations exceed the benefi ts 
received from the contract.

SRV and its subsidiaries are reengaged in several legal proceedings which relate 
to ordinary business or to other processes. The result of these legal proceedings 
and processes is diffi  cult to predict. In case of litigation a provision is recognised 
in the fi nancial statements according to the mentioned accounting policies when 
there is a legal or constructive obligation against third-party, payment obligation 
is probable and the amount of an obligation can be reliably estimated.

Warranty provisions comprise the costs resulting from the repair of completed 
projects if the warranty period is still in eff ect at the balance sheet date. A war-
ranty provision is recognised at the time of the project hand-over, and the amount 
of provision is based on prior experience of the materialisation of warranty 
expenses. It is expected that warranty provisions are used during the two years 
from the completion of the project. 

The amount of a 10-year warranty provision in the construction industry is 
based on prior experience of the materialisation of these expenses. It is expected 
that a 10-year provision will be used over the ten years following the completion 
of the project.

DIVIDENDS

The dividend payout proposed by the Board of Directors to the Annual General 
Meeting is recognised in the fi nancial statements when the company’s share-
holders have approved the relevant resolution at the Annual General Meeting.
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Segment information has been prepared in compliance with IFRS 8 and it follows 
the accounting standards of Group's fi nancial statements as well as the Group’s 
management and organisational structure. IFRS 8 has been early adopted. The 
standard is eff ective for fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 1 January 2009.

Pricing of transactions between the operating segments equals the market price. 
Segments assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the segment 
uses in its operations or which can be allocated to the segments on a reasonable 
basis. Unallocated items include income taxes and fi nancial items as well as Group 
level items. 

OPERATING SEGMENTS

SRV Group has the following operating segments:

Business premises
Business Premises operating segment is specialised in offi  ce, commercial, logis-
tics and underground construction in Finland. The customers are primarily users 
of premises, owners of properties or plots and real-estate investors as well as 
municipalities, the State and other public sector entities. Business Premises 
brings special expertise to the design and implementation of the Group’s joint 
projects for the development and construction of commercial and offi  ce premises.

Housing
Housing operating segment comprises residential construction in the Greater Hel-
sinki area and its peripheral communities as well as the operations of the regional 

EUR 1,000
Business

Premises Housing International Other Total

Revenue, external 349,097 127,826 60,062 -21 536,964

Revenue, internal 23 50 10 11,494 11,578

Total 349,120 127,875 60,072 11,473 548,541

Operating profit 27,824 704 9,236 -4,926 32,839

Segment's assets

Non-current 917 1,932 16,232 12,547 31,627

Current

Land areas and plot-owning companies 24,604 41,560 75,959 0 142,123

Work in progres 29,951 57,267 13,565 0 100,783

Shares in completed housing corporations and real estate companies 0 30,618 3,321 0 33,938

Other inventories 5,048 4,602 9,262 10 18,922

Inventories total 59,602 134,047 102,108 10 295,767

Other current assets 56,355 22,413 40,308 172,552 291,627

Total 116,874 158,392 158,647 185,108 619,022

Segment's liabilities

Non-current 1,116 58,294 12,677 6,856 78,943

Current 80,551 83,206 134,560 58,825 357,142

Total 81,667 141,500 147,236 65,682 436,084

Invested capital

At the end of period 63,872 138,925 138,578 339,409

Return on investment, % 60.8 0.7 9.3 12.9

Order backlog 265,728 154,004 35,611 455,343

2008

1  SEGMENT INFORMATION
subsidiaries. The regional companies carry out residential, commercial, offi  ce 
premises and logistics construction projects. The clientele is made up of consum-
ers, professional developers and public sector entities. Housing brings special 
expertise to the design and implementation of the Group’s joint projects within 
new residential construction and refurbishment.

International
International is specialised in the implementation of construction projects in the 
Baltic countries and in Russia’s regional centres as well as in developer construc-
tion of residential projects in selected markets. The product range covers hous-
ing, offi  ce and commercial premises as well as logistics and industrial sites. The 
clientele consists primarily of Finnish and international companies expanding into 
this region as well as real-estate investors and consumers.

Operating segments derive the revenues from construction services. Other 
operations include Group services and the services related to rental of construc-
tion equipment.

The geographical distribution of the Group’s operations is in line with the 
operating segments. International comprises the operations in Russia and in the 
Baltic countries. The operations of other business segments comprise the opera-
tions in Finland.

During the fi nancial year 1 January–31 December 2008, the Group had one 
major customer in accordance with IFRS 8 and its share of revenue amounted to 
EUR 55,4 million. The revenue was allocated to the Business premises segment. 

During the fi nancial year 1 January–31 December 2007, the Group did not have 
major customers according to the defi nition of IFRS 8.
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EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Segment's operating profit 37,765 18,485 26,510

Operating profit, others -4,926 -3,070 -4,403

Eliminations and other adjustments 78 -356 2,510

Total 32,917 15,059 24,617

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Segment's revenue 537,068 561,696 479,667

Revenue, others 11,473 11,178 6,011

Eliminations and other adjustments -11,578 -11,450 -6,188

Total 536,964 561,425 479,490

Revenue Operating profi t

EUR 1,000
Business

Premises Housing International Other Total

Revenue, external 296,922 137,905 44,564 99 479,490

Revenue, internal 63 212 1 5,912 6,188

Total 296,985 138,117 44,565 6,011 485,678

Operating profit 24,961 5,108 -3,559 -4,403 22,107

EUR 1,000
Business

Premises Housing
International

Operations Other Total

Revenue, external 345,254 162,959 53,164 48 561,425

Revenue, internal 141 134 45 11,130 11,450

Total 345,394 163,093 53,209 11,178 572,875

Operating profit 18,042 10,682 -10,239 -3,070 15,415

Segment's assets

Non-current 973 2,584 2,439 9,538 15,534

Current

Land areas and plot-owning companies 16,447 26,455 20,820 585 64,307

Work in progress 27,563 41,871 17,223 0 86,657

Shares in completed housing corporations and real estate companies 0 20,790 9,468 0 30,258

Other inventories 5,044 4,822 6,051 15 15,932

Inventories total 49,054 93,937 53,562 600 197,153

Other current assets 67,162 16,927 58,270 151,873 294,233

Total 117,189 113,449 114,271 162,011 506,920

Segment's liabilities

Non-current 1,195 28,146 14,798 727 44,866

Current 82,691 65,665 90,101 30,820 269,278

Total 83,886 93,811 104,900 31,547 314,144

Invested capital

At the end of period 33,403 81,517 101,265 222,933

Return on investment, % 52.4 16.7 -11.3 9.7

Order backlog 302,759 174,583 51,337 528,678

2007

2006
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Disposals during 2008 

SRV Group did not have signifi cant disposals of businesses in 2008.
Disposals during 2007 

SRV Group did not have signifi cant disposals of businesses in 2007.
Disposals during 2006 

In 2006, SRV Group sold its 51% holding in SRV Statyba UAB for EUR 
45,000. Since the carrying amount at the time of sale was EUR 29,000 the 
eff ect of the sale on profi t before taxes was EUR 16,000. The sale of hold-
ing did not have signifi cant impact on consolidated balance sheet.

Acquisitions during 2008 

SRV Group did not acquire new businesses in 2008.
Acquisitions during 2007 

SRV Group did not acquire new businesses in 2007.
Acquisitions during 2006 

SRV Group did not acquire new businesses in 2006.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Capital gains on sales of property, plant 

and equipment and intangible assets 10 148 423

Rental income 1,069 544 1,579

Other income 292 420 1,662

Total 1,371 1,111 3,664

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Revenue from construc tion contrac ts rec-

ognised as income during the financial year 529,719 554,117 477,423

Contract costs and profits at the end of 

financial year (less recognised losses) 1) 373,377 307,471 284,913

Gross amount due from customers related

to construc tion contrac ts 2) 21,874 32,161 13,645

Gross amount due to customers related

to construc tion contrac ts 3) 18,707 45,516 35,078

 1) Related to the work in progress.
2) Expenses and recognised profi ts exceeding the progress billings are disclosed in the balance 

sheet under Trade and other receivables.
3) If the actual expenses and profi ts recorded are less than progress billings, the diff erence is 

disclosed under Trade and other payables.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Rental expenses 2,850 2,463 2,334

Voluntary indirect personnel expenses 1,162 1,149 972

Car and travel expenses 1,455 1,115 873

Entertainment and marketing 1,270 1,378 1,773

Communications and IT 1,419 1,317 1,160

Other external services 1,373 1,264 1,024

Other fixed expenses 4,598 3,888 4,664

Total 14,126 12,575 12,800

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Audit 280 252 129

Auditors' statements 10 9 10

Tax services 63 29 7

Other services 69 397 54

Total 422 688 200

6  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2  ACQUISITIONS

3   DISPOSALS

4  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

5  OTHER OPERATING INCOME

EUR million 2008 2007

Order backlogs of the segments 455.3 528.7

Total 455.3 528.7

Order backlog

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Segment's assets 433,913 344,909

Assets, others 185,108 162,011

Eliminations and other adjustments -196,891 -176,487

Deferred tax assets 1,698 1,121

Total 423,829 331,554

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Segment's liabilities 370,403 282,597

Liabilities, others 65,682 31,547

Eliminations and other adjustments -179,136 -141,071

Deferred tax liabilities 272 142

Total 257,220 173,215

Liabilities

Auditing fees

Assets
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EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Depreciation

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets 369 375 422

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings and structures 746 118 154

Machinery and equipment 2,053 1,422 1,440

Other tangible assets 0 1 17

Total 3,168 1,917 2,033

7  DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENTS

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Wages and salaries 1) 37,736 33,055 29,286

Pension expenses 

- defined contribution plans 6,011 5,613 4,950

Share-based incentive scheme -54 115 0

Employee of fering cost 2) 0 398 0

Other indirec t personnel expenses 2,630 2,386 2,578

Total 46,323 41,567 36,814

1)  Information on management’s compensation as well as employee benefi ts is disclosed in 
Section 32 Related party transactions.

2) The size of employee off ering of 442,700 shares was decided in the Board of Directors 
meeting held on 11 June, 2007. The employee off ering was carried out by EUR 8.10 per share 
which was EUR 0.90 lower than the institutional and retail off ering price. The total cost of 
employee off ering was EUR 398,430.

8  EMPLOYEE-BENEFIT EXPENSES

2008 2007 2006

Business Premises 308 281 219

Housing 292 290 282

International 175 102 84

Other 96 88 83

Total 871 761 668

Share-based incentive scheme

Grant year 2006 3)

Subscription ratio 1:1

Exercise price 3.85

Dividend adjusted exercise price 3.61

Amount granted 100,000

Subscription period 2010–2013

3) One member of the Management team of SRV has share-based incentive scheme. Under the 
scheme the person is entitled to a share bonus which SRV may upon its discretion pay in cash 
or as shares. According to the scheme the members of the Management team are entitled to 
the share bonus only when they are employed by the Group. The amount to be paid as a share 
bonus is based on the price development of SRV Group Plc's share. The amount to be paid is 
determined as the diff erence between a specifi ed initial price and the publicly quoted price of 
the share determined in a more specifi ed way on the date on which the share bonus is paid. 
This share-based incentive scheme is valued at fair value by using the Black & Scholes pricing 
model in every interim and annual closing. The change in the incentive liability is recognised in 
the income statement. The volatility used in the pricing model is 40%.

The above mentioned incentive scheme became a share-based incentive 
scheme as a consequence of the initial public off ering.

On 11 February 2008, the Board of Directors of SRV Group Plc approved a new 
share-based incentive plan for the Group’s key personnel. The Plan includes 
three earning periods – the calendar years 2008, 2009 and 2010. The poten-
tial reward from earning period 2008 will be paid in 2009, partly as shares in 
the company and partly as cash. The proportion to be paid in cash will cover 
taxes and tax-related costs arising from the reward. The shares may not be 
transferred during the two-year restriction period. If a key person’s employment 
or service ends during said restriction period, he/she must return the shares 
rewarded under the Plan to the company without compensation. The earnings 
target for the 2008 earning period was not met, and thus no rewards will be 
paid for 2008 under the system.

SRV Group has only defi ned contribution plans in connection with the pensions.

Average number of personnel

SRV Group's research and development costs attribute to the planning costs 
of the developer contracting projects and the development projects for which 
construction decision has not been made. These costs are recognised as an 
expense in the income statement.

9  RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
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2008 2007 2006

Net profit for the financial year 

attributable to equity holders of the 

parent company, EUR 1,000 15,702 7,185 14,470

During the financial year, 1,000 shares 36,526 32,703 26,064

Earnings per share, EUR/share 0.43 0.22 0.56

The dividends paid in 2008 were EUR 0.12 per share, totalling EUR 4.4 million. 
The dividends paid in 2007 were EUR 0.12 per share, totalling EUR 3.1 million. 
The dividends paid in 2006 were EUR 0.08 per share, totalling EUR 2.2 million.  
A dividend of EUR 0.12 per share will be proposed at the Annual General Meet-
ing on 24 March 2009 corresponding to total dividends of EUR 4.4 million. 
This proposed dividend is not recorded as liability in the fi nancial statements.

The income taxes in the consolidated income statement diff er from the statu-
tory income tax rate in Finland (26% in 2008, 2007 and 2006) as follows:

12  EARNINGS PER SHARE

13  DIVIDEND PER SHARE

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Profit before taxes 23,712 11,537 20,650

Income taxes at statutory tax 

rate in Finland (26%) 6,165 3,000 5,369

Dif fering tax rates of foreign subsidiaries 154 58 -139

Ef fec t of changes in income tax 

rates on deferred taxes -59 0 -27

Tax exempt income -54 -1 -327

Non-deduc tible expenses 2,267 185 98

Tax losses and temporary dif-

ferences not recognised 288 311 222

Taxes for previous financial years -30 269 -163

Group eliminations -274 73 339

Income taxes 8,456 3,894 5,372

SRV Group Plc does not have arrangements that dilute earnings per share.

Income tax reconciliation

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Financial income

Income on available-for-sale assets 0 42 7

Interest income from loans and receivables 2,545 1,717 2,282

Other financial income 1,661 12 7

Total 4,207 1,770 2,296

Financial expenses

Expenses for financial 

liabilities at amortised cost -10,250 -5,323 -5,011

Losses on available-for-sale assets -14 -5 0

Other financial expenses -2,161 -843 -1,103

Total -12,425 -6,171 -6,114

Exchange rate 

and fair value gains and losses

Loans and other receivables -364 35 -1,544

Liabilities at amortised cost -15 5 1,097

Other 0 -13 -2

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value -608 852 301

Total -987 879 -148

Financial income and expenses, total -9,204 -3,522 -3,967

Other aggregate exchange 

differences charged / credited 

to the income statement

Revenue 223 232 4

Other operating expenses 0 -6 0

Total 223 226 4

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Current taxes 8,981 5,475 5,281

Taxes for previous financial years -30 269 -106

Deferred taxes -495 -1,849 197

Total 8,456 3,894 5,372

Ef fec tive income tax rate, % 35.7 33.8 26.0

11  INCOME TAXES

Income taxes in the income statement

10  FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
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14  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

EUR 1,000
Land and

water areas
Buildings and

struc tures
Machinery and

equipment
Other

 tangible assets
Advance

payments Total

Historical cost, 1 Jan 273 3,056 10,726 7 32 14,094

Increases 0 10,105 2,588 0 1,000 13,693

Decreases 0 0 -44 0 -32 -76

Reclassifications 0 0 -35 28 0 -7

Foreign exchange dif ferences 0 82 78 0 0 160

Historical cost, 31 Dec 273 13,243 13,313 35 1,000 27,864

Accumulated depreciation and impairments, 1 Jan 0 -686 -5,393 -3 0 -6,082

Depreciation 0 -746 -2,053 0 0 -2,799

Accumulated depreciations of decreases 0 0 0 3 0 3

Accumulated depreciation and impairments, 31 Dec 0 -1,432 -7,446 0 0 -8,878

Carrying amount, 1 Jan 273 2,370 5,333 4 32 8,012

Carrying amount, 31 Dec 273 11,811 5,867 35 1,000 18,986

2008

EUR 1,000
Land and

water areas
Buildings and

struc tures
Machinery and

equipment
Other

 tangible assets
Advance

payments Total

Historical cost, 1 Jan 271 1,643 7,999 172 0 10,085

Increases 3 1,404 2,778 1 32 4,218

Decreases -1 -559 -72 0 0 -632

Reclassifications 0 568 21 -166 0 423

Historical cost, 31 Dec 273 3,056 10,726 7 32 14,094

Accumulated depreciation and impairments, 1 Jan 0 -598 -3,971 -37 0 -4,606

Depreciation 0 -118 -1,422 -1 0 -1,541

Accumulated depreciations of decreases 0 39 0 35 0 74

Foreign exchange dif ferences 0 -9 0 0 0 -9

Accumulated depreciation and impairments, 31 Dec 0 -686 -5,393 -3 0 -6,082

Carrying amount, 1 Jan 271 1,045 4,028 135 0 5,479

Carrying amount, 31 Dec 273 2,370 5,333 4 32 8,012

Finance lease agreements
SRV Group had no fi nance lease agreements in 2008 and 2007.

2007
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EUR 1,000
Intangible

rights Goodwill

Other
capitalised

expenditure Total

Historical cost, 1 Jan 250 726 1,562 2,538

Increases 0 0 116 116

Decreases 0 0 -2 -2

Historical cost, 31 Dec 250 726 1,676 2,652

Accumulated amortisation, 1 Jan 0 0 -907 -907

Amortisation 0 0 -375 -375

Accumulated amortisation, 31 Dec 0 0 -1,282 -1,282

Carrying amount, 1 Jan 250 726 655 1,631

Carrying amount, 31 Dec 250 726 394 1,370

SRV Group’s goodwill is allocated to operating segments and to cash-generat-
ing units as follows:

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Housing

SRV Asunnot Ltd 1,734 380

Rakennusliike Erkki Huhdanpää Oy * 0 346

Total 1,734 726

*) The company was merged with SRV Asunnot Ltd on 31 December 2008.

Impairment test
The recoverable amount of cash-generating units is based on value in use cal-
culation model in which cash fl ows are based on baseyear fi gures and on busi-
ness units growing cash fl ows for the next  5 years strategy period. SRV’s mid-
term target is to reach an average annual consolidated revenue growth of about 
15 per cent. SRV will seek to increase the level of operating profi t and achieve 
an 8 per cent operating profi t margin over the medium and long term. Group's 
objective is also to maintain the equity ratio above 30 per cent.

In the impairment test of goodwill performed in January 2009, a growth fac-
tor of 2 per cent was used and it does not exceed the actual long-term growth of 
the business. The main factors in impairment test are operating profi t margin and 
discount factor. The discount factor used is the latest weighted average cost of 
capital (WACC) pre-tax. In the value in use calculation a WACC of 8 per cent was 

2007

Goodwill

EUR 1,000
Intangible

rights Goodwill

Other
capitalised

expenditure Total

Historical cost, 1 Jan 250 726 1,676 2,652

Increases 0 1,008 258 1,266

Decreases 0 0 7 7

Historical cost, 31 Dec 250 1,734 1,941 3,925

Accumulated amortisation, 1 Jan 0 0 -1,282 -1,282

Amortisation 0 0 -369 -369

Accumulated depreciations of decreases 0 0 -3 -3

Accumulated amortisation, 31 Dec 0 0 -1,654 -1,654

Carrying amount, 1 Jan 250 726 394 1,370

Carrying amount, 31 Dec 250 1,734 287 2,271

 The increase in goodwill in 2008 relates to the purchase of 30% of ownership in Erkki Huhdanpää Oy and 7.5% in SRV Keski-Suomi Ltd.• 

15  GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2008
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used. The calculation parameters of WACC are risk-free interest rate, market risk 
and company specifi c premium, industry specifi c beta, the cost of liabilities
and equity ratio.

The recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amounts signifi cantly in all 
cash-generating units with goodwill. According to the impairment tests
there were no need for impairments.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis was permormed to each cash-generating unit sepa-
rately. When reassessing the goodwills of the Housing unit a fi ve (5) per cent 
decline in operating profi t margin does not cause impairments.

The performed sensitivity analysis does not cause impairments for cash-gener-
ating units when using moderate changes in default factors.

EUR 1,000

Financial
assets and liabilities

held for trading
Loans and

receivables

Available-
for-sale financial

assets

Financial
liabilities

measured at
amortised cost

Carrying
amounts by

balance sheet
item Fair value Note

Non-current financial asset

Long-term interest bearing receivables 0 6,601 0 0 6,601 6,753 18

Other financial assets 0 0 4,266 0 4,266 4,266 17

Current financial assets

Trade receivables 0 40,438 0 0 40,438 40,438 21,27

Construc tion contrac ts 0 21,874 0 0 21,874 21,874 21

Other receivables 0 15,000 0 0 15,000 15,078 21

Derivative instruments 9 0 0 0 9 9 29

Cash and cash equivalents 0 3,372 0 0 3,372 3,372 22

Total 9 87,284 4,266 0 91,558 91,790

Non-current financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 0 0 0 69,358 69,358 69,987 25

Other non-current liabilities 0 0 0 390 390 390 26

Current financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 0 0 0 103,052 103,052 103,084 25

Trade payables 0 0 0 19,761 19,761 19,761 26

Total 0 0 0 192,561 192,561 193,222

16  CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 
  AND LIABILITIES BY MEASUREMENT CATEGORIES

2008



72

SRV FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2008      NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, IFRS

Other fi nancial assets include both quoted and unquoted shares, which are 
classifi ed as available-for-sale fi nancial assets. 

Quoted shares have been valued at fair value at the closing date and the 
amount is considered immaterial.

The fair values of unquoted shares cannot be determined reliably. 
Unquoted shares are measured at cost less possible impairments.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Carrying amount, 1 Jan 2,929 2,317

Increases 1,450 1,319

Decreases 0 -663

Amount of available-for-sale financial assets removed 

fromequity and recognised in the income statement 0 0

Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets -114 -44

Carrying amount, 31 Dec 4,266 2,929

Non-current 4,266 2,913

Current 0 16

Quoted shares 0 0

Unquoted shares 4,266 2,929

17  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

EUR 1,000

Financial
assets and liabilities

held for trading
Loans and

receivables

Available-
for-sale financial

assets

Financial
liabilities

measured at
amortised cost

Carrying
amounts by

balance sheet
item Fair value Note

Non-current financial asset

Long-term interest bearing receivables 0 2,709 0 0 2,709 2,734 18

Other financial assets 0 0 2,929 0 2,929 2,929 17

Current financial assets

Trade receivables 0 49,871 0 0 49,871 49,871 21,27

Construc tion contrac ts 0 32,161 0 0 32,161 32,161 21

Other receivables 0 6,340 0 0 6,340 6,331 21

Derivative instruments 30 0 0 0 30 30 29

Cash and cash equivalents 0 21,407 0 0 21,407 21,407 22

Total 30 112,489 2,929 0 115,448 115,464

Non-current financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 0 0 0 37,677 37,677 37,710 25

Other non-current liabilities 0 0 0 405 405 405 26

Current financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 0 0 0 26,511 26,511 26,504 25

Trade payables 0 0 0 25,883 25,883 25,883 26

Total 0 0 0 90,477 90,477 90,502

 Carrying amounts of fi nancial assets represent the maximum amount of credit risk at the balance sheet date.• 

2007
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Fair value Carrying amount

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2008 2007

Non-current receivables

Loan receivables 6,753 2,754 6,601 2,709

Total 6,753 2,754 6,601 2,709

EUR 1,000 1 Jan

Recognised
in the income

statement
Recognised

in equity 31 Dec

Deferred tax assets

Tax losses 592 780 -74 1,298

Consolidation and group eliminations 530 -156 26 400

Total 1,121 625 -48 1,698

Deferred tax liabilities

Undistributed profits of foreign subsidiaries 69 -69 0 0

Consolidation and group eliminations 0 217 0 217

Other 73 -18 0 55

Total 142 130 0 272

Net deferred taxes 979 495 -48 1,426

EUR 1,000 1 Jan

Recognised
in the income

statement
Recognised

in equity 31 Dec

Deferred tax assets

Tax losses 162 430 0 592

Consolidation and group eliminations 0 426 104 530

Total 162 856 104 1,121

Deferred tax liabilities

Undistributed profits of foreign subsidiaries 1,031 -1,065 104 69

Other 0 73 0 73

Total 1,031 -993 104 142

Net deferred taxes -869 1,849 0 979

 A deferred tax asset for unused tax losses of subsidiaries, EUR 378,848 (2008) and EUR • 
682,000 (2007), has not been recognised in the consolidated fi nancial statements because 
realisation of the tax benefi t in this respect is not considered probable.

 The deferred tax liability has been recognised in the consolidated fi nancial statements in • 
connection with for the undistributed profi ts of subsidiaries whose income tax is determined 
on the basis of profi t distribution. The deferred tax liability has not been recognised when 
Group is able to control the timing of profi t distribution and the distribution is not probable at 
the balance sheet date.

18  RECEIVABLES

19  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2008

2007

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Raw materials and consumables 1 46

Work in progress 100,827 86,657

Land areas and plot-owning companies 142,123 64,307

Shares in completed housing corporations 

and real estate companies 34,008 30,258

Advance payments 3,684 6,509

Other inventories 14,203 8,652

Inventories, total 294,847 196,428

 During the fi nancial year 2008 there were impairment losses on inventories, EUR 276,000 and • 
EUR 1,072,000.

 During the fi nancial year 2007 there were no impairment losses on inventories.• 

20  INVENTORIES

Fair value Carrying amount

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2008 2007

Trade receivables 40,438 49,871 40,438 49,871

Loan receivables 15,078 6,331 15,000 6,340

Gross amount due from 

customers related to 

construc tion contrac ts 21,874 32,161 21,874 32,161

Accrued income and 

prepaid expenses 1,231 1,876 1,231 1,876

Other receivables 8,164 3,927 8,164 3,927

Total 86,785 94,166 86,706 94,175

Interest 

bearing receivables 15,078 6,331 15,000 6,340

Non-interest 

bearing receivables 71,707 87,835 71,707 87,835

Total 86,785 94,166 86,706 94,175

21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

In 2008 the Group’s trade receivables were on average EUR 45,154,691.
The trade receivables are non-interest bearing and they are normally about 30 
days by age. During the fi nancial year 2008 there were no impairment losses 
on trade receivables.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Cash in hand and at bank 3,372 21,407

Total 3,372 21,407

22  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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EUR 1,000 Provisions for construc tion contrac ts Other provisions Total

1 Jan 9,959 0 9,959

Increase in provisions 3,558 - 3,558

Provisions used -4,024 - -4,024

Reversals of unused provisions -113 - -113

31 Dec 9,380 0 9,380

Non-current 5,571 - 5,571

Current 3,809 - 3,809

Total 9,380 0 9,380

24  PROVISIONS

2008

Shares, share capital and share premium reserve
On the 31 December 2008, the total number of SRV Group Plc's shares out-
standing was 36,210,468 and the share capital amounted to EUR 3,062,520.
The share has no nominal value.

The Annual General Meeting of SRV Group Plc authorised on 14 April 2008 the 
Board of Directors to acquire the company’s own shares (treasury shares) using 
the company’s non-restricted equity. A maximum of 3,676,846 own shares, or a 
lower amount that, in addition to the shares already owned by the company and 
its subsidiaries, is less than 10 per cent of all shares, may be acquired on the basis 
of the authorization. The authorisation includes the right to acquire own shares 
otherwise than in proportion to the holdings of the shareholders.

The company's own shares can be acquired in order to be used as part of the 
company's incentive programs, as payment in corporate acquisitions or when the 
company acquires assets relating to its business as well as to be otherwise con-
veyed, held or cancelled.

The authorisation is in force for 18 months from the decision of the Meeting.
In 2008 SRV Group Plc acquired 407,759 own shares and SRV Kalusto Ltd 
acquired 150,241 own shares.

Invested free equity fund
Invested free equity fund consists of the net proceeds from the Off ering of SRV 
Group Plc as well as received and cancelled SRV shares.

Translation diff erence
Translation diff erence comprises of the translation of fi nancial statetements of 
the foreign subsidiaries to the functional currency of the parent company.

Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve comprises of the changes in available-for-sale fi nancial 
assets.

Dividends
Aft er the balance sheet date, the Board of Directors proposed a dividend of 
EUR 0.12 per share.

EUR
Number of

shares
Share

capital
Share

premium reserve
Invested

free equity fund Total

1 Jan 2007 1,303,200 1,303,200 1,759,320 - 3,062,520

31 Dec 2007 36,768,468 3,062,520 0 87,338,104 90,400,624

1 Jan 2008 36,768,468 3,062,520 0 87,338,104 90,400,624

Purchase and cancellation of treasury shares -558,000 0

31 Dec 2008 36,210,468 3,062,520 0 87,338,104 90,400,624

Share capital, share premium reserve and invested free equity fund

23  EQUITY
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EUR 1,000 Provisions for construc tion contrac ts Other provisions Total

1 Jan 8,451 0 8,451

Increase in provisions 3,776 - 3,776

Provisions used -2,031 - -2,031

Reversals of unused provisions -237 - -237

31 Dec 9,959 0 9,959

Non-current 5,888 - 5,888

Current 4,071 - 4,071

Total 9,959 0 9,959

 Provisions for construction contracts include the contractual warranty provisions for the projects and a 10-year warranty on residential construction. The 10-year warranty provision is based on index-• 
adjusted historical data.

Fair value Carrying amount

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2008 2007

Non-current

Subordinated loan 0 45 0 45

Other advance payments 0 9 0 9

Other liabilities 390 360 390 360

Total 390 414 390 414

Current

Trade payables 19,761 25,883 19,761 25,883

Advance payments related to 

construc tion contrac ts 18,707 45,516 18,707 45,516

Other advance payments 1,827 138 1,827 138

Other current liabilities 7,161 7,241 7,161 7,241

Accrued expenses and prepaid income 19,322 18,134 19,322 18,134

Total 66,778 96,911 66,778 96,911

Accrued expenses and 

prepaid income

Wages and salaries and 

related expenses 6,827 6,780 6,827 6,780

Interest and other financial liabilities 2,419 799 2,419 799

Periodisations of projec t expenses 5,263 7,249 5,263 7,249

Other 4,814 3,305 4,814 3,305

Total 19,322 18,134 19,322 18,134

25  INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES 26  OTHER LIABILITIES

2007

Fair value Carrying amount

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2008 2007

Non-current

Loans from financial institutions 16,291 14,470 16,340 14,429

Housing corporation loans 53,696 23,240 53,018 23,248

Total 69,987 37,710 69,358 37,677

Fair value Carrying amount

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current

Loans from financial institutions 95,983 26,504 95,994 26,511

Commercial papers 6,930 0 6,887 0

Housing corporation loans 171 0 171 0

Total 103,084 26,504 103,052 26,511
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Interest rate risks
Changes in interest rates on interest-bearing debts and receivables create 
interestrate risks. Interest-rate risk management is centralized to Group's 
Treasury unit. Majority of Group's interest-bearing debt is servicing short-
term fi nancing need for the construction period of Group's ongoing projects.
The interest period for these loans is chosen to facilitate economic repayment 
or refi nancing of the loans upon release of the property. Interest-bearing loan 
receivables relating to ongoing projects are funded with ear-marked fi nancing 
arrangements to meet the on-lending terms. Interest-rate risk is monitored 

2008 2007

EUR 1,000 Carrying amount
Average

interest rate
Average maturity, 

months Sensitivity, EUR 2) Carrying amount Sensitivity, EUR

Debt 101,814 5.09% 2.3 935 64,188 434

Receivables 1) 9,859 8.85% 2.0 -25

Interest rate risks
The Group is exposed to currency risks relating to the international business' 
commercial cash fl ows, fi nancing of the ongoing projects during the con-
struction period and equity and other investments in foreign subsidiaries and 
project companies. The objective of currency risk management is to minimise 
the eff ect of currency fl uctuation on earnings and equity. The Group targets to 
stay currency neutral. Open positions can be hedged with derivatives or cur-
rency loans according to Group fi nancing policy. Currency risks are divided into 
transaction risk and translation risk. Transaction risk relates to business (sales 
and purchases) and fi nancing (loans) cash fl ows in foreign or non-operational 
currencies. Translation risk relates to investments in foreign subsidiaries and 
project companies and the eff ect is shown in translation diff erences in Group 
consolidated equity. Translation risk relates to investments in foreign subsid-
iaries and the eff ect is shown in translation diff erences in Group consolidated 
equity. The Group is exposed to RUB, EEK and LVL risk in those entities where 
the operational currency is not euro.

and measured with gap-analysis and average maturity of interest periods.
Interest-rate risks are managed with the selection of interest period or with 
interest rate derivatives. At the end of 2008 the nominal value of interest rate 
swaps amounted to 18,8 million euros. Hedge accounting was not applied.
Changes in interest rate levels have direct impact on Group customers' invest-
ment decisions and therefore to Group's operational cash fl ow. The sensitiv-
ity analysis below includes fl oating rate debt and loan receivables with interest 
period maturing within the next 12 months.

1)  At the end of 2007 there were no material interest bearing loan receivables
2) Eff ect of one percentage point rise in market interest rates on the Group's interest expenses and revenue during the next 12 months. All other variables assumed unchanged.

Sensitivity to currency fl uctuation
The sensitivity analysis illustrates the impact of currency fl uctuations to Group 
earnings and equity. In the table below the positions are shown as net posi-
tions aft er matching the in- and outgoing cashfl ows and possible hedge trans-
actions. At the end of 2008 there were no open hedge instruments. The posi-
tions include only fi nancial instruments at the balance sheet date and therefore 
e.g. highly probable sales and purchases that could have been hedged or that 
could have a neutralising impact on the cashfl ows are not noted. A change of 
+/-10% is used as it is considered to be a potential change in the currency areas 
in question.

27  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest-bearing debt
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2008 Maturity  2007

EUR 1,000 Carrying amount Contractual liability 1) 2009 2010 2011 2012 Later Carrying amount Contractual liability

Loans from fi nancial institutions 2) 112,334 118,790 73,037 12,031 2,459 12,411 18,852 40,940 46,470

Housing loans 3) 53,189 84,829 2,444 2,494 2,649 3,344 73,898 23,248 39,481

Commercial Papers 6,887 7,000 7,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subordinated loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 45

Derivative liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Trade payables 19,761 19,761 19,761 0 0 0 0 25,883 25,883

Investment commitment 4) 0 2,708 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,681

Total 192,171 233,088 102,242 14,525 5,108 15,755 92,750 90,116 116,560

1)  Includes all contractual payments, e.g. interest and commitment fees
2) On the basis of contract terms committed current account overdraft s are assumed to expire later than 2012 
3) Housing loans book value corresponds the sales rate. Interest payment liability is noted for the full contractual amount until the completion of the property and in proportion of the sales rate at the end 

of December 2007 thereaft er.
4) Off -balance sheet liability

Financial liabilities

Liquidity and Refi nancing risks
Liquidity and refi nancing risk may have an impact on Group result and cash 
fl ow if the Group is not able to secure suffi  cient fi nancing for the operations.
The Group maintains adequate liquidity by effi  cient cash management and 
related instruments, like committed current account overdraft  limits (30 mil-
lion euros). The Group has a long-term committed Revolving Credit Facility 
(100 million euros) and in addition to that an uncommitted Commercial Paper 
Programme (100 million euros) for short-term fi nancing needs. Refi nancing 
risk is managed by maintaining the maturity of the commited credit lines in 

relation to the cash fl ows of debt payments. The committed Revolving Credit 
Facility expires in year 2012. At the end of December 2008 the amount of com-
mitted credit lines and cash in hand and in bank accounts amounted to 107 mil-
lion euros and committed undrawn housing and other project fi nanacing facil-
ities amounted to 25 million euros. Committed credit off ers amounted to 10 
million euros. There are standard covenant clauses in fi nancial contracts, the 
fi nancial covenant being the equity ratio.

2008 2007

EUR 1,000 RUB EEK LVL RUB EEK LVL USD

Net position 1) 366 -16,499 3,849 -10,839 -12,331 10,234 2,975

Impac t on earnings

euro 10% strenghtening -110 -1,960 145 932 -1,605 422 -183

euro 10% weakening 134 2,395 -177 -1,139 1,961 -516 225

Impac t on equity 2)

euro 10% strenghtening 76 -205 -445 -62 -484 -508 -

euro 10% weakening -93 251 544 76 591 621 -

1)  Net position countervalue in euros at balance sheet date. The transaction risk and translation risk positions combined. The sign illustrates the direction of the cash fl ow, e.g. negative sign shows that 
there is more outgoing than incoming cashfl ow in that particular position.

2) Direct impact, eff ect through earnings not noted.

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk relating to receivables from ongoing 
projects, accounts receivables, loan receivables, cash investments and receiva-
bles from derivative Instrument counterparties. The Group does not have any 
signifi cant investment activities or derivative instrument trading. The invest-
ments relate to daily cash management and are mainly short-term bank 
deposits with the Group's solid relationship banks. The Group Treasury unit 
is responsible for investment and derivative instrument counterparty risks in 
accordance with the Group fi nancing policy approved by the Board of Directors. 
Business units are responsible for credit risk management relating to ongo-

EUR 1,000 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007

Committed credit facility 90,000 100,000

Committed current account overdraf t limits 13,604 8,641

Cash in hand and at bank accounts 3,372 21,407

Total 106,976 130,048

 In addition to the above the Group has 25 million euros of undrawn housing loans and other • 
project fi nancing facilities available for selected projects. These are not included in the liquidity 
reserves.

Available liquidity reserves
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Ageing of accounts receivables

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Collateral given for own liabilities

Real-estate mortgages given 114,693 69,856

Pledges given 0 5,167

  At the end of 2007 the pledges given contained EUR 924 thousand of pledged inventories • 
and EUR 4,243 thousand of short-term interest-bearing receivables.

Other commitments

Guarantees given for liabilities on uncompleted projec ts 421 71,421

Investment commitments given 2,708 4,681

Group as lessee
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

In less than a year 2,391 1,942

In more than one but less than five years 1,829 2,243

In more than five years 0 4

Total 4,220 4,189

Liabilities in connection with the operating lease agreements of employee cars 
generally have duration of three to four years.

The Group has leased the offi  ce premises in use. The maximum duration of 
the operating lease agreements is 18 months. The various terms and conditions 
of the offi  ce premises contracts including the index, renewal and other terms dif-
fer from each other.

28  OPERATING LEASES, COMMITMENTS 
  AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

ing projects and accounts receivables in accordance with the Group credit pol-
icy which defi nes the requirements for credit decision process, sales terms and 
collection process. The Group's commercial counterparties are mainly publicly 
listed companies or notable institutional- and property investors. In Housing 
business there are mainly individuals as buyers and during 2008 some rental 
agreements have also been made relating to completed apartments. The same 
Group credit policy principles are applied to tenant selection. The loan receiv-
ables relate to fi nancing the construction period for ongoing or development 
projects where the Group has also equity interest. 

The credit crisis has had a limited eff ect to Group customers' capability to 
arrange fi nancing for their payables but during 2008 the terms of some pay-
ables have been renegotiated. At the balance sheet date there were some 0,6 
million euros of accounts receivables with renegotiated terms. At the balance 
sheet date there were some 4,8 million euros (incl. VAT) of accounts receivables 
under customer complaint. Based on the opinion of the business unit manage-
ment no impairment has been made for these receivables. At the end of Decem-
ber 2008 the book value of receivables corresponds the maximum credit risk. It 
is estimated that the securities received, e.g. mortgages or pledged shares, do 
not decrease the credit risk because due to the exceptional situation prevailing at 
the balance sheet date it is diffi  cult to make a reliable market valuation for these 
securities. There were no credit risk concentrations at the end of 2008. There 
were no relevant credit losses during 2008.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Current 27,123 27,576

1–30 days past due 4,919 13,343

31–60 days past due 349 4,910

Over 60 days past due 8,047 4,043

Total 40,438 49,871

  There were no past due receivables in any other group of fi nancial assets.• 

Price risk
At the end of December 2007 and at the end of December 2008 there were no 
fi nancial instruments exposed to price risk.

Capital risk management
The Group secures with the effi  cient capital structure that the group can give 
support to its businesses and can grow the shareholder value of the investors. 
The Group does not have a public rating. The capital structure of the Group is 
reviewed by the Board of Directors of SRV on a regular basis.

To maintain the capital structure the Group can balance the dividends or issue 
new shares. Additionally the Group can adjust the businesses and capital to be 
used to maintain the capital structure. The Group monitors its capital on the basis 
of equity ratio. Group's objective is to maintain the ratio of total equity to total 
assets less advance payments above 30 per cent. Total equity consists of equity 
attributable to equity holders of the parent company and minority interest.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Total equity 166,609 158,339

Total assets 423,829 331,554

- Advance payments -20,534 -45,663

403,295 285,891

Equity ratio, % 41.3 55.4



79

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, IFRS      SRV FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2008

Name Domicile
Group's 

holding, %
Group's 

voting right, %

Shares in subsidiaries

SRV Toimitilat Ltd Espoo 100.00 100.00

SRV Asunnot Ltd Espoo 100.00 100.00

SRV International Ltd Espoo 100.00 100.00

Pirkanmaan Projek titoimi Oy Tampere 65.00 65.00

Rakennusliike Purmonen Oy Joensuu 65.00 65.00

Kiinteistöviitonen Oy Espoo 100.00 100.00

SRV Kalusto Ltd Vihti 100.00 100.00

Porvoon Puurakennus Oy Porvoo 100.00 100.00

Rakennus Pirttimaa Oy Hämeenlinna 100.00 100.00

KOy Nummelanrinne Vihti 100.00 100.00

SRV Russia Ltd Espoo 100.00 100.00

OOO SRV Development St Petersburg 100.00 100.00

SRV Stroi OOO Moscow 100.00 100.00

SRV Terbelat Sia Riga 100.00 100.00

SRV Ehituse AS Tallinn 100.00 100.00

TBE-Construction Oy Espoo 100.00 100.00

SRV Kinnisvara AS Tallinn 65.00 65.00

SRV Ballista AS Tallinn 55.25 55.25

SRV Develita UAB Vilnus 100.00 100.00

SRV Realty B.V Amsterdam 100.00 100.00

Jupiter Realty B.V Amsterdam 100.00 100.00

 The Group has a 50% control in a Russian joint venture OOO MMSG. In the fi nancial year 1 • 
January–31 December 2008 the following assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint 
venture have been included in the Group's balance sheet and income statement: income and 
expenses EUR 0.0 million, assets EUR 12.0 million and liabilities EUR 0.0 million.

31  SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Non-cash transactions

Minority interest -125 -528 -168

Price dif ference between institutional/

retail of fering and employee of fering 0 398 0

Change in provisions -578 1,509 2,955

Others 192 71 40

Total -511 1,450 2,827

30  ADJUSTMENTS TO CASH 
  FLOWS FROM OPERATION

 The fair values of foreign exchange forward contracts are based on market prices at the • 
balance sheet date.

 Open foreign exchange forward contracts are hedging the fi nancing cash fl ow.• 

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Fair values Fair values

Positive Negative Positive Negative

Hedge accounting

not applied

Foreign exchange 

forward contrac ts 0 0 30 0

Interest rate swap 9 0 0 0

9 0 30 0

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Nominal values of 

derivative instruments

Foreign exchange 

forward contrac ts 0 8,525

Interest rate swap 18,808 0

18,808 8,525

29  FAIR AND NOMINAL VALUES 
  OF DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

EUR 1,000

Selling of
goods and

services

Management salaries 
and other short-term

employment- based 
benefits

Purchase of goods 
and services Receivables Liabilities

Management 0 0 0 0 0

Joint ventures 3,885 0 0 13,334 0

Associate company 0 0 0 3,094 0

Other related parties 0 0 0 0 0

Total 3,885 0 0 16,428 0

32  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2008 Transactions between related parties
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EUR 1,000

Selling of
goods and

services

Management salaries 
and other short-term

employment- based 
benefits

Purchase of goods 
and services Receivables Liabilities

Management 19 1,389 0 0 0

Joint ventures 3,348 0 0 7,077 0

Other related parties 0 0 82 0 0

Total 3,367 1,389 82 7,077 0

EUR 1,000

Selling of
goods and

services

Management salaries 
and other short-term

employment- based 
benefits

Purchase of goods 
and services Receivables Liabilities

Management 1,579 2,283 0 338 0

Other related parties 14,343 0 0 0 0

Total 15,922 2,283 0 338 0

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Heliövaara Eero, President and CEO 342 269

Nieminen Timo, Deputy CEO 177 149

Members of the Board

Kokkila Ilpo, Chairman 71 54

Kurkilahti Lasse, Vice Chairman 58 31

Hienonen Jukka 47 24

Mustaniemi Matti 45 38

Sarkamies Markku 44 38

Heliövaara Eero *) 0 10

Members of the Board, total 264 193

The president's period of notice is 6 months. If SRV dismisses the president, 
he is entitled to receive termination compensation amounting to six months’ 
total pay (excluding bonuses) over and above his salary for the period of notice. 
If the  president is dismissed before 1 January 2010, an additional amount equal 
to six month’s pay must also be paid as termination compensation. If the com-
pany dismisses the president due to a change of ownership, the president is 
entitled to receive termination compensation amounting to 12 months’ pay over 
and above his salary for the period of notice. The president’s retirement age and 
pension are set in accordance with the legislation in force.

 The related parties of SRV include subsidiaries and affi  liated companies as well as joint ventures, the Management and owners of SRV as well as companies controlled by the owners of SRV.• 
 Other related parties include transactions carried out with other companies under the control of the Group's management or with other companies under control of minority shareholders.• 
 Goods and services are sold to related parties at market price.• 
 Subsidiaries included in related parties are listed above in Section 31 Subsidiaries and joint ventures. Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements and therefore the transactions • 
between Group companies are not included in Section 32 Related party transactions.

*)  The term of Eero Heliövaara as member of the Board of Directors ended on 13 June 2007.

2006 Transactions between related parties

Compensation to President and CEO and Board of Directors

SRV is preparing for a continued downturn in construction markets. Negotia-
tions were initiated in January 2009 within the Group companies for adapting 
its operations. The Group’s Finland-based companies will start codetermination 
negotiations concerning senior salaried employees and salaried employees. At 
the same time. SRV will start a similar process in the Group’s foreign units. The 
negotiations will deal with personnel layoffl  , contract terminations and adapta-
tion measures. The personnel reduction measures are estimated to aff ect about 
130 employees. Detailed needs and measures will be specifi ed more accurately 
during the course of the negotiations.

The construction of the Kerca logistics area in Kerava developed by SRV pro-
ceeded in January. SRV signed a project management contract for the construc-
tion of Anttila’s logistics centre  in January 2009. Anttila’s plans cover the con-
struction of a warehouse of about 19.000 gross square metres. SRV and the city 
of Kerava agreed on a contract package concerning the development of the Kerca 
logistics area and concluded a contract for a real estate transaction of four hec-
tares of land and a preliminary contract for an area of 22 hectares. On the fi rst 
plot SRV plans to build a GCC (Grand Cargo Center) logistics building with about 
20.000 square metres of fl oor space. Kerca occupies an area of 160 hectares on 
the Kerava-Vantaa border.

In January, SRV and Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company signed the 
project management contract concerning the Vierumäki Congress & Resort Hotel 
project.  SRV acts as main contractor with overall responsibility and is in charge 
of construction and planning. In addition to 191 hotel rooms, the four-storey hotel 
building includes meeting facilities, six restaurants, fi tness room, bowling alley 
with 10-lanes, and a wellness-area. The hotel will be opened in spring 2010.

33  EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

2007 Transactions between related parties
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EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Revenue 7,232 6,704 6,401

Other operating income 23 6 17

Purchase during the financial year 0 15,222 0

Change in inventories, increase (-) / decrease (+) 0 -15,222 0

Personnel costs

Salaries and other remuneration -4,449 -3,944 -4,306

Indirec t personnel costs

Pension costs -695 -726 -746

Other indirec t personnel costs -366 -254 -346

Depreciation and impairments

Depreciation -398 -418 -440

Other operating expenses -6,606 -6,028 -5,435

Operating loss -5,259 -4,660 -4,855

Financial income and expenses 4,795 -1,857 -285

Loss before extraordinary items -464 -6,517 -5,140

Extraordinary items +/- 4,432 21,695 21,160

Profit before appropriations and taxes 3,969 15,177 16,020

Income taxes -961 -1,089 -4,123

Net profit for the financial year 3,007 14,089 11,897

Income statement of the parent company
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EUR 1,000 2008 2007

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 456 493

Property, plant and equipment 552 601

Investments

Shares in group companies 17,550 16,117

Receivables from group companies 900 855

Other financial assets 4,167 2,820

Non-current assets, total 23,626 20,886

Current assets

Inventories 16,937 15,736

Other receivables 157,784 137,522

Cash and cash equivalents 0 52

Current assets, total 174,720 153,310

ASSETS, TOTAL 198,346 174,196

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 3,063 3,063

Invested free equity fund 87,338 87,338

Retained earnings 34,138 26,249

Net profit for the financial year 3,007 14,089

Equity, total 127,545 130,738

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities 5,866 433

Current liabilities 64,935 43,025

Liabilities, total 70,801 43,458

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES, TOTAL 198,346 174,196

Balance sheet of the parent company
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EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Net profit for the financial year 3,007 14,089 11,897

Adjustments:

Depreciation 398 418 440

Non-cash transac tions 101 0 0

Financial income and expenses -4,896 1,857 285

Capital gains on sales of tangible and intangible assets 0 20 0

Income taxes 961 1,089 4,123

Adjustments, total -3,437 3,385 4,848

Changes in working capital:

Change in trade and other receivables -18,754 -81,453 -30,257

Change in inventories -1,200 -15,727 0

Change in trade and other payables 1,080 -5,037 26,382

Working capital, total -18,874 -102,216 -3,874

Interest paid -2,743 -1,328 -3,004

Interest received 7,460 3,317 3,912

Dividends received 390 85 183

Income taxes paid -1,063 -3,741 -8,665

Net cash from operating activities -15,259 -86,410 5,296

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash -1,328 0 0

Property, plant and equipment -71 -157 -358

Intangible assets -242 -86 -468

Other financial assets -1,493 -5,349 -1,384

Sale of investments 0 252 0

Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1 216 2,365

Net cash used in investing activities -3,133 -5,124 155

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from share issue 0 116,602 0

Of fering fees 0 -4,286 0

Proceeds from loans 7,000 433 0

Repayments of loans -167 0 -60,000

Change in loan receivables -1,381 6,532 44,422

Change in credit limits 19,088 859 10,000

Purchase of treasury shares -1,787 -29,263 0

Dividends paid -4,412 -3,128 -2,215

Net cash from financing activities 18,340 87,749 -7,793

Net change in cash and cash equivalents -52 -3,785 -2,342

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year 52 3,837 6,179

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 0 52 3,837

Cash fl ow statement of the parent company
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EUR 1,000 2008 2007 2006

Share capital, 1 Jan 3,063 1,303 1,303

Transfer from share premium reserve to share capital 1,759 0

Share capital, 31 Dec 3,063 3,063 1,303

Share premium reserve, 1 Jan 0 1,759 1,759

Transfer from share premium reserve to share capital 0 -1,759 0

Share premium reserve, 31 Dec 0 0 1,759

Invested free equity fund, 1 Jan 87,338 0 0

Share issue and employee of fering 0 116,602 0

Cancellation of treasury shares 0 -29,263 0

Invested free equity fund, 31 Dec 87,338 87,338 0

Retained earnings, 1 Jan 26,249 17,480 8,063

Profit for the previous financial year 14,089 11,897 11,632

Dividends paid -4,412 -3,128 -2,215

Purchase of treasury shares -1,787 0 0

Retained earnings, 31 Dec 34,138 26,249 17,480

Net profit for the financial year 3,007 14,089 11,897

Equity, 31 Dec 127,547 130,738 32,439

Statement of distributable funds at 31 Dec

Invested free equity fund, 1 Jan 87,338 87,338 0

Retained earnings 40,337 26,249 17,480

Dividends paid -4,412 -3,128 0

Purchase of treasury shares -1,787 0 0

Net profit for the financial year 3,007 14,089 11,897

Distributable funds, 31 Dec 124,484 124,548 29,377

Statement of changes in equity of the parent company
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SIGNATURES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 
AUDITOR'S NOTE

Signatures to the fi nancial statements and Report of the Board of Directors 

Ilpo Kokkila
Chairman 

Lasse Kurkilahti
Vice Chairman

Markku Sarkamies

Jukka Hienonen Matti Mustaniemi

Auditor's note

The report of the audit conducted by us has been submitted today.

Espoo, 10 February 2009

Jarmo Lohi
Authorised Public Accountant

Eero Heliövaara
President and CEO

Espoo, 10 February 2009
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Annual General Meeting of SRV Yhtiöt Oyj

We have audited the accounting records, the fi nancial statements, the report of the Board of Directors, and the administration of SRV Yhtiöt Oyj for the 
year ended on 31 December, 2008. The fi nancial statements comprise the consolidated balance sheet, income statement, cash fl ow statement, statement 
of changes in equity and notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements, as well as the parent company's balance sheet, income statement, cash fl ow state-
ment and notes to the fi nancial statements. 

THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible for the preparation of the fi nancial statements and the report of the Board of Directors 
and for the fair presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by 
the EU, as well as for the fair presentation of the parent company’s fi nancial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in accordance with laws 
and regulations governing the preparation of the fi nancial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland. The Board of Directors is respon-
sible for the appropriate arrangement of the control of the company’s accounts and fi nances, and the Managing Director shall see to it that the accounts of 
the company are in compliance with the law and that its fi nancial aff airs have been arranged in a reliable manner. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to perform an audit in accordance with good auditing practice in Finland, and to express an opinion on the parent company’s fi nancial 
statements, on the consolidated fi nancial statements and on the report of the Board of Directors based on our audit. Good auditing practice requires that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the fi nancial statements and the report of the 
Board of Directors are free from material misstatement and whether the members of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director have complied with 
the Limited Liability Companies Act.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements and the report of the Board 
of Directors. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair pres-
entation of the fi nancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropri-
ateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
fi nancial statements and the report of the Board of Directors.

The audit was performed in accordance with good auditing practice in Finland. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropri-
ate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements give a true and fair view of the fi nancial position, fi nancial performance, and cash fl ows of the group in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.

OPINION ON THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In our opinion, the fi nancial statements, together with the consolidated fi nancial statements included therein, and the report of the Board of Directors give a 
true and fair view of the fi nancial performance and fi nancial position of the company in accordance with the laws and regulations governing the preparation 
of the fi nancial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland. The information in the report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the 
information in the fi nancial statements.

Espoo 10 February, 2009

Jarmo Lohi
Authorized Public Accountant
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GROUP AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 
BY QUARTER (UNAUDITED)

Revenue

Operating profi t

Operating profi t

Profi t before taxes

EUR million
IFRS 

Q4/2008
IFRS 

Q3/2008
IFRS

Q2/2008
IFRS

Q1/2008
IFRS

Q4/2007
IFRS

Q3/2007
IFRS

Q2/2007
IFRS

Q1/2007

Business Premises 77.9 74.3 92.2 104.8 103.2 90.6 82.2 69.4

Housing 33.3 31.4 37.1 26.0 43.5 35.5 43.9 40.1

International 10.2 21.0 13.1 15.7 18.8 8.5 14.0 11.9

Other operations 3.0 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.7 2.5 4.0 1.9

Eliminations -3.1 -2.7 -2.9 -2.9 -2.7 -2.6 -4.2 -1.9

Group, total 121.4 126.7 142.4 146.4 165.5 134.6 140.0 121.4

EUR million
IFRS 

Q4/2008
IFRS 

Q3/2008
IFRS

Q2/2008
IFRS

Q1/2008
IFRS

Q4/2007
IFRS

Q3/2007
IFRS

Q2/2007
IFRS

Q1/2007

Business Premises 6.0 3.7 9.9 8.2 4.7 6.8 3.6 2.9

Housing -1.2 0.5 0.9 0.4 2.8 3.0 2.9 2.0

International -2.7 10.8 -0.1 1.2 -9.4 -1.7 1.8 -0.9

Other operations -1.4 -1.0 -1.6 -0.9 -1.1 -0.5 -1.1 -0.4

Eliminations 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.4 0.0

Group, total 0.7 14.1 9.2 8.9 -2.9 7.6 6.8 3.6

%
IFRS 

Q4/2008
IFRS 

Q3/2008
IFRS

Q2/2008
IFRS

Q1/2008
IFRS

Q4/2007
IFRS

Q3/2007
IFRS

Q2/2007
IFRS

Q1/2007

Business Premises 7.8 4.9 10.8 7.8 4.5 7.5 4.4 4.2

Housing -3.6 1.7 2.5 1.6 6.5 8.5 6.5 4.9

International -26.5 51.5 -0.9 7.9 -49.9 -19.9 12.7 -7.8

Group, total 0.6 11.1 6.4 6.1 -1.8 5.7 4.8 2.9

EUR million
IFRS 

Q4/2008
IFRS 

Q3/2008
IFRS

Q2/2008
IFRS

Q1/2008
IFRS

Q4/2007
IFRS

Q3/2007
IFRS

Q2/2007
IFRS

Q1/2007

Business Premises 5.5 2.9 9.2 8.3 4.3 6.4 3.7 3.0

Housing -2.4 -0.7 -0.2 -0.5 1.9 2.2 2.3 1.5

International -5.3 8.7 -1.5 0.2 -11.5 -1.4 1.6 -1.1

Other operations -0.5 0.2 -0.5 0.3 -0.2 0.5 -0.9 -0.3

Eliminations 0.2 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 -0.7 0.0

Group, total -2.6 11.2 6.8 8.3 -5.2 7.8 6.0 3.0
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Order backlog

Invested capital

Group key fi gures

Housing

EUR million
IFRS

31 Dec 2008
IFRS

30 Sep 2008
IFRS

30 Jun 2008
IFRS

31 Mar 2008
IFRS

31 Dec 2007
IFRS

30 Sep 2007
IFRS

30 Jun 2007
IFRS

31 Mar 2007

Business Premises 265.7 228.8 291.1 235.2 302.8 360.2 323.4 326.0

Housing 154.0 186.3 186.8 182.4 174.6 128.2 129.7 143.0

International 35.6 40.2 43.2 33.7 51.3 57.9 64.4 38.0

Group, total 455.3 455.2 521.1 451.3 528.7 546.3 517.4 507.0

EUR million
IFRS

31 Dec 2008
IFRS

30 Sep 2008
IFRS

30 Jun 2008
IFRS

31 Mar 2008
IFRS

31 Dec 2007
IFRS

30 Sep 2007
IFRS

30 Jun 2007
IFRS

31 Mar 2007

Business Premises 63.9 63.5 51.2 43.7 33.4 44.4 60.7 40.1

Housing 138.9 115.9 105.3 97.0 81.5 72.2 60.6 39.5

International 138.6 143.9 145.1 115.1 101.3 65.3 58.6 29.9

Other operations and eliminations -2.0 -16.6 -5.4 4.0 6.7 25.3 58.5 23.0

Group, total 339.4 306.6 296.2 259.8 222.9 207.3 238.3 132.6

EUR million
IFRS 

Q4/2008
IFRS 

Q3/2008
IFRS

Q2/2008
IFRS

Q1/2008
IFRS

Q4/2007
IFRS

Q3/2007
IFRS

Q2/2007
IFRS

Q1/2007

Revenue 121.4 126.7 142.4 146.4 165.5 134.6 140.0 121.4

Operating profit 0.7 14.1 9.2 8.9 -2.9 7.6 6.8 3.6

Financial income and expenses, total -3.3 -2.9 -2.4 -0.6 -2.3 0.2 -0.8 -0.6

Profit before taxes -2.6 11.2 6.8 8.3 -5.2 7.8 6.0 3.0

Order backlog 455.3 455.2 521.1 451.3 528.7 546.3 517.4 507.0

Earnings per share, EUR -0.06 0.21 0.12 0.16 -0.17 0.14 0.18 0.07

Equity per share, EUR 4.54 4.61 4.40 4.38 4.22 4.33 4.46 2.29

Share price, EUR 3.47 4.19 5.28 5.55 5.02 8.10 10.10 -

Equity ratio, % 41.3 45.9 44.9 52.1 55.4 60.9 59.4 33.2

Net interest bearing debt 169.4 127.9 122.4 76.1 43.2 19.8 -10.4 52.5

Gearing, % 85.1 74.1 74.8 46.3 27.3 12.2 -5.8 82.9

Finland, pcs Q4/2008 Q3/2008 Q2/2008 Q1/2008 Q4/2007 Q3/2007 Q2/2007 Q1/2007

Start-ups 0 49 53 8 155 31 77 100

Sold 13 32 63 33 40 62 83 103

Completed 260 260 229 125 519 389 132 81

Completed and unsold 1) 133 140 128 105 80 71 30 18

Under construction 1) 265 251 247 298 415 382 593 613

%
IFRS 

Q4/2008
IFRS 

Q3/2008
IFRS

Q2/2008
IFRS

Q1/2008
IFRS

Q4/2007
IFRS

Q3/2007
IFRS

Q2/2007
IFRS

Q1/2007

Business Premises 7.1 3.9 9.9 8.0 4.2 7.1 4.5 4.3

Housing -7.3 -2.1 -0.5 -2.0 4.3 6.1 5.3 3.8

International -51.9 41.6 -11.8 1.1 -60.9 -16.7 11.2 -9.6

Group, total -2.1 8.8 4.8 5.7 -3.2 5.8 4.3 2.5

  1) At the end of the period.

Profi t before taxes



Design: Miltton Oy
Photographs: Riitta Supperi, SRV, 
Flamingo Spa, Jyrki Vesa, Shutterstock
Printing: DMP-Digital Media Partners Oy
Paper, cover: Scandia 2000 white, 270 g
Paper, review: Scandia 2000 white, 150 g
Paper, Financial Statements: Scandia 2000 white, 90 g



srv Group plc
niittytaival 13
p.o. box 500 
Fi-02201 espoo, Finland
telephone +358 201 455 200
business iD 1707186-8
firstname.lastname@srv.fi
www.srv.fi


	SRV Annual report 2008
	Contents
	About SRV
	SRV in Brief
	Key Figures
	Year in Brief
	CEO's Review
	Strategy
	Outlook for Construction
	SRV Approach and Project Development
	Glossary

	Business areas
	Business Premises
	Housing
	International

	Corporate responsibility
	Personnel
	Corporate Safety
	Environment
	Responsibility

	Corporate governance
	Corporate Governance
	Risk Management
	Board of Directors
	Corporate Executive Team
	Information for Shareholders

	Financial statements
	Report of the Board of Directors
	Key financial indicators
	Calculation of key figures
	Shares and shareholders

	Consolidated financial statements
	Consolidated income statement
	Consolidated balance sheet
	Consolidated cash flow statement
	Consolidated statement of changes in equity
	Notes to the consolidated financial statements
	1 Segment information
	2 Aquisitions
	3 Disposals
	4 Construction contracts
	5 Other operating income
	6 Other operating expenses
	7 Depreciation and impairments
	8 Employee-benefit expenses
	9 Research and development expenses
	10 Financial income and expenses
	11 Income taxes
	12 Earnings per share
	13 Dividend per share
	14 Property, plant and equipment
	15 Goodwill and other intangible assets
	16 Carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by measurement categories
	17 Other financial assets
	18 Receivables
	19 Defferred tax assets and liabilities
	20 Inventories
	21 Trade and other receivables
	22 Cash and equivalents
	23 Equity
	24 Provisons
	25 Interest-bearing liabilities
	26 Other liabilities
	27 Financial risk management
	28 Operating leases, commitments and contingent liabilities
	29 Fair and nominal values of derivative instruments
	30 Adjustment to cash flows from operation
	31 Subsidiaries and joint ventures
	32 Related party transactions
	33 Events after balance sheet date


	Parent company's financial statements
	Income statement of the parent company
	Balance sheet of the parent company
	Cash flow statement of the parent company
	Statement of changes in equity of the parent company

	Signatures to the financial statements and report of the board of directors
	Auditor's report
	Group and segment information by quarter (unaudited)




